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4. Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

.s$ Mission
The mission of First Guaranty Bank and First Guaranty

Bancshares is to increase shareholder value while

providing financial services for and contributing to the

grou th and welfare of the communities we serve

Va1uesGoa1s
Customers We helieve that every customer is our most

impnrtant rustnmpr We pndpavnr tn prnvide levcls of sprvirp that

exceed their expectations

Entployees We believe that our employees are our

greatest asset as demonstrated in their professionalism and

dedication We encourage open communication and strive to

cultivate an entrepreneurial environment in \vhich our employees

feel highly responsible for the performance of the Gompany We
believe in an environment where they will contribute new ideas

and innovations that will help both us and them excel

Stockholders We seek to enhance stockholder value by

continually improving the quality of assets growth in earnings

return on equity and dividend payout

Conimnunity We stri\ to be socially responsible

corporate citizen by supporting community activities

and encouraging employees to be acthely involved in our

communities We are committed to the success of the

communities that we sen the same communities our employees

call home Our goal is to participate in making our communities

better places in \vhich to live work and play



First Guaranty

Bancshares Inc

smctpshot

In 2010 total assots rose 21.7% to

$1.13 billion net incomo ineroased

32.0% to $10.0 million oarnings

por share inoreased 23.8% to

$i.q6 onci hook value por share

ineroa sod 3.7 to
$1 3.84 Return

on avorago assots was o.p%

and return on average common

equity was 12.65% for 2010 Our

commitment to customer service

combined with the hard work of

our omployees has led to those

strong results The Company
works to benefit our customers

communities employees and

shareholders

Profile

First Guaranty Baneshares Inc

is the holding company of First

Guaranty Bank which it wholly

owns The Rank is full service

financial institution with major

presence throughout
Lo/iisiana

and servee eustnmers frnm its

17 banking center locations

Headquartered in Hammond
Louisiana the Company had

246 employees as of December

31 2010 Visit www.fgb.net for

additional information

Book Value
per common chart

Cash Dividends
par common chore

$0.64 $064 $0.64

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc 2010 Annual Report



Altitude Aptitude Accomplishment

ATTITUDE

APTITUDE

Accomplishment

What is it that makes First Guaranty Bancshares good
investment for shareholders

Why do customers choose First Guaranty Bank

Why is First Guaranty Bank good place to work nd have

banking career

How is First Guaranty Bank perceived by the

communities it serves

How does any bank continue to grow and profit evon in these

financial times

Attitude aptitude and accomplishment can be used

to answer many of these questions First Guaranty Bancshares

2010 performance exceeded its 2009 performance According

to the Louisiana Office of Financial Institutions and Federal

Deposit Insurance corporation FDIc First Guaranty Bank

outperfomed its regional and national peers in return on assets

return on equity dividend payout ratio interest income and

net interest income In 2010 book value increased by 0.50 per

share This performance can be referred to as accomplishment

for shareholders customers and employees as well as in the

financial arena But how and why is First Guaranty Bank able

to consistently perform



First Guaranty Bank works hard to ensuro customers knon

that their husiness is appreciated When other banks

are closed or closed early on holidays First Guaranty

Bank remains open because management understands

that small business owners mal require certain

son icos Management oxplains this to omploi oos

so omplo 005 understand ii they have to work Employee LI

lator than others may Ongoing training encourages

clnplUyeob to look for ways to host servo and onhanco an

aluo to oustomors This training not only endears

customors to First Guaranty Bank hut employees
to 01 LO is

oxporionce tho benefits which created loyalty to and

approciation Ihr their omplo or As hotter trained
core foundation of

employees they become more valuable Customer

focused training and communication is win win
First Guaranty Bank

situation for the Bank customers and omploi oos

The leadership and vision ofibrod by the Board of

Directors is ital component of perfOrmance and

accomplishment Aptitude coupled with an abundance

of experience and ahilits to listen and share openly

during Board meetings is another aspect of the Banks

success and momentum Board members listen to

each other and encourage ideas from omployoos

in each office Tho potential fOr growth is not onil

measured in financial terms hut oven one at First

Guaranty can gron andi learn individually

First Guaranty Bancsharcs Inc 10 1\nmiril posi



C3 Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

First Guaranty Bank

First Guaranty Bank is thankful and appreciative of its

to collectively customers They hank ith First Guaranty herause they

know the indn iduals and trust these raring bankers ha\

represent centuries of
their best interests in mind From checking savings CBs

Li
and IRAs to mortgage loans small husiness loans lines

of credit as well as remote deposit rapture and Internet

banking services First Guaranty Bank ran pro ide the

sn ivns all istnmnrs mill hr Thic cn ir is rleln nrnil

with an attitude of friendliness professionalism and rare

In addition to growth and complete financial offering to

customers First Guaranty Bank gi es bark to the

community From United Way and American Cancer

Society to Lions Club fl-I Club and Southeastern

Louisiana University First Guaranty Bank contributes

with both financial support and personal involvement

First Guaranty Bank im ests in communities and

genuinely strives to truly he an effective memher of

each eommunit served In 2010 First Guaranty Bank

rontrihutions ereeded $231..

Recent years have been presented great challenges worldwide

around the country and to many financial institutions

Louisiana has hired well as has First Guaranty Bank

That doesnt mean Louisianians oi First Guaranty Bank

are without challenges Since I-Iurriranes Katrina Rita

Gustav and Ike and the 2010 gulf oil spill our area has

seen its share of challenges

R5 GUAF AN BAIl HARE INC



At First Guaranty Bank wo troll value our peoplo oui

emplo ees We beliei that once voa Luau us 00

cant help hut bank ith us In the next Ibu pages
weve highlighted our employees to show our

appreciation for them and enable ou to know us

better as your Bank and as people Please tako time to

res iew these individuals Weve arranged ovoru one

alphabetically liv location also listed alphabetically

rj

Each of us continue to learn and gron ci cry clay

lITe aspire to sen our customers and shareholders

better and he the best we can he We trust you will

experience our enthusiastic attitude iecognize our

aptitude and together can accomplish business

and community goals Thank you lhr banking with us

Please share our posith banking experiences with

our children friends and neighbors

However our natural

particularly

our are
abundant and

First Guaianty Bancshares Inc 2010 Rcpoil



Ale ude Aptitude Quip Khmen

44

Abbeejile Ba okiitg Ce
Diane Berueton

Chatisse Broussard

Andrea Campbell

Glenn Dubon Si

April Frederick

Ii Pamela Gaspard

Greteben \leau



I/il h1 Banking Ceiiu

Josonda Bo\\ on

Su/eLte Brooks

Stophon Ic Carnpo

\Imth Fitch

Sho1b Ilussei

Linclsa Gutierie

Scott Schullino

Susie Smith

\larsha Spiinc

to Jenn\ Sue \Veoclman

First Guaranty l3ancshaies Inc 01 Annual Rcpoi



tttIudc Aplitude nompUshnwnt

Bait/co Bciokiop Cetitei

Christopher Carter

Donna Cammino

Della Johnson

Kath\ Rd

Ph Ills Palniisano

Ii Jane Sanchez

on Sinoer

Storrnilee Sniith

ti Kyle Stacitlancler

itt Traci Fricks Theclloicl

Paul \\TLtlllice

10



Dottltottt Sptittg

Ba tt/ ttrj Coo tot

Mark Bakn oil

Edward Bortonioro

Laon Coborn

Loda Dapoy

i\lickollo Gohlinu

Luciriok Iliclalgo

Sharon Moore

c2on Scott

Lisa Thompson

First Guaranty Baneshares tue 2t tO ittiniwit Rcpui
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Attitude Aptuudc ililpi
15111100 Is

Dc/ouch Baud/pg Ceu ci

Pauiera Caituu

Vironia \nn dir dam

li IPenda icr

laurie Tru\ icr

Jusie fuIoIi

ii Sue Yaft

Id Pu liii id

diallorie Carl

12



ha ni in our Gnu rant
jj Square

Banking Center

Accounting

Tarez Areeneau

Jamie Biadbur\

Lrie Dnseh

Erie Fuller

IKeu Gregurs

Peter Iuanc

Diane Lanier

Diane Pattersnn

Jnshua Pee Jean

in Dnnna Seamarcin

it Lana Irnxelair

Vet Pienn ccl

Jnstin ans

Chiistnpher Sextun

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc 2010 z\iutttnl Rcpul
13



Attitude Aptitude eompiiNhmenhi

Haiti taco ci am ci itty Sq care

Baiikiitq CouPe

Alternative Products

Laura Dampeer

\lilclci Kelle\

IVet Pi tired Jenine Warren

Appraisal Review

Karen Philips

Ann VTar1e

Vet P11 II Krist inc Tern

Elisa Cestanra

Lllehelle Waites

Audit

Kelly Bratton

Thomas Brothers

Jennifer Cesentino

to Michelle Dionne

it Maria Mereno

Net Phi ii ted Katie Dnhe

11



Haonoood Guaeaiitij ScJ hale

Banking Ccoier

BSA

Kristi Newell

Canclace Palmor Goidr\

Collections/Special Assets

Evita Baylor

Aaron Carr

Locas Ilammonds

IDaniol Leo

Ronald Pittman

Co nip ii Ct tice

Rebecca Burnt

Ronee yTotrng

Ccc dit

in Tiffany Burnt ci

Daniel Butler

12 John henderson

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc 1010 locunl Rcpo



Atutude Aptitude Accomplishments

\ficlsael Norman

Joshua Russell

Branclon Saunders

Jennifer Stroecker

Ranch \Tielciicjr

Rachel \\Tanclell

Jessica \\Tjlcl

Customer Service

Representatives/Tellers

Laura Arci

Kim Cooper

to Dale Ca\\ an

ii Jessica Damiano

to Lace\ Esler

Joellen Juhasz

Ha iii iiiaiici Gao ccici ij Square

Baichiaq Critter

Credit



Hate mend Conceit Spoo cc

Banking Center

Customer Service

Representatives/Tellers

Giselle Leonard

Emil1 Loeleero

Tom Messa

Whitney Paulo

Eriea \\Tajren

ii 8mm Wi hams

Data Processing/IT

Christopher CoLor

Craig Drake

.9 Shane Elliott

to Loren Foret

ii Michael Mosbev

12 Shane OiL or

17

FO st Guaranty Bancshares Inc 2010 lzrirual itt poo



Attitude Aptitude Aeeoniphshnzents

Ha iu iu 221 Gua inii Sq uaie

Banhiiiq Ceiuiei

Deposit Seraices

Maria Becerra

Lauren Brunes

Anna Cu icR

June Bison

Lan Duminpuez

Sandra Ed\\ aids

Tamm Gta\ as

Shinle\ JOnOS

Cihe Salt/man

to Jane White

Vat Ci ii ad

I7leanun Lillian

It

is



Ilctiiteteet/ Giiiii eeiij Stjiittie

Bankiitcj Ceetei

Executive

Vanessa Dre\\

Alton Lewis Jr

Michael Sharp

Larr Stark

.- Kristin Williams

Human Resources

15 Landa Domangae

Bernadette Kemp

Shelley Ta icr

Internet Banking

cj St ephanie Branrll

First Guaranty Baneshares Inc \tinual Iupo
19
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Attitude Aptitude Areomplishments

Hall 1110111 GlIaTal hj SqIto 16

BoIlhilg ColLIe

LOANS
Commercial Loans

Shanon Dunn

IDanielle Fridge

Katie Jenkins

Vera i\latthen

Tanya Nichols

Ii Chase Wain\vrighl

Christ Wells

Mortgage Loans

Stacy Balfantv

Tons Peterson

to Carolina Pierce

it Bettl Plauche

Taniniy Price

20



Hantinond Guaranty Squat

Banking Center

LOANS
Loans Processing

Sharon Conipton

Diann Ilarrelson

Renee Rhocly

Loan Review

ii Christopher McGhee

Loan Servicing

Tanya Carroll

Rubs Cox

Donna hodges

Katie Mezzie

Kriss Patterson

to Stacy Penaiher

11 Brittani Ragusa

12 Dorothy Talley

IVo/ Pitl1I1d

Colloon Ebarb

First Guaranty Baneshares Inc 2010 \iuaLnl 1cpo
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Attitude Aplitude Arc omphshrnents

Ham incur Guaranty Srjnai

Baakny Center

Operations

Tori Duncan

Amanda hill

Alicia Parrino

Richard Stark

hoyt Verburg

Public Funds

Business Development

Trovor Borgoron

LII CII asing

Vonosia Brooks

Joseph Ernest II

Robert Mizoll

Tv mug

10 Vilcki Dupaquior

ii Dosiroo Simmons



I-Icmomomoocl Gimnioo
lii

TT/m 51

Bammhiocj Ceolei

II

Megan \ccarrlo

Frances Cairington

I\lironrla Den cloy

Gol le Fagan

Kimberly Gross

ii Jean Johnson

Debra Jones

Connie \Iller

\larcarel orman

io Branch Parsons

mm Sharon Ropers

Kmrnhcih Cities

First Guaranty Bancsharcs Inc Ol0 Annual 52 pun
23



Atutudo Aptitude Atccuupllthmenls

I-Jct3Jlteslliie Baa/ti ap Ceo/et

IKecherra Ivory

Demontae Lewis

Julie Len is

ii Stephanie Sanders

Nellie Tat br

Net P/i oiied Jessica Lou\ iere

24



IIoinei Bctokiiicj Eeii el

Nelda Dean

Ronald Ecimonds

Dot Frazier

fl Chelsea Kleinman

Kendra Lincler

Amanda Pelleorin

Niekitsha Rid1e

Dcii Sanders

Sharon Taylor

to hannah Thompson

ti Teresa Tacker

12 Candie White

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc 2010 ttoteel Pc poe



Attitude Apiziude eouipllslrnienti

Iorlcpoodcoco Bookiog Coour

hi

Paniela Brazi

Cheia Bromb old

tiormella lan

Coslan

Ashiex hall

Richird IhooBli on

Johnnx Johnson hi

Karen Palle

26



jl/I6lillP Bauiking Cenie

I\lOfla Fontenol

Brooks Icijert

Kimbel1\ Laijauve

fl Sanauit1ia Lojeuno

Tiisha Patterson

First Guaianty Bancshaies Inc 2010 Anriiinl Repo
27



Attitude
Aptit ide \ccci IIiIiuiciO

Ken tenet Banking Center

Connie But er

Nikici Carrier

Pete\ Lampten

Patricia Meyers

Pamela Newman

Joch Vamnacle

Courtney VToodard

28



Cd City Baokiny Centei

Jenny Borleanci

Debbie Jutze

Bolos Lemairo

IKirhie Len ing

Dana Moore

Ci Sails Phillips

Rebecca Stanley

Hilarie Wermingten

First Guaranty Baneshajes Inc 2010 iriuttul Iicpui
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Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

Pooc/ioioolo Boo/Log Cuoiei

\Iancli Bonlcsun

Bronclo Chappotta

Juuniiuttu Li U51

Denise Fletcher

Lois Freeman

El Erin Galaforo

\mieo Gor\ ais

Michael LoiLso

William McCormick Si

Lvi1n Macmo

iO Monica Oshorn

ICristy Petit

23 Sharmaine liohertson

Jamb Scott

Yoi 2210

Kristin Trombotore

30



l2oiiclicitou La Bell/Jia iid

Banking Gnu/ni

Katherine Fagan

Brent Ieleeinbe

\leriah \Iu1ke

First Guaranty Bancsharcs Inc 2010 Aniuini Ri pci
31



Attflude Aptitude Aeeomplishmciin

1/ioicoc BankftigCooter

Jo cc Glass

Teresa Hasha

Ashley Lester

Branch Moon

Frances Thompson

Stacy Thompson

Julio Whitney

Lauren

it

Not Ptctttt od Trisha Martin

Jennifer Rohorts

32



VTTalker Baiikiiiij Ceihei

Kencira Fairburn

Sheila Lofton

Sylx at IVloore

Lynn \i\Testirtoielaiicl

ivionlea

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc Co IC \rtrutul Repui
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Attitoctc Aptttocti Ac coi tpltoloociit

3mmunity
00727/27 7707

it 001 Bolt etttcttt Ball

Post Gooront\ Bool contrihcoccl to the Itlommoncl

ion of Police opport of the ch Inn oo

Policemons Boll Appecning in the photo horn loll

to right ale Alton Len is Chiel E\ecciti\ Cllicer

of Fn oaron tc Boo Ic Chorlo Dol ihori Union

Pro iclent onci Keh in Domes Secret ala

In 2010 First Guaranty

Bank contributions for

community support

exceeded $23L3

Xlljon high School

Ii erieon co ion Aox iiion Po 17

1cm icon Lectiim Post It

Imite lit Cloh

\.mite Choiljci ot Commerce

HIP hammond Chapter .33

lnicrieon Cmeor oeict\

lmite High School

Imite Jcmior lo\iliar\

Xthen llioh School

l3oton Roooe Somoj Inc

Bent on II ioh School

lhernee l3osine Cloh

13cm lie nclo 11101 Des loposent

ooocil

hot lid Christ ion chool

Pm Dot her J3o Sioter ci Soothss

13o icr Re local ion oondo ion

lIt Si ut lmcrici tn iomo lrci

Cooncil

to ml Cooper II ah hocil

Capitol Cip Pro 11

15 Sen ice Inc

nt il Pot onclhocl 13i chol

tint cal Tanoipihoo bad St art

thilclrco

itc Coort of Icmsoii nd

Cia of hltiiomnoncl

Cit ol Ponchotoo

Cloihoine tcatlcni\

Clahornc Chamhu of Commenc

aibornc ICP

Clailjoi no Pa ri tt lemons sochi tion

Cloihorne Pttnish EDo

laihomnc Poi ish II Foonclat ion

Clohoroc Charit Inc

loihornc Sc holtn Committee

Coo ttil Con crc atm oc at tin

Friend oIl he till it Wood Alciscont

CInh Di illa 33 est Inc

Coroe\ Ci cek Fcstn

Cornec Creek Lono Spor

Dossnitoss 11 IRs clopnicnt Ptrict

Dnhoc Ii II bIt School

thnhoch lie toiot 100 ood 13ciot ilicatiiio

Organ iiotion

Pock CnlmLtccl

First Unit ccl \hc hi ti ci ci

Fbi ida Pan Friend iii the CR

It rhc it Rod Memorial

Ft icntl otLPl3

rood hp Bopti thcoih

tiler Cent ci tio Ion no

Ladies Top 28

list ti cioro Is Pa it cipport ccl ho otl los

lop o5 Toorntimcol 111001 lmc in he photo

lrom loll to oh ore ichoel IL htop

President ..Jiannct te Fm In Ociarants

Bank Fm 1103 cc 00 ci \T01 ci nteer Coorci ma

ol the ad io Top OL Cci3 Rocot to hal cm

ho ad is tip
nil Ilton Loss is Chic

iii iii tIIuic

31
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First Guaranty Bank is committed to our

local communities Listed are the institutions

and associations that we have assisted with

contributions during the year Community

Contributions are prioritybudget item for

our Bank

At First Guaranty Bank our goal is to leave

the communities we serve better than we

found them Miiseittit Contrthutioti

Girl Scouts Council of .Th Loui lana

Glcnhronk chool

GullTVildlilb Re cue Rack Run

Gushi Da\

11

lararnond Irea Recreit ion

Gelxtrtraant

IIamrriond lit Cold

lantroond hamher of Curarriarce

Ilarunionci Frcuarnal Dicier of Polce

Iticltfa 31

Ilaniraciaci IIioh School

hammond high School Foothall

l3uo tar

hammond Police Union Local 31
hammond Real inal \rts Cent

hlathcas high School

Isa no illa First Bapti Church

has nest illa hhioh Schciol

iCts i-ic ilk Lion Club

That at lila Quart arback Club

Iarnclon Magnet School

hhico ems ncai School

hloh Ghost Cttholic School

lomar Pelican Quai tarback Cluh

Inipctct l3anton

md apt adanca oh School

Independence Summer Ba ahall

Inclapanclcnta Siciltia lariaga

Pasta al

The It allan Fast al Inc

Roar Jack on Memorial

Jell iJas is ldtilt Recreation Lea cia

Jail Dat is 13u ma Alliance

Janriing Fe ttl ociatlitri

Jennings 1mph Schitid Qciarttrback

Club

lass al LI Scimnir hhioh School

IV

Ideal ttttd hioh St hotti

Rantsvttocl Roan Club

Vhs ans Club id Imita

Vhs ant Club of Banhan Sprmno

Vat at-il Club itt hlammoaci

Knights of Columbu ttf \.mitt

lsnieht ttf Colunthus

ttkc trthttr huh Schttttl

Lctka Claiborna Inc

Lallia lamp Fotinclation

land Trctst Ibr Sttctthatt Lttctt tat-ia

Charlie Cancir \hamttrial

Scholar hip Fttnrl

inosbtrt Fire Protect ion Uiso tat

Vttlttrttaar Firt Daptrtmant

Employees personally donate

and vo eel significant

iiCand Cii
fJij

to

Pit cttt itt nt I3tn Is cant rihctt ad to

Pttnahatttctltt Area Racraatictn Daparl mant

\.ppaartno itt the phttt tt
lrttm left itt rioht

are Dc am Elttahtr Viaa pta idet-il ttnd

l3ranah Manaoar Dr 13111 Wheat IJi raatttr ttl

Pttnchal ctctla \.raa Racract itta Dapttrtt ant

atd Michael lolbso Santttr Vita President

tttnntarttal Cttan dicer

The photo hosts Dr Finchcr prasentin check hi renewal ol First Guarant
BanlC Laid Museum Member hip to Mrs Linda \Talcntina cihector of the mu aura

worthwhile causes

CREATO

Potte/tatottla Ret Cottteibutiott

First Guaranty Baneshares Inc 2110 Attttttctt depot
35



At it ode Aptitocte Accooipltsloooo Is

ommunity

Operation TI/c Care

The looser 0111cc colloccocl pillcto liii Operottoo

\\T0 Lore Pillow cod pillow cose oie collected

cod shipped to oor troops oversoo The Book

porticipotes ooooilh io this drh Pictorod lrooi

loft to rieht eodro Li otter hose II to ii ht
ood Goode \Vhitt

1.0 io too Parish Lhooihor ot

Lommoi co

loicowior FF11 Rodoo

Loroooor Jligh School

tiot to cc Booker soc lot too

ooisooo Lhildi oos Discos on Leott

Loot ictoo 11 oootlohoo

ooisiooo Oil Oos Mo woo-i

Fooodotioo

LSU Ti Looter

March ot Dime

Mars Bird Porkio Looter Looter

Mot ii Dolorosc School

Ic cod odopoodooi chocil

\liocloo Lhor is Llossic bc

\Iooteres Loooirs Lloh Moot em

Lo ic

lihhomrl \lorphs be pica To iodoth to

Mo color Os si rep hs As octo too

Nottood \\T1 cl Torkol Forleroiioo

Nest lou oms Tooth Sorvico Borocio

NOLA All Star Bci oholl t2 ocr

Old

North Lorlclo \lopoot 11Th

North Lctrlrlo Medico Looter

North \5m 00 ltoo Hi School

Ook Guise Lhorch

OH Forost Acottoow

Opt rotioo We Core

Opt toos Icc

Pioti Poco Liii Let /11111 oti roomoot

Piloc Lloh ot Doohim hprioti ttioodocicto

Pctochooolo \.chipi tel

Pooc hot ito to Aroo Rocreototo Di tm ct

Pitochttitolo Lhomhor cit Lctmmorco

I/toot oOttdo Foothctll Duct cot

Pctochotctti II oh Schi tol

Pctochtcpt olo bItCh Schottl Bo ohs 11

Pciochoicttdi Otto Llot

Pcioc hopo lo Lit ito Jtio itir Loo It rooco ft tcttholl

Poocho rtolct Ho tort Lltih

Pctochatcttilt trosvhorrs Rest is cil

Pooel-ottilo utith Bc hll SYWoP

Onto i/ctt itti

Qtiitmoo IIiih clsottl

Roctrl Roo

Ho in il Spir LiIb Loot or

Rotors Ll ih td Amit

Bottrs LItils cit Beotoo

Rotors tits cit Ltmosoorl

edit ms Lttih el Oil Lits

IIolpice Sttpporl

Fir Citiorctots Dci ott

etc rihti tL rI to tI Richod

ltcrphs lit pico Fotuorlotioo

DM1 IF Cppeiotoc to the

phot ci hitoi bIt cci richt omo

hits Vorhtoti Bit irrl \bomhor

cit Dlii II ion irst Liticci ciots

Bciok toplos 00 Pot ricto

\\T0 tmoi olood L\ectitts

Di otter ol III 1111 cod nIt ems

oss is tel Met cit 011 tier
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St \.lhert Catholic ttitlent Center

St Indi tot Mission Inc

St Jtitle Chiltlren hospital

Thonias Ftttonui ITch Schuiol

Shontaloo II It Schtiol

SKIP of oto iano Inc

Soc iet of Vu ncent tie Pati

otitheost Spoti \.hti Prow ni

Sotithea tern oti dna Unit eriti

.otlomni sociaton

Si Athletic occition

SLU Coltimhiui Thea it Ii ir the Art

SI IJet elopn cot otinditluin

Special Oh mpics Loto iana

Spirit Situp IIOULD BE In nest ille

lied School

Sport Promotion Neto oiL STIOULD
Be Benton ugh School

Stigar est ugh Schttol

Stouunienlitltl huh Schtiol

Tangi hItmuone Societ

Tanuti Stat Btskethttll

Tangpohoa tfnicuto tuncnicuto

IIertaoe SIti etiot Bluuck

eteu.ot Archh

ftintiptthuiut Iloniie I3tolrler

ociation

Tongpahiia Parish School S\ stem

Talented Theatre

Ii tffC

Tofer tthletie Foontlation

Toxi of lIO\ nest tile

Tow of Indepenrleoet

Toti of Kentwiiiid

fmt of Oil Ch\

Town of Vit ion

LI

Union Chape IDlE Choreh

Unh er it\ Coked Methotli Choi ch

United Vim Tanoipahoo Pan

\T or lion Catholic School

\Th..n \thletic sociation

Vh ion Chamher of Commerce

Opl loll Quit li/ iii wit

Fir Otenontt Book opported

Options tijpcorino in the photo

from left to ro ht ore Rohert

i\li/ell sistant Vice President

Ptircho log Joseph Ernest 001cc

Worlr and Elton Lnwia hif
F\ectith Olilcer

Mike Lofctso toil/i TARC

Ed Otiorantv Bank contrihtited to the

TARC Ettdiothon \ppeorinif in the photo

from left to ri ht are Kathleen Ahles Chief

E\ectit it 01 fleer ol EEC and Michael

ohiso Director and Treo orer of TARC and

Senini Vice Pi esident Commercial loon

Officer

Batik Receipts Uo iteci VT ay ttacd

Fit in Letci accepts United II ot Ma or Contrihtit iiO Ott artl un hehal

of Lint Otiarantt Bani and its emplo ees at the United Way Leadership

Breakilu held ult htmmonrl Gtioront\ Sqtiare

CIA

lVdlker Ilioh School

Ftrst Goaraoty Bancshares Inc 2011 zionool Rcpoi



u4 Atutudo Aptitude Atclomphshrnonhs

First Guaranty Bank BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Niarshall Reynolds

Chairman of fhe Board ref Guar nfy Banc hares mo

Chairmen of fhe Board Firsf Guaranfy Bank

Free denf CEO Champion lodusfries

Affrm lewis Ti

Vice Chairman of fhe Board and Chief Lee uf so Officer

Firsf Guaranfy Bancehares rc

Vice Chairman of fhe Board and Ch of Exe utive Off cor

Firef Goarenfy Bank

Anthony Bernee Je

Fresidenf Fon Food Corporafion

Chorlos Brister

Fr sid nf Omner Br fors Rental Coneulf ng

Dx Phillip Finchei

Retired Economics end nero Professor

of Louis en Tech On versity

Rofnext IT Oabriol

Frcsidenf Gebr el Building ipply

Andrew Oasaway Jr.

crcfery to fkc Board

Free denf Ge may Ge amay Banketon AFAC

Daniel Ilarrington

Free denf HTV Industrie Inc

\Villianx TTOOE1

Oire for Firsf Goaranfy Bencshercs Inc

President Hood Automotive Group

Edwin Iloover Jr

Fresiderf Encorc ye opment Corporation

TVlorgeen Nalty

lrvestmvnt Banking Lv cutive Fartrer

Johnson Rice Comp ny LLC

Daniel Packer Jx

Cfeirrian of the Board Ertergy Nem Or eans

Nicholas Seledino Michael Sharp President Marshall Reyno di

Chairman Ann Smith ton mis Jr Chief Executv Officer

STANOING RDM EFT ro RICH

Robert Gabrel William Hood Anthony rner Jr Chares Brster

MorBan Nalty Oaniel Packer Edmin Hoover Jc Oc PhilIp

Fincher Sam Scelfo Jc Ardrem Gasamay Jr

ROT PICTURED

Oanie Harrington Sandra Ramsey and Or Jay Tay or

Sandra Tlarrises

erior Vi Fre ident and Treasurer Ace ta Inc

Nicholas Salarlino

tired Mayor Tomn of kentmeed

Sam Sceifri Jr

Fr dent Oarrh nes Rikeries Feterers nr

Michael Sharp

Fresidei Firs Guaranty Ban shares Inc

President and Cdi Lord ng Officer Firs Guarai ty Bank

Ann Sneith

mb of euisiana Scm 00 Board Asso iation Evccut ye Board of Oirectere

Tangirahea choel Board Memb fFermer Fr sidentf

angipafee rich Convention end Veiter Bureau

Edgar Snnith III

Free dert Chairrran of the Beard

Srrittvs Supply Inc

Dr Jac Taylor

abor Management Arbitrator

Former President Louisiana Tcch Oniv rsity

Dirrrtoi Eiori lbs

Robert II DriJIIfr

Collies Doit irrt in

Robot S/cell Ji

SEATED kROM EEFT TO CHT
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First Guaranty Bank ADVISORY BOARD

The nienThers of the Ads isor Board ol First

Guaranty Bank are Thomas Tommy Crump

Jr. Carroll OiL Doss los III Dn Phillip

Finrhor John Oladnes M.D and Britt Ssrnco

In addition to ast evponence as hank directors

those gentlemen represent decades of o\pertise

in both wholesale and retail marketina in North

Louisiana They provide valuahie insight mlo

the financial and civic actis ities that affect the

Company performance

Mrnoagemont has found this group of ads iory

directors to ho ital in all aspects of the Company

activitie They are particularly helpful in

des eloping lenrling anti marketing philosophies

and pros idhoc critical insight into ties clopments

in the fields of agriculture forestry oil and gas

production antI other lousiness activities

EFT TO mOOT
Jo Orado

Thomas Tommy Crump Jr Britt Synco

Sri Domres ill Or POll Pincher

First Guaranty mncshar es Inc 2010 Are runt port
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Atutude Aptitude Accompliehments

7he 13 oari of Directors ofFrst Quaranty l3an
requct Hit lorior cf nl c1rese

Attitude aptitude and accomplishment

CollinsBonicard

On December 28 2010 the Bank recognized Collins Bonicard with

reception to thank him for his many years of dedicated service

Since Juh 198 Collins

Bonicarrl sen oil as Director

on the First Guarantl Bank

Board For 17 of the 28 years

lie served Mr Bonicard

also acted as Secretary to

the Board lie provided

ins ocations and benedictions

for boarrl meetings and

shareholders meetings In

addition to his ork ith

First Cuorant\ Bank Collins

Bonicord is Former mm or

of the Cit\ of Ponchatonla

end so winker Ri ild log

Inspector ann Permit Oflicei

on the Tonpipahoa Parish

Council lie also worked as an

independent onnactor and

bnildine inspector

Collies Boo irord 00 51 005

JCi Gooi 00111 Boid oso

Dii erloi Eeieniois
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Vin 0ta mar of th Board and

Chef Executive Officer

Dear Shareholders

As promised First Guarano

Bancshore took significant stops

forx\ orci in the oar 20th to increase

shareholder alno In 20th iv heçran

campaign to ost ahhsh an attitude

of costomer apprecia ion anti

cast omer son ice comhinod voith an

attitarle of lo alti Lii First Guaranty

Bancsharos and First Guaranty

Bank Strong training antI education

programs iv ith solid manaoement

programs iv ore implemented to

increase our apti ado \\Tith thO

enhanced attitude and aptitude iv

achieved sei oral von sionificant

accomplishments On the financial

side iv attained income in ailahle to

Common Shareholders of SS.dpV.Oht

iv hich is f.t increase from 200t

Larnings per common share climhcd

from Si.sh to ht.d

Donna 70 tat.oi iot op to iini hin ito iiitna tioili and oth to ci on of to

mo oh tfooh it iii too ft ink fi \fn 010 tIc flu ti ii oat

iii olanulat Ottaoi ifc Do oh op dooo ot Dokt tfi mc fIt han tifi ti

mlvii ma tfok 1111 00 ff1 iahft fod 010 iei Depaii ioeni of 11 lid 00 ha
redo httai 01 oht utIiiiht naioiaf hati tn fof 010 Plc ft ha cf Scrk

foiod tn ooana ff uk f1 aftni cit Opoi Oion \fi tx to fono anct

itn iithi fit ion of haiikno 0111001 ftc .00 tooifi aft pot of

tiouk 110 ipiOOa titv ofti viat ton owes noon foi Atft ott ihtl to of

ouoliol lilt ndii toooot \oilti anqrttm ot ti tonooit at encton .Pioa Man 000

to fit atdhton at ifo.t rn ulmni hanoI .1 ilino to iodo ton mit \octti

flu paini tni no ac Depac 1000 and 100 ti ectci Dopaioneni to 01 iii

vi coked tocn mi all il 00 iOO ui OR 0010 piodlai kno cots lnploa

11 ittiati at and mica ow acfn ia itoopthmt t.puit

iimfdft tnipioi 0a can noOn ft lilt tialtitutdl at ancf ma in tool no noinat

lnpim iiltili 10 at it nm ct oa icti ito ft ok too ifi ii Oi id oi

lilt iiam ccliont iith tiiPn to fkoiu an fIt 0101 tt ffant ttr eu ic ft

tfank of tiutll 111 mou Ottli 11 act II 11u uI 00 liii lit hito ttt to

tmnai oitcf \ttalhoflanct 1t 01 0i ft 001 of tOt ill til lOli lOll hmi tt

111 olnIlla td iht tt ttnd qooi ot 01 and ft tntfaani ii tn1 fit lOt put no
Itll allan ftlilf ml flea tnt till flow oin it of tOt Ii tit

ioalalli tfailk ii ft ftc it lint Oil Ii ft Itll tall 011 anina ft intl 00

Otat\ hank Ri 00 ooft ftt Pt nitot ft nktn emo 111ff ili it hi 111 \lnli

Ii 110 Id tocai oitht inltit fttli itt ii ii ai on tttnk nitr

itt tonp tmili our .1 to foan loll0 Spin al of iVatktl II ti Il

p1 till to flu tt itO tnt It 00 ill fl mit Parc to Ill toil flank

mo Oon itm II lOt tOt hti ml itrt fttu he ito tt It he

0110 pu ht ii ta iaa of oni taio aioi dtn mi to illfi tt nip itd oai

ti

onnma io mpni mr aatiod it ati lift tIlt oilpt man hood ft

iohrautt atttn at ha ti thom oOllmn 110 ttid

il Ottitfilti\ oiing sm hdIOitd p01 at ff111 iihi fI 1ff ttt fit ti ihl

ttooani thInk 11 Oi t\ mlnat atit p10 molttdtm it ttti tat

mi on mi adcfaloliat .1 11 tlt hi ttttct ihirti cot \0llii thoi At fill rtt hI
11 pttit too it iulntn ito ta ctit ha 10 piotiahttho iii aol ipa tIll

taintn otct tiai tt tddi at It 111ff mm ma 10 nm ln on Pcfttitonltt omt to nit

111 thou hon thio hao iii
faIl Oil ltd lOt t.pti .ttui ia ha ptxionci

to nt nd mit Ii iOu Ii

tVitif II tooihuc WI 111ff lltl ft na iflIl tint ihtu ii It 01 liltlmto

it
ftit 111 Iou Of01

Ii tItt

Alton Lewis Jr

Vi Ct airman ft Board and Chi Execuf cc Office

LOS ALAN NC tN

cc Chairman of the Board and Chi Cx cot xc Officem

ft ru aaoooh ItS

Alton Lewis Jr

First Guaranty Bancsharea Inc ao tO IliuilllOf 0010
lx



Atutude Aptitude Ac complcihrnonts

Presided end

Chief Lending Officer

lElitor\ foils us that cc cannof

posslc know cc hero cc are unless

ccc knocc cvhere we hoc been Plo

cannot know cc bore we are csoinrr

unless we know cvhoro we are

Time is iwocious Lots reflect in

concise fashion this parallel to First

Gnarant Bank

In 193 share holders fbrmecl

Guaranty Bank cc ith t.000.OO

of onturo capit 01 The flank cc as

chartered hc the Louisiana Stale

Bankinc Depart mont Tcc current

anti prencinent hoard members

is ft ilili hood our T.ean anti Aadit

Committee Chairman and Mr

Morgan Nalt\ are direct descendants

of our Ibunders Their legacy of

leadersh ill piw ides cont inuits and

isinht

Report from the President

77 ears ao Guaranty Bank cc as created to fulfill desire to capitalize

on the economic time prec alent in 193 Gur countrc was in recuc ccv

iwide technology cc as changina our lic es war cc as in etir midst and

fiscal opportmcitv cc as there for those cc illing to calculate and execute

business plan baserl on the risk Griginall this opportunitl became

reality in the verI rural and unique hammond Louisiana market

Thu tudaf the sanc Sac erabic juncture of circunctancos exist

recovery tochnolegc cc ar and the format Icr seizing the mOment

Today we continue to expand in the uniquelc rural markets ccc serve

Gnr deposits are up icc oh in 2010 ear end over 0009 In manI of lice

areas cve serc our market share has improved Although hammond is

the largest market cc serc cc arc part of stat ccc ide cempan cvhich

hI communits hank measures cc are large 21.133 billion in size and

grocvino With the adc ent of the acquisition of the Bank of Greensbnrc

cve cviii again increase our size fcc approximateh Slot million in assets

Hnr ego in cc cc ill On nynr if ing nn icd dnncinn ing vrc fire

rural market St helena Parish

The national economy is beginning to dec elop some mimentum

During the month of March the pric ate sector added 230.001 jobs

TIce unemplec mont rate edged docvn to 5.5 its fourth con ecntic

nconthlc decline This necvs at the end of islarcic sent the Dccc Jones

Industrial average up to its highest close of 0011 In relatic terms the

Louisiana State economic engine is deinn better than the national

scene Gui unemplec mont rate locc or than the national ac orane lice

foreclosure rate locver than rnanc area and businesses are beriinniica

to recognize the benefits of home in Louisiana Gte londing group is

executing rec itahzed loan marketing plan put into motion in the

titll of 2t It Rostdt from this plan cviii mani test thomselc cc ith loan

grocc th tocc ard the end of 2111

In summarc our Bank is cveli positioned to execute md profit tiom

hose opportunities Thank ott fhr the im estmont in eta corporate

thmilv

Life is good in Louisiana

Sincerely

Michael Sharp

Pre dcn

bAN lIt MN

Prceidcrt ci Cli tending Otfi Cr

AilS BOl

9wrwreTnfwe 13

Michael Sharp

12



First Guarcmts earnod Ki million

dollars in net incomo fhr 7OIt an

increase of 22 dijon or 37.0 Irons

7009 Earnings per common share

incroasod 23.2 hom S1.2h in 700f to

Ki ..39 fOr 7010 Book value per share

ioeroasocl 3.7f to Kt.8 from 21331

in 2009 Ret urn on an eroee ossots

xx os 0.99 for 70 tt comparod to pEt

fOr 2009 Return on ax erage common

equitY was t2.ll.1 fin 2010 compared

to toE liar 2009 The net interest

margin increased tom 3. in 2009

to 3.99 in it Loon loss reserve

percentage of the loan portthlio

increased to If in 2010 fiom t.3

in 7009

Report from the Chief Financial Officer

The grow th of totol assets to 21.13 hlllion increased the level of

expectations for our corporate finance department hillion

dollar financial institutioo the complexity of financial reporting has

increased anal the demands Ihr pkmning has row is significontly

First Goarants has emhraced these challenges adding the right staff

expanding training developing new reporting systems anal increasing

efficiencies throughout the depart ni ent

Our internal ornanization is drh en hi the dual mission of accurate

financial reporting and helpinn management procluctn eh use

this financial information In order to accomplish this mission the

department has been divided into the accounting and finance clix isions

First Guarants accounting dix ision ox ersees internal information

svstenss end erifies thot all proper procedures and controls are

follow ccl Bank Controller Eric lb oiler manages the internal accounting

for the Companx bRie joined the Compom in earls 2011 is Certified

Pohlic Accountant and hrings over 29 sears of banking experience Eric

has started sex eral mu lathe to enhance our accounting information

stenis and our accountino stall training

The finance staff works with their accountima teammates to connect

internal fi nanc kl reporting xx Compans Mon agement Our fine ace

pro tessiono are responsihle fOr external reaulat orv reporting

budgeting interest rate risk anah ii monitoring pohi ic funds deposits

and managing the Compan ins ehwent port fOlio We plan to acId

ax endor managensent position in 7Ot Ito supervise all external

businesses that contract xx ith First Gooiants fOr erx ices sach as

software si st ens.

First Ooaiants hoildine solid IOta dation for the failure We

understand the need to continoalls strh ba excellence in order to

deliver increased shareholder cdoe First Goarants fOundation

is tsoilt hy people utilizing oca oc coral infOrmal ion si stems My

goal as your CEO is to proporl nianage our people and sterns so

lie coiporate finance deportment is strotepic component of First

Goaranci Bancshares ccorent and Iiitoao occess

Eric Dosch

CR at Fi ii ciii Ott car ressurer and Sccr tary

Hi 1GO RaN YB Ii IN

Bar or Vi Pm dciii si hiP Financial Otticar

NB GUARANTY OANI

Eric Dosch

cteet Fiiiaricra Ottic

First Guaranty Baneshares Inc it Arirrirot IHpoi
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u4 Attitude Aptitude Areomplislunents

Report from the Executive Vice President

Many commentaries on tile corrent U.S economic conchtions

indicate that there remain prohlems ss ith restoring credit to small

hosinesses ss hich rnos be linked to continued decline in residential

real ostato aloes

For example the national CoreLogic I-louse Price Index recently

sot post hohhle low previoosl\ sot in March C009 Many states

humeoss ners hold negative equity in their real estate holdings as

the current market value is less than the halances of the ansount

owed led hy Nevada Ari/ona and Florida Louisiana hometas ners

are not so encumhered For exomple recenth Louisiana had the

ttith lowest foreclosure rate hi the nation among all st at es

Louisiana ss as among the lirst states to have received its censos

data ss hich reflected percent gain to l.A million despite

the des astotion ut IIoiricane Katrina As result ot the storm

Ness Orleans lost 2t3 peicent of its opulation compared ss ith the

200t census That the State finished the decade with an us eroll

poptdation increose speaks well to the resiliency of the tates

people and its econonp

In foct it speaks well ot the ottitude aptitude end

accomplishments ot the pn pl of Louisiana that in spite tss

major ens ironmental disasters one notural Kotiino end one

manmade the BP oil pill Louisiana continued to mm ohead

The states joh perlormance outperthrmed the South and the

in 0tt adding ohs ot tO ter rote than the country and the region

measured since Januar\ 2tOS

Atter coming lila great ear of linoncial perfOrmance in 2010

the people ot First Otiarents Bank look back with sense ut

accomplishment in the recent past ond look forward to an es eis

het er ear linancial per rmance in 2011

Sincereh

Larry Stark

dxc udve Vi Pie dent Guaran idle

AC NF

etrm rc 5h -y

Larry Stark

utiee Vu.e Pxodcn

Guaranty Square

11



Glenn Duhon Sr

neirwrr Vine Pies dent arid Banking Center Manager

Abb ciii

Report from the Senior Vice President

and Banking Center Manager

First Guaront Banks Soothu ost Loosiana Banking Centers

proclocerl another soccosfol oar doe to the positive attitude

and excellent aptitorlo of ow employees coupled with the

continued loi alta that our costomocs han for our linancial

institotion

During 2010 Jonninps Banking Contor doposits increased

in excess of Sb million althongh loan domancl decreased

51.1 million The Ahhei illo Banking Center experienced

an increase in deposits of 523.3 million and an increase in

loan olumc of S12.2 million Together these tic locations

increased deposits hs Sp.F million and loan volome Sio.S

million cc ith minimal loss Total deposits Ibr hoth locations are

hLc..3 nullion and roral loan olionc is Sftntj nollion

Additionally hoth locetions hac groci in the areas of

agricultore and commercial lending cc ith lbcus on federalli

goeranteecl lenrling through the United States Smell Business

Administration SBA and the United States Bepartment of

Agricoltore USDA

The success anrl accomplishments of First Goaranti Banks

Banking Centers would ho impossihle without our dedicated

emploc ees and loyal customers woold like to personalls

thank all of oor employees anrl customers for their continuerl

commitnient

Sincereli

Glenn Duhon Sr

enior Vi Pies dent and Banking Cent Manager AbbevrIh

FIRS AN BAN

Fti st Guaraoty Bancehares Inc 20 rtoonrrt Repnr
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Attitticle Aptitude AecuruptihuwuK

First Guaranty Bank OFFICERS

EXECUTIVE

Alton Lewis Jr.t

Vice Chairman of the Board and

Chief Fxeriitive Offirer

Guaranty Square

Michael Sharp

President and Chief Lending Officer

Guaranty Square

Larry A. Stark

Executive Vice President

Guaranty Square

Eric Dosch

Senior Vice President and

Chief nancial fiuvi

Guaranty Square

SENIOR
VICE PRESIDENTS

Glenn Duhon Sr
Southwest Lou iana Reg onal Manager

Abheville

Michael Lofaso

Suuthea Luuisicnc Regiunul Mdndger

Ponchatoula

Vice Presidents

Mark Bagwell

Thomas Brothers

Cheryl Brumfield

Christopher Coker

Ronald Edmonds

Denise Fletcher

Bernadette Kemp

Stephen Lamptnn

Vera Matthews

William McCormick Sr

Evan Singer

Richard Stark

Christy Wells

Renee Young

Assistant

Vice Presidents

Edward Bertontere

Ten Duncan

Pamela Gaspard

Joyce Glass

Ludrick Hidalgo

Mtkki Kelley

Rufus Lemaire

Robert Mizell

Ronald Pittman

Lynn Westmoreland

Pamela Carrico

Frances Carrington

Vanessa Drew

Jeannette Ernst

Danielle Fridge

Shirley Jones

Julie Lewis

Michael Mosbey

Diane Patterson

Scott Schilling

Rondy Viuknan

Chase Wainwright

Amy Wales

Qjjiccisqf

Ftzst Guoto ottj
Be axltoi cx Inc

Officers

16



Dollars 7L LllLOLs

Core Deposits
2010 2009

$658 SoS

ij

jJ
Vivian 30 PD

OilCity 21 18

4j

nton 44 5/1

Haynesville 19 13

9mer 49 LI

61

9j

Dubach 33 21

36 iS 30

yille $50 iS
Denham Springs 28 iS

10 Walker 22 1/

11 Kentwood 26

jJ
13

Amite 70 80

Independence 21 19

14

16

Jj4n Office $106 89

Gnaranty West 33

ftatonia 70 So

First Guaranty Saneshares Inc 2010 Uiiitinl L0pn
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Allit ude Ap lit ude eumplishmeu Is

CiLcuLges

a0o
Morehoose

Ctaihnrne
Union or i-nore increase

Bossier

Carroll

CarrolL
Lincoln

ii

Coddo

veser 200 to less than 30

1I Ooachila Richlood increase
ad is oo

Rieoville Jackson

10o to less than 20

Red River Caldwell Franklin increaseGe Solo

Wino Teosos

Catahoola
0o to loss than tfl

increaseLa Salle

Sahive
Natchitoches

Grant

Coocordia

Parishes that lost

population

Rapides

Vernon
Avoyelles

Feliciano

Feliciava WashioRtoo
St Helena

Eva oge line

Reaoregard Alleo
St Laodry

Pointe Coopee Tangipahon

Ratoo

Raton Rouge Sf.Tammany

Rooge

Jefferson Acadia

Davis
Se Martin

Ibervitle

JahoCalcasieo Lafayette

The Baptist Orleans

St James
Jeflersoo

Iberia

Assumpliov
SI CharlesCameron

Vermilion
St Reroard

St Marlin

SI Mary
Laloorche

Terreborve

Plaqoemives

.18



Source U.S Census

ci itt it

Allen

Jeffersan

Davis

tic oe

St lot

Li tde
toiii tc mt mc

Vt
Baton

Bate Bongu

Bnnge

Lalaette

St Martin
Ibeenille

En itjli ii

Acadia

Vermitian

Be mug mutt

Ca Ic ie

Camera

PARISH

Iberia

lequ

St Tammany

Beleans

St Be eva

St Jamal

Assamptian

St Martin

St Mary

Ten ebonea

Jelleesen

St Charles

La tan rehe

2000 2010 CHANGE

lag mine

Ascension 76.627 107215 39.921

Livingston 91.814 128.026 39.441

St Tammany 191.268 233.740 22.2fl

Tangipahoa 100.588 121097 20.391

Lafayette 190503 221.578 16.31t

West Baton Rouge 21.601 23 788 10.12

St Charles 48.072 52.780 9.79

Vermitlien 53807 57999 7.79l

Washington 43.926 47168 7.38i

St Martin 48583 52.160 7.36t

Lofourche 89974 96.318 7.051

Terrebenne 104.503 111860 7.04

St John the Baptist 43044 45.924 6.691

EastBatonRouge 412.852 440.171 6.621

St Helena 10.525 11203 6.44

PARISH 2000 2010 CHANGE

Acadia .8.861 61 773 4.95A

St James 21.216 22102 4.18

West Feliciana 15.111 15.625 3.40e

St Mary 53.500 54650 2.15

Ibervitte 33.320 33.387 0.20t

Pointe Coupee 22.763 22.802 0.17t

Assumption 23.388 23421 0.14

Iberia 73 266 73240 0.04t

Evangetine 35.434 33.984 4.09

St Landry 87.700 83384 4.92t

Jefferson 455 466 432552 5.03t

East Feticiana 21.360 20.267 5.12

Ptaquemines 26.757 23042 13.88e

Orleans

St Bernard

484671

67229

343829 29.061

35.897 46.60

First Guaianty Bancshuures Inc 2011 lrtrntet Repet
1.9



AtitucIc AjIutucle Ac cc1flp1IshuIcflt

Vivian

Oil City

Benton

Haynesville

Honier

Duhach

Jennings

Abbeville

Denharn Springs

10 Walker

11

12

c3

17

15

16

17

Ct/LU

Kentwood

Arnite

Independence

Main Office

Guaranty West

Berryland

Ponchatonia
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Banking Centers

South Louisiana

Abbeville Banking Center 337 893 1777 800 306 3276

799 Wes Summers Drve Abbeville LA 70510

Amite Banking Center 985 748 5111

100 East Oak Street Amite LA 70422

Denham Springs Banking Center 225 791 7964

2231 South Range Ave Denham Springs LA 70725

HAMMOND BANKING CENTERS

Guaranty Square 985 375 0300 888 375 3093

400 East Thomas Street Hammond LA 70401

Guaranty West 985 375 0371

2111 West Thomas Street Hammond LA 70401

Independence Banking Center 985 878 6777

455 We Railroad Avenue Independence LA 70443

Jennings Banking Center t1371 224 1712

500 North Gary Jennings LA 70546

Kentwood Banking Center 985 229 3361

301 Avenue Kentwood LA 70444

PONCHATOULA BANKING CENTERS

Ponchatoula 985 386 2000

195 North 6th Street Ponchatoula LA 70454

Berryland 985 386 5430

105 Berry and Shopping Ctr Ponchatoula LA 70454

Walker Banking Center 225 664 5549

29215 Walker Road South Wa ker LA 70785

North Louisiana

Benton Banking Center 318 965 2221

189 Burt Boulevard Benton LA 71006

Dubach Banking Center 318 777 3461

117 East Hico btreet Oubach LA 71a35

Haynesville Banking Center 318 624 1171

10065 ghway 79 Haynesville LA 7103B

Homer Banking Center 318 927 3000

401 North 2nd Street Homer LA 71040

Oil City Banking Center 318 995 6682

126 South Highway Oil ty LA 71061

Vivian Banking Center 318 375 3202

102 East Louisiana Avenue Vivan LA 71082

Sen ice24 ATM Locations

South Louisiana

Abbeville LA 799 West Summers Orive

Amite LA 100 East Oak Stroet

Denham Springs LA 2231 South

Hammond LA

1201 West University Avonue

2111 West Thomas Street

400 East Thomas Street

North Oaks Medical Center

North Oaks Reha bilitation Center

Independence LA

455 West Railroad Avenue

Lallie Kemp Regional Medical Center

Jennings LA 500 North Cary

Kentwood LA 708 Avenue

Loranger LA 19518 Highway 40

Ponchatoula LA

105 Berryland Shopping Center

195 North 6th Street

Robert LA 22628 Highway 190

Walker Louisiana 29815 Walker Road South

North Louisiana

Benton LA 189 Burt Boulevard

Dubach LA 117 East Hico Street

Haynesville LA 100o5 Highway 79

Homer LA

401 North 2nd Street

Homer Memorial Hospital

Oil City LA 126 South Highway

Vivian LA 102 East Louisiana Avenue

vc VC -%r rywvCT rt rwwsr %i

Range Avenue

First Guaranty Bancshai as Inc 10 \itrzuut 1cpo
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Altitude Apbtude Accomplishments

Total Assets

Cm millions

1994 $168

1995 $184

199b $198

1997 $253

1998 $282

1999 $547

2000 $475

2001 $431

1994 $11

1995 $13

1996 $15

1997 $20

1998 $23

1999 $51

2000 $45

2001 $39

1200

2002 $435
1000

2003 $485

2004 $607

2005 $714

2006 $715

2007 $808

2008 $871

2009 $931

800

600

400

Common
Stockholders Equity
in millions

94 95 96 97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 09 09 10

200

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

2002 $41

2003 $46

2004 $52

2005 $54

2006 $59

2007 $66

2008 $65

2009 $74

94 95 96 97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10
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Net Income 10

in niiIions

1994 $1.7 2002 $3.5

1995 $2.1 2003 $7.0

1996 $3.3 2004 $8.6

1997 $3.4 2005 $6.0

1998 $3.7 2006 $8.4

1999 $2.9 2007 $9.8

2000 $4.4 2008 $5.5

2001 $6.0 2009 $7.6

Total Deposits
1200

in miflions

1000

1994 $154 2002 $361

1995 $168 2003 $376

1996 $179 2004 $481

1997 $223 2005 $633

1998 $257 2006 $626

1999 $461 2007 $723

2000 $410 2008 $780

2001 $358 2009 $800

WLOtsfjji1jJ

Ii
94 95 96 97 96 99 00 10203040506070609 10

600

660

400

200

s4 Sb 96 99 99 00 01 02 02 04 US 06 07 09 09 10
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Allitiidc Apliliicle Accoiiiplisiiiicnls

Loans net of unearned Boo

income
in millions

100

1994 $114 2002 $354
600

1995 $118 2003 $381

1996 $126 2004 $456 500

1997 $155 2005 $492

1998 $177 2006 $507 400

1999 $263 2007 $575

2000 $309 2008 $606 300

2001 $340 2009 $590

Mflhi.tI 200

100

500

Investments

in millions

1994 32 2002

1995 35 2003 59

1996 50 2004 $107

1997 67 2005 $175

1998 73 2006 $158

1999 $212 2007 $142
200

2000 $117 2008 $139

2001 57 2009 $262

W4oRoSItS 100

94 95 95 97 98 99 00 10203040506070809 10

94 95 95 97 98 99 00 1020304 0505070809 10
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Banks Headquartered in Louisiana J7nukcd hry 4.s.rt SIA.i rrs tf Icrcrritrcc 312010

Wjyaeytyatinnat Bank

Iheriahank

Hancock Bank nt Lnnisiana

Cnnrmunity Trust Bank

First NBC Bank

First Guaranty Bank

MidSnuth Bank

Natinnal Associatinn

clelity Homentead

nBarak
Cult Cnast Bank

and Trust Cnmpany

Rid Rincr Bank

Fir Bank and Trust

Tnche Federal Bank

Omni Bank

First American Bank

and Trust

First Federal Bank

nt Lnuisiana

Camernn State Bank

Sahine State Bank

arid Trust Cnmpany

Hnme Bank

Dusines First Bank

Crescent Bank Trust

The Evangaline Bank

and Trust Company

lntt Davis Bank

Trust Cnmpany

Prngrcssivc Bank

Cnncnrdia Bank

Trust CnniFany

Quad ta
Independeirt Bank

The Peonies State Rank

54 City Bank Trust Co Natchitoches

55 St Landry Bank

and Trust Company Opelousas

SB Tho Union Bank Markssille

67 Citiuens Savings Bank Bogalusa

58 Farmers-Merchants Bank

Trust Cojypany Breaus Bridgg

69 Gibsland Bank

Trust Company Gibsland

60 Community First B0nk New lb0ria

61 Ihem lie Bank Plaguemine

62 Citizens Bank Ville Platte

63 Delta Bank Vidalia

64 Citivens Bank

Trust Compgpy Plaguemine

65 Patterson State Bank Patterson

66 Richland State BanS Rayville

67 Home Federal Bank Shreveport

68 Investar Back Baton Rouge

69 State Investors Bank Metairie

70 Mississippi River Bank Belle Chasse

71 United Community Bank Gonzales

72 Bank ot Coushatta Coushatta

73 City Savings Bank

Trust Company De Ridder

74 The First National Bank

ot Jeanerette Jeanerette

76 First National Bank

in DeRidder De Ridder

76 Fir National Bank Arcadia

77 Tn Parish Bank Eunice

78 Florida Parishes Bank Hammond

79 BankotZachary

BO South Latourche Bank

Trust Compgpy Larose

81 Bank ot Montgomery Montgomery

82 Peoples Bank and Trust Company
ot Pointe Coupee Parish New Roads

63 First National Bank USA Boutte

84
Fidelity

Bank Baton Rouge

85 Citizens Bank

Trust Comp9py Spghill

86 Bank ot Ahbevillo

Trust Company Abbeville

87 American Bank

Trust Company 9pelousas

88 Cit vens Back Trust Company

ot VivianLA Vivian

89 Homeland Federal

Savings Bank Columbia

90 The Bank Jennings

91 The
Highlands

Bank Jackson

92 Plaquemine Bank

Trus9pany Plaquemine

93 Marion State Bank Marion

94 Washington State Bank Washington

95 Guaranty Bank Mamou

96 Bank ot Winntield

Trust Company Winntield

97 Guaranty Bank

arid Trust Corypppy New Roads

98 Franklin State Bank

j9gçopppppy Wincsboro

99 Guaranty Bank Trust Comt any
ot Delhi LA Delhi

100 Tensas State Bank Newellton

101 Winnsboro State Bank

Trust Company Winnsboro

102 State Bank

Trust Company Golden Meadow

103 Feticiana Bank

Trust Company Clinton

104 Joneshoro State Bank Jonesboro

105 First Commun3y Bank Hammond

106 American Bank

Trust Company Covington

107 First Louisiana National Bank Brcaue Bridgo

108 Vermilion Bank

Trust Comp3py Kaplan

109 Citizens Bank

Trust Company Covin2torr

110 Bank ot Sunset

dod Trust Cusrpvrry Suuuet

111 St Tammany Homestead Savings

and Loan Association Covingtnn

112 CaIdwell Bank

Trust Compgpy Columbia

113 Catahoula LaSatle Bank Jonesville

114 BankotRuston Ruston

116 Eschange Bank and Trust Company
Natchitochcs LA Natchitoches

116 Eureka Homestead Metairie

117 Landmark Bank Clinton

118 Bank ot St Francisville St Francisv lie

119 Bank ot Louisiana New Orleans

120 Kaplan State Bank Kaplan

121 Bank ot Groensburg Greenppg
122 Farmers State Bank

Trust uo church Point

123 Union Savings

and Loan Association New Orleans

124 Bank ot Erath Erath

126 Bank otppyç4pp Gueydan

126 First Financial Bank

and Trust Co Plaquemine

127 Teche Bank Trust Co Saint Martinvillo

128 Coltas Banking Company Co tae

129 Hihernia Homestead Bank New Orleans

130 Jackson Parish Bank Jonesboro

131 The Vernon Bank Leesville

132 Citizens Progressive Bank Columbia

133 BankotJena Jena

134 Rayne Bu Iding

and Loan no ation Rayne

136 Hodge Bank

Trust Company Hodge

136 Bank ot Ringgold Ringgold

137 Simmespod State Bank Simmenport

138 The Bank ot Commerce White Castle

139 First National Bank

ot Benton Benton

140 Beauregard FSB Deridder

141 Banile State Bank Banile

142 Bank ot Maringourn Maringourn

143 Bank ot Oak Ridge Oak Ridge

144 South Louisiana

Business Bank Prarrievi lv

145 Church Point Bank

and Trust Company Church Point

146 Abbeville Building Loan State-

Chartered Savings Banki Abbeville

147 Commercial Capital Bank Delhi

148 The Mertyppge State Bank Mer Rouge

149 Mutual Savings

and Loan Association

160 Sicily Inland State Bank

161 Tn-State Bank and Trust

162 Progressive National Bank

ot DeSoto Parish

153 Went Carroll Community Bank____________

164 Peoples Bank ____________

165 Lakeside Bank

166 The Merchants

Farmers Bank

Him Orleans

Latayette

Baton Rç9ge

Choudrant

New Orleans

Hammond

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27 Liberty Bank

and Trust Company

28 American Gateway Bank

29 Citizens Natroiral Bank N.A

30 Centra Prnpressive Bank

31 Community Bank

32 Snirtli Lou siana Bank

Hounra LA

33 Resource Bank

34 Filth District Savings Bank

36 Coastal Commerce Bank

36 Metairie Bank

Trust Company

37
Synergy

Bank

38 St Martin Bank

and Trust Comppny

39 First National Bankers Baiak

40
Coirarnunrty

Bank ot Louisiana

41 Bank ot New Orleans

42 Bank ot Commerce

Trust Co

43 Cottonport Bank

44 Bank Trust Cqppgpy

46 Gult Coast Bank

46 Cross Keys Bank

47 St Landry Homestead

Federal Savings Bank

48
Guaranty Savings

Bank

49 Southern Heritage Bank

50 Merchairts Farmers Bank

Trust Cojypny

51 Payne State Bank

Trust Company

First National Bank

ot Louisiana

MBL Bank

Latayette

New Orleans

New Orleans

Alevandria

New Orleans

Franklin

Metairie

Vac Irene

Lake Charles

Lake Cl aries

33y
Latayctte

Baton Po9ge

New Orleans

Vi le Platte

ieniaings

Winnsl nrc

Vida ia

Monroo

3OL
New Orleans

Baton Roçg
Bonnier

City

Lacnmtac

Racclanct

Hnuiara

Covington

New Orleans

Houma

Metainie

HoLinaa

St Madinvil

Baton Poug_
Manntield

Metainie

Crowley

Cottonport

Morgan City

Abbevilie

Saint Joseph

Opelounan

Mctainie

Jonenville

Leenville

Payne

Crowley

Minden

Metainie

çjy Inland

Haughton

Manntieid

Oak Grove

Chatiaam

lake Charles

Melville
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ifi
Attitude Aptitude Accortiplishmeuts

Managements Discussion Analysis of

Financial Condition Results of Operation

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

At or For the Years Endd December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Year End Balance Sheet Data

Securities $481961 $261829 $139162 $142068 $158352

Federal funds sold 9129 13279 838 35869 6793

Loans net of unearned income 575640 589902 606369 575256 507195

Allowance for loan losses 8317 7919 6482 6193 6675

Total assetsiti 1132792 930847 871233 807994 715216

Total deposits 1007383 799746 780372 723094 626293

Borrowings 12589 31929 18122 13494 24568

Stockholders equityttt 97938 94935 65487 66355 59471

Common stockholders equityt 76963 74165 65487 66355 59471

Average Balance Sheet Data

Securities $342589 $245952 $127586 $152990 $178419

Federal funds sold 11007 24662 17247 8083 3115

Loans net of unearned income 593429 599609 600854 543946 505623

Total earning assets 964039 906158 752093 712212 690057

Total assets 1015681 948556 797024 751237 726593

Total deposits 883440 842274 707114 658456 622869

Borrowings 27324 22907 16287 23450 42435

Stockholders equity 99575 77135 67769 63564 56640

Common stockholders equity 79245 70055 67769 63564 56640

Performance Ratios

Return on average assets 0.99% 0.80% 0.69% 1.30% 1.16%

Return on average common equity 12.65% 10.84% 8.13% 15.37% 14.88%

Return on average tangible assetstSt 0.99% 0.80% 0.69% 1.30% 1.16e

Return on average tangible common equityiSi 12.95% 11.14% 8.77% 16.47% 15.73%

Net interest margin 3.96% 3.57% 4.25% 4.79% 4.60%

Average loans to average deposits 67.17% 71.19% 84.97% 82.61% 81.18%

Efficiency ratioiui 56.20% 60.80% 70.73% 55.80% 1.80%

Efficiency ratio excluding amortization of

intangibles and securities transactionsitt 59.25% 61.99% 61.20% 54.59% 49.90%

Full-time equivalent employees year end 246 230 225 222 196

For the years ended 2006 2007 and 2008 amounts have been restated in 2009 to reflect pnor penod adjustments

Average tangible assets represent average assets less average core deposit intangibles

Average tangible equity represents averege equity
less

averege core deposit intangibles

58



At or For the Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Capital Ratios

Average stockholders equity to average assets 9.800/n 8.13% 8.50% 8.46% 7.80%

Average tangible equity to average

tangible assetsu2l 9.64% 7.95% 8.25% 8.31% 7.7 1%

Common stockholders equity to total assets 6.79% 7.97% 752% 8.21% 8.32o

Tier leverage capitaV 8.69% 9.58% 7.88% 7.38% 8.11%

Tier capitaft 11.98% 11.90% 9.19% 10.13% 9.85%

Total risk based capital3 13.03% 12.97% 10.11% 11.09% 10.96%

Income Data

dollars in thousands

Interest income $51390 $47191 $47661 $55480 $50937

Interest expense131 13223 14844 15881 21934 19769

Net interest income3 38167 32347 31780 33546 31168

Provision for loan losses 5654 4155 1634 1918 4419

Noninterest income

excluding securities transactions 6741 5909 5689 5176 4601

Securities gains losses 2824 2056 478 234

Loss on securities impairment 829 4611
Noninterest expense3 26827 24007 23241 21341 18373

Earnings before income taxes131 15251 11321 7982 14985 12744

Net income0 10025 7595 5512 9772 8431

Net income available to common shareholders131 8692 7001 5512 9.772 8431

Per Common Share Data

Net earnings31 $1.56 $1.26 $0.99 $1.76 $1.52

Cash dividends paid 0.64 0.64 0.64 0.63 0.60

Book value3 13.84 13.34 11.78 11.94 10.70

Dividend payout ratio3 40.94% 50.82% 64.53% 35.85% 39.56%

Weighted average number of shares

outstanding 5559644 5559644 5559644 5559644 5559644

Number of shares outstanding year end 5559644 5559.644 5559644 5559644 5.559644

Market data

High $18.62 $25.00 $25.00 $24.30 $23.42

Low $17.00 $12.00 $24.30 $23.42 $18.57

Trading Volume 181353 165386 368454 924.692 535264

Stockholders of record 1361 1356 1343 1293 1181

Asset Quality Ratios

Nonperforming assets to total assets 2.73% 1.68% 1.14% 1.39% 1.85o

Nonperfnrmingassetstoloaps
5.38% 265% 1.63% 1.95/n 2.61%

Loan loss reserve to nonperforming assets 26.86% 50.68% 65.46% 55.26% 59.43%

Net charge-offs to average loans 0.89% 0.45% 0.22% 0.50% 1.06%

Provision for loan loss to average loans 0.95% 0.69% 0.27% 0.35% 0.87%

Allowance for loan loss to total loans 1.44% 1.34% 1.07% 1.08% 1.32%

Average tang die assets represents average assets less average cnre deposit intangibles

Average tangible equity represents average equity less average cnre deposit intangibles

For the years ended 2006 2007 and 2008 amounts have been restated in 2009 to reflect pnor penod adjustments

First Gusrarity Bancshnres Inc 2010 Aniiurst Repori
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.4. AttItude Aptitude Accomplishments

Introduction

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc became the holding

company for First Guaranty Bank on July 27 2007

in corporate reorganization Prior to becoming

the holding company of First Guaranty Bank First

Guaranty Bancshares Inc had no assets liabilities or

operations

This discussion and analysis reflects our financial

statements and other relevant statistical data and is

intendd fn nhance your understanding fourfinancial

condition and results of operations Reference should

be made to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Selected Financial Data and the Notes to the Financial

Statements presented in this report in order to obtain

better understanding of the commentary which follows

Special Note Regarding Forward-

Looking Statements

Congress passed the Private Securities
Litigation Act

of 1995 in an effort to encourage corporations to

provide information about companys anticipated

future financial performance This act provides safe

harbor for such disclosure which protects us from

unwarranted litigation if actual results are different

from Managements expectations This discussion

and analysis contains forward-looking statements and

reflects Managements current views and estimates of

future economic circumstances industry conditions

company performance and financial results The words

may should expect anticipate intend

plan continue believe seek estimate and

similar expressions are intended to identify forward

looking statements These forward looking statements

are subject to number of factors and uncertainties

which could cause our actual results and experience

to differ from the anticipated results and expectations

expressed in such forward looking statements

Application of Critical Accounting
Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company

conform to generally accepted accounting principles

in the United States of America and to predominant

accounting practices within the banking industry

Certain critical accounting policies require judgment

and estimates which are used in the preparation of the

financial statements

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment of Investment

Securities

Securities are evaluated periodically to determine whether

decline in their value is other-than-temporary The

term other-than temporary is not intended to indicate

permanent decline in value Rather it means that

the prospects for near term recovery of value are not

necessarily favorable or that there is lack of evidence to

support fair values equal to or greater than the carrying

value of the investment Management reviews criteria

such as the magnitude and duration of the decune

the reasons for the decline and the performance and

valuation of the underlying collateral when applicable to

predict whether the loss in value is other-than-temporary

Once decline in value is determined to be other-than

temporary the carrying value of the security is reduced

to its fair value and corresponding charge to earnings

is recognized

Allowance for Loan Losses The Companys most

critical accounting policy relates to its allowance for

loan losses The allowance for loan losses is established

through provision for loan losses charged to expense

Loans are charged against the allowance for loan losses

when Management believes that the collectability of the

principal is unlikely The allowance which is based on

the evaluation of the collectability of loans and prior loan

loss experience is an amount Management believes will

be adequate to reflect the risks inherent in the existing

loan
portfolio and that exist at the reporting date The

evaluations take into consideration number of subtective

factors including changes in the nature and volume

of the loan portfolio overall
portfolio quality review of

specific problem loans current economic conditions that

may affect borrowers
ability to pay adequacy of loan

collateral and other relevant factors

Changes in such estimates may have significant impact

on the financial statements For further discussion of the

allowance for loan losses see the Allowance for Loan

Losses section of this analysis and Note and Note to

the Consolidated Financial Statements

Valuation of Goodwill Intangible Assets and Other

Purchase Accounting Adjustments

The Companys goodwill and intangible assets deemed

to have indefinite lives are no longer amortized but

are subject to annual impairment tests The Companys

Co



goodwill is tested for impairment 00 ao aonual basis

or more ofteo if eveots or circumstaoces iodicate that

there may he impairment goodwill impairment test

includes two steps Step one used to identify potential

impairment compares the estimated fair value of

reporting unit with its carrying amount including

goodwill If the estimated fair value of reporting unit

exceeds its carrying amount goodwill of the reporting

unit is considered not impaired If the carrying amount

of reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value

the second step of the goodwill impairment test is

performed to measure the amount of impairment

loss if any Step two of the goodwill impairment test

compares the implied estimated fair value of reporting

unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill

If the carrying amount of goodwill for that reporting unit

exceeds the implied fair value of that units goodwill

an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal

to that excess Based on Managements goodwill

impairment tests there was no impairment of goodwill

at December 31 2010 For additional information

on goodwill and intangible assets see Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements

2010 Financial Overview

Financial highlights for 2010 and 2DD9 are as follows

Net income for 2010 and 2009 was $10.0 million

and $7.6 million respectively Net income to

common shareholders after preferred stock

dividends was $8.7 million and $7.0 million for

2010 and 2009 with earnings per common share

of $1.56 and $1.26 respectively The increase in

net income was primarily the result of an increase

in net interest income due to larger investment

portfolio
and higher loan pricing The Company

also recognized gains from sales of securities of $2.8

million compared to $2.1 million for 2009

Net interest income for 2010 and 2009 was $38.2

milliun and $32.3 million respectively The net

interest margin for the Company was 4.0% at

December 31 2010 and 3.6% at December 31

2009

The provision for loan losses for 2010 was $5.7

million compared to $4.2 million for 2009

Total assets at December 31 2010 were $1133

billion an increase of $201.9 million or 21.7%

when compared to $930.8 million at December 31

2009 The increase in assets primarily resulted from

excess cash received from deposit growth which was

primarily invested in the securities portfolio

Investment securities totaled $482 million at

December 31 2010 an increase of $220.1 million

when compared to $261.8 million at December

31 2009 At December 31 2010 available for

sale securities at fair value totaled $322.1 million

an increase of $72 million when compared to

December 31 2009 The Company had $159.8

million in the held to maturity category as of December

31 2010 Securities in the held to maturity category

totaled $12.3 million at December 31 2009

The net loan
portfolio

at December 31 2010 totaled

$567.3 million decrease of $14.7 million from the

December 31 2009 level of $582.0 million Net

loans are reduced by the allowance for loan losses

which totaled $8.3 million fur December 31 2010

and $7.9 million for December 31 2009

Non-performing assets at December 31 2010 were

$31.0 million an increase of $15.3 million compared

to December 31 2009

Total deposits increased $207.6 million or 260%

in 2010 compared to the year ended December 31

2009

Return on average assets for the 12 months ending

December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 was

1.0% and 0.8% respectively Return on average

common shareholders equity for 2010 and 2009

were 12.7% and 10.8% respectively Return on

average assets is calculated by dividing net income

before preferred dividends by average assets Return

on common shareholders equity is calculated

by dividing net earnings applicable to common

shareholders by average common shareholders

equity

The Companys Board of Directors declared cash

dividends of $0.64 per common share in 2010 and

2009

Financial Condition

Assets Total assets at December 31 2010 were

$1133 billion an increase of $201.9 million or 21.7%

from $930.8 million at December 31 2009 Federal

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc 2010 Annual Report



.4. Attitude Aptitude

funds sold decreased $4.2 million from December 31

2DD9 to December 31 2010 and total loans for the

same period decreased $14.3 million Cash and due

from banks increased $2.3 million from 2DD9 to 2010

Additionally total investment securities increased

$22D.1 million to $482.D million from December 31

2DD9 to December 31 2010 Total deposits increased

by $207.6 million or 26.0% trom 2009 to 2010 At

December 31 2010 the Company had no long-term

borrowings compared to long-term borrowings of

$20.0 million at December 31 2009

Investment Securities The securities portfolio

consisted principally of U.S Government agency

securities corporate debt securities and mutual funds

or other equity securities The securities portfolio

provides us with relatively stable source of income

and provides balance to interest rate and credit risks

as compared to other categories of assets

The securities portfolio totaled $482.0 million at

December 31 2010 representing an increase of

$220.1 million from December 31 2009 The primary

changes in the portfolio consisted of $1.0 billion in

purchases sales totaling $44.3 million and calls and

maturities of $768.1 million

At December 31 201 approximately 2.4% of the

securities portfolio excluding Federal Home Loan Bank

stock matures in less than one year while securities

with maturity dates over 10 years totaled 26.9% of the

portfolio At December 31 2010 the average maturity of

the securities portfolio was 6.5 years compared to the

average maturity at December 31 2009 of 6.3 years

During the fourth quarter of 2009 three agency securities

with par value of $10.0 million were transferred from

available for sale to held to maturity These three

securities had fair market value totaling $9.8 million

and an average maturity of approximately 14 years

The unrealized loss of $0.2 million was recorded as

component of other comprehensive loss and will be

amortized over the life of the securities or until the

security is called

At December 31 2010 securities totaling $322.1

million were classified as available for sale and $159.8

million were classified as held to maturity as compared

to $249 milhnn and $12 millinn resprtivly at

December 31 2009

Securities classified as available for sale are measured

at fair market value For these securities the Company

obtains fair value measurements from an independent

pricing service The fair value measurements consider

observable data that may include dealer quotes market

spreads cash flows market yield curves prepayment

speeds credit information and the instruments

contractual terms and conditions among other things

Securities classitied as held to maturity are measured

at book value See Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for additional information

The book yields on securities available for sale ranged

from 0.8% to 10.9% at December 31 2010 exclusive

of the effect of changes in fair value reflected as

component of stockholders equity The book yields on

held to maturity securities ranged from 2.1% to 4.0%

Securities classified as available for sale had gross

unrealized losses totaling $5.5 million at Ducember 31

2010 These losses include $4.0 million in unrealized

losses on U.S Government agency securities which

have been in loss position for less than 12 months

The Company believes that
it

will collect all amounts

contractually due and has the intent and the ability to

hold these securities until the fair value is at least equal

to the carrying value At December 31 2009 secudties

classified as available for sale had gross unrealized losses

Total Assest
in us
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totaling $2.8 million See Note to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for additional information

Average securities as percentage of average interest

earning assets were 35.5% and 27.1% at December 31

2010 and 2009 respectively This increase reflected

Hi part Moridgeiiierits decisiuri tu depluy certdiri

amount of funds into investment securities rather than

loans to manage its interest rate risk in low interest

rate environment in 2010 At December 31 2010 and

2DD9 $271.5 million and $154.5 million in securities

were pledged respectively

In the second quarter of 2010 the Company sold the

$12.1 million that remained in the held to maturity

category This represented approximately 4.0% of the

total investment
portfolio

and 1.0% of assets Several of

the securities sold included mortgage-backed securities

and agency bullet securities which were no longer part

of Managements investment portfolio strategy During

the third quarter of 2010 the Company experienced

significant deposit growth but decreased loan demand

Deposits grew approximately $123.0 million or 14.0%

from June 30 2010 to December 31 2010 Net

loans declined $38.0 million or 6.0% during the same

period Investment securities increased $142.0 million

or 42c from June 30 2010 to December 31 2010

Market conditions continued to be historically volatile

and interest rates declined to levels not seen in decades

Given the changes in the Companys balance sheet

observed during the third quarter and following the

completion of five year strategic plan securities

purchased pursuant to this plan were classified as held to

maturity The Company determined the unprecedented

market conditions and volatility coupled with revised

five year strategic plan that waiting period of one quarter

was appropriate based on the materiality conditions and

the type of securities in the held to maturity portfolio sold

during the second quarter of 2010

The held to maturity portfolio is comprised of government

sponsored enterprise securities such as FHLB FNMA

FHLMC and FFCB The securities have maturities of 15

years or less and the securities are used to collateralize

public funds The Company has maintained public

funds iii excess uf $175.0 iiiilliuii since Deceiriber 2007

Management believes that public funds will continue

to be significant part of the Companys deposit base

and will need to be collateralized by securities in the

investment portfolio

Loans The origination of loans is the primary use

of our financial resources and represents the largest

component of earning assets At December 31 2010

the loan portfolio floans net of unearned income

totaled $575.6 million decrease of approximately

$14.3 million or 2.4% from the December 31 2009

level of $589.9 million The decrease in net loans

primarily includes reduction of $13.1 million in real

estate construction and land development loans

reduction of $5.8 million in commercial and industrial

loans reduction of $7.9 million in non farm non

residential loans secured by real estate partially offset

by an increase of $5.6 million in multifamily loans

Loans represented 57.1c of deposits at December 31

2010 compared to 73.8c of deposits at December

31 2009 Loans secured by real estate decreased

$17.7 million to $459.4 million at December 31 2010

Commercial and industrial loans decreased $5.8 million

to $76.6 million at December 31 2010 Real estate

and related loans comprised 79.8% of the portfolio in

2010 as compared to 80.9% in 2009 Commercial and

industrial loans comprised 13.3% of the portfolio in

2010 as compared to 14.0% in 2009

Total Loans
in rniuinnx
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Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

Loan Purtfulio Contposition The following table sets furth the composition of our loon portfolio excluding loons held

for sale by type of loan at the dates indicated

December 31

2010 2009 2008

As%of As/of As%of

Balance Category Balance Category Balance Category

in thousands

Real estate

Construction and

land development 65570 11.4% 78686 13.3% 92029 15.2%

Farmland 13337 2.3% 11352 1.9% 16403 2.7%

1-4 family residential 73158 12.7% 77470 13.1% 79285 13.1%

Multifamily 14544 2.5% 8927 1.5% 15707 2.6%

Non-farm non-residential 292809 50.8% 300673 51.0% 261744 43.0%

Total real estate 459418 79.7% 477108 80.8% 465168 76.6%

Agricultural 17361 3.0% 14017 2.4% 18536 3.0%

Commercial and industrial 76590 13.3% 82348 13.9% 105555 17.4%

Consumer and other 22970 4.0% 17226 2.9% 17926 3.0s

Total loans before
__________ ______ _________ _________ ______

unearned income 576339 100.0% 590699 100.0% 607185 100.0%

Less unearned income 699 797 816
Total loans net of

unearned income $575640 $589902 $606369

December 31

2007 2006

As%of As%of

Balance Category Balance Category

in thousands

Real estate

Construction and

land development 98127 17.0% 49837 9.9%

Farmland 23065 4.0% 25582 5.0%

1-4 family residential 84640 14.7% 67022 13.2%

Multifamily 13061 2.3% 14702 2.9%

Non-farm non-residential 236474 41.1% 256176 50.5%

Total real estate 455367 79.1% 413319 81.5%

Agricultural 16816 2.9% 16359 3.2%

Commercial and industrial 81073 14.1% 59072 11.6%

Consumer and other 22517 3.9% 18880 3.7%

Total loans before unearned income 575773 100.0% 507630 100.0%

Less unearned income 517 435

Total loans net of unearned income $575256 $507195
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Loan charge-offs taken during 2010 totaled $5.6

million compared to charge-offs of $2.9 million in

2009 Of the loan charge offs in 2010 approximately

$1.8 million were loans secured by real estate $3.4

million were commercial and industrial loans and

$0.4 million were consumer and other loans In 2010

recoveries of $0.4 million were recognized on loans

previously charged off as compared to $0.2 million in

2009

Nonpeijorrning Assets Nonperforming assets were

$31.0 million or 2.7% of total assets at Oecember

31 2010 compared to $15.6 million or 1.7% of total

assets at December 31 2009 The increase resulted

from $14.5 million increase in non accrual loans

and an increase of $0.9 million in 90 days past due

loans The increase in nonaccrual loans was primarily

in construction and land development multifamily

and non farm non residential loans The increase in

nonperforming assets was concentrated in less than

ten customer relationships

Deposits Total deposits increased by $207.6 million

or 26.0% to $1.01 billion at December 31 2010

from $799.7 million at December 31 2009 In 2010

noninterest bearing demand deposits decreased $0.9

million interest-bearing demand deposits increased

$3.9 million and savings deposits increased $6.4

million Time deposits increased $198.3 million or

45.1% The increase in deposits was principally du

to an increase of $88.7 million in public funds deposits

and deposit promotion program that increased

deposits by over $100.0 million The increase in

public fund deposits was the primary result of three

municipalities maintaining higher deposit balances

Public fund deposits totaled $356.2 million or 35.4%

of total deposits at December 31 2010 Six public

entities comprised $277.6 million or 77.9% of the total

public funds as of
December 31 2010 At December

31 2009 public fund deposits represented 33.6% of

total deposits with balance of $268.5 million

Borrowings Short term borrowings increased $0.7

million in 2010 to $12.6 million at December 31 2010

from $11.9 million at December 31 2009 Short term

borrowings are used to manage liquidity on daily or

otherwise short-term basis The short-term borrowings

at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively was

solely comprised of repurchase agreements Overnight

repurchase agreement balances are monitored daily for

sufficient collateralization

There were no long term borrowings at December 31

2010 compared to $20.0 million at December 31 2009

Stocitholders Equity Total stoc kholders equity

increased $3.0 million or 32% to $97.9 million at

December 31 2010 from $94.9 million at December 31

2009 The increase in stockholders equity is attributable

to the $10.0 million in consolidated earnings for 2010

which was partially offset by $3.6 million in dividends on

common stock $1.1 million in dividends on preferred

stock and $2.3 million decrease in the unrealized gain

on available for sale securities Included in stockholders

equity are two classes of preferred stock Series at $19.9

million and Series at $1 million Series and Series

were issued in August 2009 to the Treasury Department

See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for

additional information

The four most significant categories of the companys

loan portfolio are construction and land development real

estate loans family residential loans non-farm non

residential real estate loans and commercial and industrial

loans

The Companys credit policy dictates specific loan to value

and debt service coverage requirements The Company

generally requires maximum loan to value of 85.0%

and debt service coverage ratio of 1.25x to lOx for

non farm non residential real estate loans In addition

personal guarantees of borrowers are required as well as

applicable hazard title and flood insurance Loans may

have maximum maturity of five years and maximum

amortization of 25 years The Company may require

additional real estate or non real estate collateral when

deemed appropriate to secure the loan

The Company generally requires all family residential

loans to be underwritten based on the Fannie Mae

guidelines provided through Desktop Underwriter These

guidelines include the evaluation of risk and eligibiity

verification and approval of conditions credit and liabilities

employment and income assets property and appraisal

information It is required that all borrowers have proper

hazard flood and title insurance prior to loan closing

Appraisals and Desktop Underwriter approvals are good

for six months The Company has an in-house underwriter

review the final package for compliance to these guidelines
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.1 Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

Loan Maturities by Type The following table summarizes the sr-heduld repayments nf ur loan portfolio inrluding

non-accruals at December 31 2010 Loans having no stated repayment schedule or maturity and overdraft loans are

reported as being due in one year or less Maturities are based on the final contractual payment date and do not reflect

the effect of prepayments and scheduled principal amortization

One Year One Through After

or Less Five Years Five Years Total

in thousands

Real estate

Construction and land development 50377 11979 3214 65570

Farmland 6647 3863 2827 13337
1-4 family residential 19745 24098 29315 73158

Multifamily 7815 5426 1303 14544
Non-farm non-residential 114034 172283 6492 292809

Total real estate 198618 217649 43151 459418

Agricultural 7080 3414 6867 17361

Commercial and industrial 46185 23869 6536 76590
Consumer and other 7767 15054 149 22970

Total loans before unearned income $259650 $259986 $56703 $576339

Less unearned income 699
Total loans net of unearned income $575640

The following table sets forth the scheduled contractual maturities at December 31 2010 of fixed- and floating-rate

loans excluding non-accrual loans

December 31 2010

Fixed Floating Total

in thousands

One year or less

One to five years

Five to 15 years

Over 15 years

Subtotal

Nonaccrual loans

Total loans net of unearned income

Unearned Income

Total loans net of unearned income

67944

127401

2456

9735

207536

$167399

132345

30953

9388

340085

$235343

259746

33409

19123

547621

28718

$576339

699
$575640

At December 31 2010 fixed rate loans totaled $207.5 million or 37.9% of total loans excluding non-accrual loans and

variable rate loans totaled $340.1 or 62.1% of total loans excluding non accrual loans Throughout 2010 Management

added floors to floating rate loans primarily tied to the prime rate As of December 31 2010 the portfolio consisted of

$340.1 million in variable rate loans with $292.0 million or 85.8% at the floor rate
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Non-Per/onningAsscts The table below sets torth the amounts and categories of our non performing assets at the

dates indicated

At December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

in thousands

Non-accrual loans

Real estate loans

Construction and land development 3383 $2841 1644 1.841 $2676

Farmland 54 182 419 33

1-4 family residential 1480 2814 1445 1819 3202

Multifamily 1357

Non-farm non-residential 21944 7439 5263 4950 3882

Non-real estate loans

Agricultural 446

Commercial and industrial 76 830 275 978 267

Consumer and other 32 205 320 279 302

Total non-accrual loans 28718 14183 9129 10288 10362

Loans 90 days and greater delinquent

and still accruing

Real estate loans

Construction and land development

Farmland

family residential 1663 757 185 544 334

Multifamily

Non-farm non residential

Non-real estate loans

Agricultural

Commercial and industrial 17

Consumer and other 10 28

Total loans 90 days and greater

delinquent and still accruing 1673 72S 205 547 334

Total non performing loans 30391 14968 9334 10835 10696

Real estate owned

Construction and land development 231 89 84 2217

Farmland

1-4 family residential 232 292 223 170 78

Multifamily

Non-farm non-residential 114 366 256 119 245

Non-real estate loans

Agricultural

Commercial and industrial

Consumer and other

Total real estate owned 577 658 568 373 2540

Total non-performing assets $30968 $15626 $9902 $11208 $13236

Restructed loans 9535 51

Ratios

Non-performing assets to total loans 5.38% 2.65% 1.63% 1.95% 2.61%

Non-performing assets to total assets 2.73% 1.68% 1.14% 1.39% 1.85%

First Guaranty Baneshares Inc 2010 AnnuaL Report
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.4. Attitude Aptitude

The Company generally requires maximum loan-to-

value of 75.0% and debt service coverage ratio of

1.25x to lOx for construction land development loans

In addition detailed construction cost breakdowns

personal guarantees of borrowers and applicable

hazard title and flood insurance are required Loans

may have maximum maturity of 12 months for

the construction phase and maximum maturity

of 24 months for the sell-out phase The Company

may require additional real estate or non real estate

collateral when deemed appropriate to secure the loan

The Company has specific guidelines for the

underwriting of commercial and industrial loans that

is specific for the collateral type and the business

type Commercial and industrial loans are secured by

non real estate collateral such as equipment inventory

or accounts receivable Each of these collateral types

has maximum loan to value ratios Commercial and

industrial loans have the same debt service coverage

ratio requirements as other loans which is 1.25x to

Ox

The Company will allow exceptions to each of the above

policies with appropriate mitigating circumstances

and approvals The Company has defined credit

underwriting process for all loan requests The Company

actively monitors loan concentrations by industry type

and will make adjustments to underwriting standards

as deemed necessary The Company has loan review

department that monitors the performance and credit

quality nf loans Th Company has sperial assets

department that manages loans that have become

delinquent or have serious credit issues associated

with them

For new loan originations appraisals and evaluations

on all properties shall be valid for period not to

exceed two calendar years from the effective appraisal

date for non residential properties and one calendar

year from the effective appraisal date for residential

properties However an appraisal may be valid longer

if there has been no material decline in the property

condition or market condition that would negatively

affect the Banks collateral position This must be

supported with Validity Check Memorandum

For renewals with or without new money any

commercial appraisal greater than two years or greater

than one year for residential appraisals must be

updatd with Validity Chock Memurandum Any

renewal loan request in which new money will be

disbursed whether commercial or residential and the

appraisal is older than five years new appraisal must

be obtained

The Company does nOt require new appraisals

between renewals unless the loan becomes impaired

and is considered collateral dependent At this time

an appraisal may be ordered in accordance with the

Companys Allowance for Loan Losses policy

The Company does not mitigate risk using products

such as credit default agreements and/or credit

derivatives These accordingly have no impact on

our financial statements

The Company does not offer loan products with

established loan funded interest reserves

For the years ended December 31 2010 and

2009 gross interest income that would have been

recorded had our non-accruing loans been current

in accordance with their original terms was $1.7

million and $0.4 million respectively Interest income

recognized on such loans for 2010 was $3.7 million

Nonperforming assets totaled $31.0 million or 2.73

of total assets at December 31 2010 an increase of

$15.3 million from December 31 2009 Management

has not identified additional information on any

loans not already included in impaired loans or the

nonperforming asset total that indicates possible credit

problems that could caus doubt as to the ability of

borrowers to comply with the loan repayment terms

in the future

Nonaccrual loans increased $14.5 million from

December 31 2009 to December 31 2010 There

were increases in construction and land development

nonaccrual loans nonfarm nonresidential nonaccrual

loans and multi family non accrual loans

During 2010 there was $0.5 million increase in

construction and land development nonaccrual loans

This increase in nonaccrual construction and land

development was due mainly to three loans Two

of these loans were made to the same borrower to

purchase land for future development for total

outstanding balance of $0.6 million The third loan

was vacant land purchase for future development in

the amount of $1.3 million There was also total of
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$1.4 million in nonaccrual loans were moved to OREO

property and subsequently sold

Non farm non-residential nonaccrual loans increased

$14.5 million from December 31 2009 to December

31 2010 This increase is reflective of five loans two of

which were for the construction of climate controlled

storage facility These two loans totaled $8.0 million

to the same borrower third loan in the amount

of $3.8 million is to hotel which has seen drop

in revenue due to the recessions impact on the hotel

industry The remaining loans consist of church loan

in the amount of $2.6 million and $1.1 million loan to

non owner occupied real estate loan The $1.1 million

loan is secured by warehouse and has been added

to nonaccrual due to lack of occupancy of the building

Multi family non-accrual loans increased $1.4 million

during 2010 This was due to one loan in the amount

of $1.3 million secured by an apartment complex

This project has experienced slow sales of units due

to the recession and has implemented change

in Management to help correct the problem The

borrower has since decided to lease the remaining

units

At December 31 2010 there were decreases

of $54000 in farmland $1.3 million in 1-4 family

residential $0.8 million in commercial and industrial

and $0.2 million in consumer and other non accrual

loans See preceding table for further information

Allowance for Loon Losses The allowance for loan

losses is maintained at level considered sufficient

to absorb potential losses embedded in the loan

portfolio The allowance is increased by the provision

for anticipated loan losses as well as recoveries of

previously charged off loans and is decreased by loan

charge offs The provision is the necessary charge

to current expense to provide for current loan losses

and to maintain the allowance at an adequate level

commensurate with Managements evaluation of the

risks inherent in the loan portfolio Various factors are

taken into consideration when determining the amount

of the provision and the adequacy of the allowance

These factors include but are not limited to

past due and nonperforming assets

specific internal analysis of loans requiring special

attention

the current level of regulatory classified and

criticized assets and the associated risk factors with

each

changes in underwriting standards or lending

procedures and policies

charge-off and recovery practices

national and local economic and business

conditions

nature and volume of loans

overall portfolio quality

adequacy of loan collateral

quality of loan review system and degree of

oversight by its Board of Directors

competition and
legal and regulatory requirements

on borrowers

examinations of the loan portfolio by federal and

state regulatory agencies and examinations

and review by the companys internal loan review

department and independent accountants

The data collected from all sources in determining

the adequacy of the allowance is evaluated on

regular basis by Management with regard to current

national and local economic trends prior loss history

underlying collateral values credit concentrations and

industry risks An estimate of potential loss on specific

loans is developed in conjunction with an overall risk

evaluation of the total loan portfolio This evaluation is

inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are

susceptible to significant revision as new information

becomes available

The allowance consists of specific general and

unallocated components The specific component

relates to loans that are classified as doubtful

substandard or special mention For such loans

that are also classified as impaired an allowance

is established when the discounted cash flows for

collateral value or observable market price of the

impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that

loan The general component covers non classified

loans and is based on historical loss experience

adjusted for qualitative factors
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Altitude Aptitude

Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses

In prior years the Company used an internal method to calculate the allowance for loan losses which categorizod loans

by risk rather than by type We do not have the ability to accurately and efficiently provide the allocation of the allowance

for loan losses by loan type for five-year historical period

Beginning in 2008 the Company modified the allowance calculation to segregate loans by category and allocate the

allowance for loan losses accordingly

The allowance for loan losses calculation considers both qualitative and quantitative risk factors The quantitative

risk factors include but are not limited to past due and nonperforming assets adequacy of collateral changes in

underwriting standings or lending procedures and policies specific internal analysis of loans requiring special attention

and the nature and volume of loans Qualitative risk factors include but are not limited to local and regional business

conditions and other economic factors

The following table shows the allocation of the allowance for loan losses by loan type as of December 31 2010 2009

and 2008

December 31

2010 2009

Percent of Percent of Percent of Percent of

Allowance
allowance to loans in

Allowance allowance to loans in

for Loan total allowance each category for Loan total allowance each category

Losses
for Loan Losses to total loans

Losses for Loan Losses to total loans

in thousands
Real estate loans

Construction and land development 977 11.7% 11.4% $1176 14.9% 13.3%

Farmland 46 0.5% 2.3% 56 0.7% 1.9%

1-4 family residential 1891 22.7% 12.7% 2466 31.2% 13.1%

Multifamily 487 5.9% 2.5% 128 1.6% 1.5%

Non-farm non-residential 3423 41.2% 50.8% 2727 34.4% 51.0%

Non-real estate loans

Agricultural 80 1.0% 3.0% 82 1.0% 2.4s

Commercial and industrial 510 6.1% 13.3% 1031 13.0% 13.9%

Consumer and other 390 4.7% 4.0% 246 3.1% 2.9%

Unallocated 513 6.2% N/A 0.1% N/A

Total $8317 100.0% 100.0% $7919 100.0% 100.0%

December 31

2008

Percent of Percent of

Allowance allowance to loans in

for Loan
total allowance each category

Losses for Loan Losses to total loans

Real estate loans
in thousands

Construction and land development 315 4.9% 15.2%

Farmland 39 0.6% 2.7%

1-4 family residential 1712 26.4% 13.1%

Multifamily 227 3.5% 2.6%

Non-farm non-residential 2572 39.6% 43.0%

Non-real estate loans

Agricultural 92 1.4% 3.0%

Commercial and industrial 1119 17.3% 17.4%

Consumer and other 355 5.5% 3.0%

Unallocated 51 0.8% N/A

Total 6482 100.0% 100.0%
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The following table sets forth activity in our allowance for loan losses for the periods indicated

At or For the Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

In thousands

Balance at beginning of period $7919 $6482 $6 193 $6675 $7597

Charge-offs

Real estate loans

Construction and land development 448 166 386 5008
Farmland 10 123

1-4 family residential 1534 564 260 639 59

Multifamily

Non-farm non-residential 235 586 256 1901 208

Commercial and industrial loans 3395 678 561 273 301

Consumer and other 444 603 360 563 312
Total charge-offs 5613 2879 1613 3885 5888

Recoveries

Real estate loans

Construction and land development 779 39

Farmland 14

1-4 family residential 11 15 10 14 25

Multifamily

Non-farm non-residential 30 57 40

Commercial and industrial loans 164 28 10 148 304

Consumer and other 151 116 189 201 139

Total recoveries 357 161 268 1160 547

Net charge-offs 5256 2718 1345 2725 5341
Provision for loan losses 5654 4155 1634 1918 4419

Additional provision from acquisition 325

Balance at end of period $8317 $7919 $6482 $6193 $6675

Ratios

Net loan charge-offs to average loans 0.89% 0.45% 0.22% 0.50% 1.06%

Net loan charge-offs to lons at end

of period 0.91% 0.46% 0.22% 0.47% 1.05%

Allowance for loan losses to loans at

end of period 1.44% 1.34% 1.07% 1.08% 1.32%

Net loan charge-offs to allowance for

loan losses 63.20% 34.32% 20.75% 44.00% 80.0 1%

Net loan charge-offs to provision

charged to expense 92.96% 65.42% 82.32% 142.04% 120.86%
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Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

Investment Securities Portfolio The securities

portfolio totaled $482.0 million at December 31 2010

and consisted principally of U.S Government agency

securities corporate debt securities mutual funds

or other equity securities and municipal bonds The

portfolio provides the Company with relatively stable

source of income and provides balance to interest

rate and credit risks as compared to other categories

of the balance sheet

U.S Government Agency also known as Government

Sponsored Enterprises GSE5 are privately owned

but federally chartered companies While they enjoy

certain competitive advantages as result of their

government charters their debt obligations are

unsecured and are not direct obligations of the U.S

Government However debt securities issued by

GSEs are considered to be of high credit quality and

the senior debt of GSEs is AAA rated GSEs raise

funds through variety of debt issuance programs

including

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Freddie

Mac

Federal National Mortgage Association Fannie

Mae

Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB

Federal Farm Credit Bank System FFCB

With the variety of GSE-issued debt securities and

programs available investors may benefit from

unique combination of high credit quality liquidity

pricing transparency and cash flows that can be

customized to closely match their objectives

Corporate bonds are fully taxable debt obligations

issued by corporations These bonds fund capital

improvements expansions debt refinancing or

acquisitions that require more capital than would

ordinarily be available from single lender Corporate

bond rates are set according to prevailing interest

rates at the time of the issue the credit rating of the

issuer the length of the maturity and the other terms

of the bond such as call feature Corporate bonds

have historically been one of the highest yielding of all

taxable debt securities Interest can be paid monthly

quarterly or semi-annually There are five main sectors

of corporate bonds industrials banks/finance public

utilities transportation and Yankee and Canadian

bonds

The secondary market fnr cnrpnrate hnnds is fairly

liquid Therefore an investor who wishes to sell

corporate bond will often be able to find buyer for the

security at market prices However the market price

of bond might be significantly higher or lower than

its face value due to fluctuations in interest rates and

other price determining factors

Other factors include credit risk market risk even risk

call risk make-whole call risk and inflation risk

Mutual funds are professionally managed type

of collective investment scheme that pools money

from many investors and invests it in stocks bonds

short term money market instruments and/or other

securities The mutual fund will have fund manager

that trades the pooled money on regular basis

Mutual funds allow investors spread their investment

around widely That makes it much less risky than

investing in one or two stocks

An equity security is share in the capital stock of

cuttipatiy typically common stock although preferred

equity is also form of capital stock The holder of

an equity security is shareholder owning share

or fractional part of the issuer Unlike debt securities

which typically require regular payments interest

to the holder equity securities are not entitled to

any payment In bankruptcy they share only in the

residual interest of the issuer after all obligations have

been paid out to creditors However equity generally

entitles the holder to pro rata portion of control of

the company meaning that holder of majority

of the equity is usually entitled to control the issuer

Equity also enioys the right to profits and capital

gain whereas holders of debt securities receive only

interest and repayment of principal regardless of how

well the issuer performs financially Furthermore

debt securities do not have voting rights outside of

bankruptcy In other words equity holders are entitled

to the upside of the business and to control the

business

Equity securities may include but not be limited

to bank stock bank holding company stock listed

stock savings and loan association stock savings and

loan association holding company stock subsidiary

structured as limited
liability company subsidiary

structured as limited partnership limited liability

company and unlisted stock
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Equity securities are generally traded on either one of

the listed stock exchanges including NASDAQ or an

over-the-counter market The market value of equity

shares is influenced by prevailing economic conditions

such as the companys performance fi.e earnings

supply and demand and interest rates

municipal bond is bond issued by city or

other local government or their agencies Potential

issuers of municipal bonds include cities counties

redevelopment agencies special-purpose districts

school districts public utility districts publicly owned

airports and seaports and any other governmental

entity for group of governments below the state

level Municipal bonds may be general obligations of

the issuer or secured by specified revenues Interest

income received by holders of municipal bonds is

often exempt from the federal income tax and from

the income tax of the state in which they are issued

although municipal bonds issued for certain purposes

may not be tax exempt

At December 31 2010 $11.7 million or 2.4% of

securities fexcluding Federal Home Loan Bank ot

Dallas stock were scheduled to mature in less than

one year and securities with maturity dates 10 years

and over totaled 26.9% of the total portfolio The

average maturity of the securities portfolio was 6.5

years

At December 31 2010 securities totaling $322.1

million were classified as available for sale and $159.8

million were classified as held to maturity compared

to $249.5 million classified as available for sale

and $12.3 million classified as held to maturity at

December 31 2009

In the second quarter of 2010 the Company sold the

$12.1 million that remained in the held to maturity

category This represented approximately 4.0% of

the total investment portfolio and 1.000 of assets

Several nf the serurities sold includd mortgage

backed securities and agency bullet securities which

were no longer part of Managements investment

portfolio strategy During the third quarter of 2010 the

Company experienced significant deposit growth but

decreased loan demand Deposits grew approximately

$123.0 million or 14.0% from June 30 2010 to

December 31 2010 Net loans declined $38.0

million or 6.0% during the same period Investment

securities increased $142.0 million or 42 from June

30 2010 to December 31 2010 Market condit ons

continued to be historically volatile and interest rates

declined to levels not seen in decades

Given the changes in the Companys balance sheet

observed during the third quarter and following

the completion of five year strategic plan certain

agency securities purchased pursuant to this plan

were classified as held to maturity The Company

determined the unprecedented market conditions and

volatility coupled with revised five year strategic plan

that waiting period of one quarter was appropriate

based on the materiality conditions and the type of

securities in the held to maturity portfolio
sold during

the second quarter of 2010

The held to maturity portfolio is comprised of government

sponsored enterprise securities such as FHLB FNMA

FHLMC and FFCB The securities have maturities of 15

years or less and the securities are used tu cullateraliLe

public funds The Company has maintained public

funds in excess of $175.0 million since December

2007 Management believes that public funds will

continue to be significant part of the Companys

deposit base and will need to be collateralized by

securities in the investment portfolio

Management believes that the Company has both the

intent and ability to hold to maturity the $159.8 million

in securities placed in this category Management

has modeled the investment portfolio for liquidity risks

and believes that the Company has the ability under

multiple interest rate scenarios to hold the
portfolio to

maturity

Securities classified as available for sale are measured

at fair market value and securities classified as held to

maturity are measured at book value The Company

obtains fair value measurements from an independent

pricing service to value securities classified as available

for sale The fair value measurements consider

observable data that may include dealer quotes market

spreads cash flows market yield curves prepayment

speeds credit information and the instruments

contractual terms and conditions among other things

For more information on securities and fair market

value see Notes and 21 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements
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.4 Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

Total net securities gains were $2.8 million ot which

net AFS gains totaled $2.4 million and net HTM gains

totaled $0.4 million at December 31 2010 Securities

classified as available tor sale had gross unrealized

gains totaling $5.1 million at December 31 2010

which includes $0.2 million in unrealized gains on

agency securities $4.8 million in unrealized gains

on corporate bonds and $20000 in unrealized gains

on mutual funds or other equity securities Securities

classified as available for sale had gross unrealized

losses totaling $5.5 million at December 31 2010

which includes $4.0 million in unrealized losses on

agency securities $1.3 million in unrealized losses

on corporate bonds and $0.1 million in unrealized

losses on mutual funds or other equity securities

Securities classified as held to maturity had gross

unrealized losses totaling $4.5 million at December

31 2010 There were no held to maturity securities

with unrealized gains as of December 31 2010 At

December 31 2009 securities classified as available

for sale hdd gross unrealized losses totaling $2.8

million

Average securities as percentage of verage interest

earning assets were 35.5% for the year December

31 2010 and 27.1% for the year ended December

31 2009 All securities held at December 31 2010

qualified as pledgeable securities except $138.5

million of debt securities and $6.0 million of equity

securities Securities pledged at December 31 2010

totaled $271.5 million

All agency securities have been in loss position

for less than 12 months The Company had 57 U.S

Government agency securities 156 corporate debt

securities and one municipal that had gross unrealized

losses for less than 12 months The Company had 13

corporate debt securities and two equity securities

which have been in continuous unrealized loss

position for 12 months or longer The Company

believes that it will collect all amounts contractually

due and has the intent and the ability to hold these

securities until the fair value is at least equal to the

carrying value Management periodically assesses the

quality of our investment holdings using procedures

similar to those used in assessing the credit risks

inherent in the loan portfolio

At December 31 2010 it is Managements opinion

that it held no investment securities which bear

greater than the normal amount of credit risk as

compared to similar investments and that no securities

had an amortized cost greater than their recoverable

value See Notes and 21 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for additional information
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The following tables set forth the composition of our investment securities portfolio excluding Federal Home Loan Bank

of Dallas stock at the dates indicated

December 31 2010

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

in thousands

Available for sale

U.S Government agencies $172958 242 $3982 $169218

Mortgage-backed obligations

Asset-backed securities

Corporate debt securities 138925 4804 1331 142398

Mutual funds or other equity securities 1250 20 132 1138

Municipal bonds 9388 14 9374

Total available for sale securities $322521 $5066 $5459 $322128

Held to maturity

U.S Government agencies $159833 $4507 $155326

Mortgage-backed obligations

Total held to maturity securities $159833 $4507 $155326

December 31 2009

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

in thousands

Available for sale

U.S Government agencies 140843 382 $11562 139.663

Mortgage-backed obligations 1472 104 1576

Asset-backed securities

Corporate debt securities 92414 5648 1.086 96976

Mutual funds or other equity securities 1380 62 185 1257

Municipal bonds 10000 ______ 10000

Total available for sale securities $246109 $6204 $2833 $249480

Held to maturity

U.S Government agencies 10721 52 10773

Mortgage-backed obligations 1628 61
______ 1689

Total held to maturity securities 12349 113 12462
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ii.
Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

December 31 2008

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

in housands

Available for sale

U.S Government agencies 58389 $132 58521

Mortgage-backed obligations 1701 82 1778

Asset-backed securities 532 439 93

Corporate debt securities 57773 044 5077 53340

Mutual funds or other equity securities 795 26 147 674

Municipal bonds

Total available for sale securities $119190 $884 $5668 $114406

Held to maturity

U.S Government agencies 22680 $160 22840

Mortgage-backed obligations 2076 21 2096

Total held to maturity securities 24756 $181 24936

During 2010 the Company did not recognize any other-than temporary impairment on securities

During 2009 the evaluation of securities with continuous unrealized losses indicated that there was credit loss

evident on one corporate bond and it was determined that this investment was other than temporarily impaired In

addition three asset-backed securities were deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired The Company recorded

other than-temporary impairment charges on these securities totaling $829000 betore tax $547000 atter tax for

the year ended December 31 2009 An other than-temporary impairment charge was taken on 12 securities totaling

$4.6 million in 2008

The Company did not recognize any other impairment charges in 2009 or 2008 other than those stated above
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Investment Portfolio Maturities and Yields The composition and maturities of the investment securities portfolio

at December 31 2010 are summarized in the following table Maturities are based on the final contractual payment

dates and do not reflect the impact of prepayments or early redemptions that may occur

More than One Year More than Five Years

One Year or Less through Five Years through Ten Years

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average

Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield

In thousands

Held to maturity

U.S Government agencies $13999 2.19% 78975 3.29%

Corporate debt securities 10562 6.72% 48385 6.17% 75578 4.71%

Mutual funds or other equity securities

Municipal bonds 872 0.78% 3496 0.79% 3628 0.86%

Total available for sale securities 11434 6.21% $65880 5.O0% $158181 3.89%

Held to maturity

U.S Government Agencies 7968 2.37% $106876 2.75%

Total held to maturity securities 7968 2.37% $106876 2.75%

More than Ten Years Total Securities

Weighted Weighted

Amortized Average Amortized Average

Cost Yield Cost Fair Value Yield

in thousands

Available for sale

U.S Government agencies $79984 3.79% $172958 $169218 3.43%

Corporate debt securities 4400 7.78% 138925 142398 5.47%

Mutual funds or other equity securities 1250 2.82% 1250 1138 2.82%

Mutual bonds 1392 5.77% 9388 9374 1.55%

Total available for sale securities $87026 4.01% $322521 $322128 4.23%

Held to maturity

U.S Government agencies $44989 3.54% $159833 $155326 2.95%

Total held to maturity securities $44989 3.54% $159833 $155326 2.95%

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc 2010 Annual Report

77



.4 Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

Deposits The following table sets forth the distribution of our total deposit accounts by account type for the

periods indicated

December 31

2010 2009

Weighted Weighted

As of Average As of Average

Balance Total Rate Balance Total Rate

in thousands

Noninterest-bearing demand 130897 13.0% 0.0% $131818 16.5% 0.0%

Interest-bearing demand 192139 19.1% 0.5% 188252 23.5% 0.6%

Savings 46663 4.6% 0.1% 40272 5.0% 0.2%

Time 637684 63.3% 2.3% 439404 55M% 2.8%

Total deposits $1007383 100.0% $799746 100.0%

December 31

2008

Weighted

As of Average

Balance Total Rate

in thousands

Noninterest-bearing demand $118255 15.2% 0.0%

Interest-bearing demand 180230 23.1% 1.4%

Savings 41357 5.3% 0.4%

Time 440530 56.4% 3.6%

Total deposits $780372 100.0%

As of December 31 2010 the aggregate amount of outstanding certificates of deposit in amounts greater than or equal

to $100000 was approximately $420.1 million The following table sets forth the maturity of those certificates as of

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

December 31

2010 2009 2008

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate

in thousands

Due in one year or less $209979 1.32% $234685 1.71% $163375 2.10%

Due after one year through

three years 189833 2.56% 19930 3.89% 57431 4.04%

Due after three years 20331 3.51% 16577 4.91% 26944 4.19%

Total $420143 1.99% $271192 2.06% $247750 2.78%
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Borrowings The following table sets forth

information concerning balances and interest rates on

all of our short-term borrowings at the dates and for

the periods indicated

December 31

2010 2009 2008

in thousands

Outstanding at year end $12589 11929 9767

Maximum month-end outstanding 30465 26372 41321

Average daily outstanding 13086 18233 11379

Weighted average rate during the year 0.21% 0.81% 2.16%

Average rate at year end 0.21% 0.23% 0.19%

At December 31 2010 all long term debt from FHLB

advances had been repaid

Total Deposits
in niillinns

2009 2010

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc 2010 AnnuaL Report
79



Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

Stochholders Equity and Return on Equity and

Assets Stockholders equity provides equity provides

source of permanent funding allows for future

growth and the ability to absorb unforeseen adverse

developments At December 31 2010 stockholders

equity totaled $97.9 million compared to $94.9 million

at December 31 2009

Information regarding performance and equity ratios is

as follows

an increase of $4.0 million in securities interest income

as well as year over year reduction of $1.6 million in

interest expense Net interest income increased by $5.8

million and the provision tor loan losses increased $1.5

million In addition net gains on sales of securities

increased $0.8 million from $2.1 million in 2009 to $2.8

million in 2010 as well as no loss from impaired securities

in 2010 compared to $0.8 million loss in 2009

On August 28 2009 the Company entered into Letter

Agreement which includes Securities Purchase

Agreement and Side Letter Agreement together

the Purchase Agreement with the United States

Department of the Treasury Treasury Department

pursuant to which the Company has issued and sold

to the Treasury Department 20699 shares of the

Companys Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred

Stock Series par value $1000 per share for

total purchase price ot $20.7 million In addition to

the issuance of the Series Stock as part of the

transaction the Company issued to the Treasury

Department warrant to purchase 114.44444 shares of

the Companys Fixed Rate Cumulative Preferred Stock

Series and immediately following the issuance of the

Series stock the Treasury Department exercised its

rights and acquired 103 of the Series shares through

cashless exercise See Note 11 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for additional information

Results of Operations for the Years

Ended December 31 2010 and 2009
Neclncoine Net income for the year ended December

31 2010 was $10.0 million an increase of $2.4

million or 32.0% from $7.6 million for the year ended

December 31 2009 Net income available to common

sfareholders for the year ended December 31 2010

was $8.7 million an increase ot $1.7 million from the

$7.0 million for the year ended December 31 2009

The increase in income can be largely attributed to

Noninterest expense increased $2.8 million primarily

from increased salaries expense as well as an increase

in other expenses which include professional fees data

processing advertising insurance travel depreciation

sales and franchise tax as well as tax on capital Income

tax expense increased by $1.5 million due to the increase

in net income Earnings per common share for the year

ended December 31 2010 was $1.56 per common

share an increase of 23.8% or $0.30 per common

share from $1.26 per common share for the year ended

December 31 2009

Net Interest Income Net interest income is the largest

component of our earnings It is calculated by subtracting

the cost of interest-bearing liabilities from the income

earned on interest-earning assets and represents the

earnings from our primary business of gathering deposits

and making loans and investments The Companys

long-term objective is to manage this income to provide

the largest possible amount of income while balancing

interest rate credit and liquidity risks

financial institutions asset and
liability structure is

substontially difterent from that of an industriol con ipany

in that virtually all assets and liabilities are monetary in

nature Accordingly changes in interest rates which

are generally impacted by inflation rates may have

significant impact on financial institutions performance

The impact of interest rate changes depends on the

sensitivity to change of our interest-earning assets and

interest bearing liabilities The effects of the changing

2010

December 31

2009 2008

Return on average assets 0.99% 0.80% 0.69%

Return on average common equity 12.65% 1D.B4% 8.13%

Dividend payout ratio 40.94% 50.82% 64.53%
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interest rate environment in recent years and our

interest sensitivity position are discussed below

Net interest income in 2010 was $38.2 million an

increase ot $5.8 million or 18.0% when compared to

$32.3 million in 2009 Loans are our largest interest

earning asset and 62.3% of our total loans are floating

rate loans which are primarily tied to the prime lending

rate After the prime rate dropped 400 basis points in

2008 Management began adding floors to floating rate

loans Loans which have floors greater than the rate

due under the variable rate provision are considered

fixed rate loans until such time that the floors equals

the rate due under the variable rate provision The

loan floors were the first step to managing the net

interest income and have continued into 2010 as well

as continuing to build the investment portfolio The

cost of our interest bearing liabilities was positively

impacted by the reduction all cost of funds paid on

interest bearing liabilities As of December 31 2010

time deposits represented 63.3% of total deposits

which is an increase from 54.9% of total deposits at

December 31 2009

Comparing 2010 to 2009 the average yield on interest

earning assets increased by 12% and the average rate

paid on interest bearing liabilities decreased by 0.30%

The net yield on interest-earning assets was 40% for the

year ended December 31 2010 compared to 3.6% for

2009

The net interest income yield
shown below in the average

balance sheet is calculated by dividing net interest

income by average interest earning assets and is

measure of the efficiency of the earnings from balance

sheet activities It is affected by changes in the difference

between interest on interest-earning assets and interest

bearing liabilities and the percentage of interest-earning

assets funded by interest bearing liabilities

The following tables set forth average balance sheets

average yields and costs and certain other information

for the periods indicated No tax-equivalent yield

adjustments were made as the effect thereof was not

material All average balances are daily average balances

Non accrual loans were included in the computation

of average balances but have been reflected in the

table as loans carrying zero yield The yields set forth

below include the effect of deferred fees discounts and

premiums that are amortized or accreted to interest

income or expense

Net Interest Income
iii millions

2009 2010
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Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

Average Yield Average Yield Average Yield

Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

in thousands

Assets

Interest-earning assets

Interest-earning

deposits with banks 16923 41 0.2% 35800 388 1.1% 5725 224 3.9%

Securities

including FHLB stock 342589 15043 4.4% 245952 11085 4.5% 127586 6594 5.2%

Federal funds sold 11007 13 0.1% 24662 34 0.1% 17247 392 2.3%

Loans held for sale 91 5.5% 135 5.1% 681 45 6.6%

Loans net of unearned

income 593429 36288 6.1% 599609 35677 6.0% 600854 40406 6.7%

Total interest-

earning assets 964039 51390 5.3% 906158 47191 5.2% 752093 47661 6.3%

Noninterest-earning assets

Cash and due from banks 17961 17775 22468

Premises and

equipment net 16662 16175 15960

Other assets 17019
_______

8448
_______

6503
_______

Total $1015681 $51390 $948556 $47191 $797024 $47661

Liabilities and

Stockholders Equity

Interest-bearing liabilities

Demand deposits 185195 846 0.5% $203467 1179 0.6% $197822 2798 1.4%

Savings deposits 43544 42 0.1% 41747 98 0.2% 43631 193 0.4%

Time deposits 529181 12218 2.3% 479255 13310 2.8% 346282 12432 3.6%

Borrowings 27324 117 0.4% 22907 257 1.1% 16287 458 2.8%

Total interest-bearing

liabilities 785244 13223 1.7% 747376 14844 2.0% 604022 15881 2.6%

Noninterest-bearing liabilities

Demand deposits 125520 117805 119379

Other 5343 _______ 6240 ______ 5854
_______

Total liabilities 916107 13223 871421 14844 729255 15881

Stockholders equity 99574 77135 67769

Total $1015681 13223 $948556 14844 $797024 15881

Net interest income $38167 $32347 $31780

Net interest rate spread 3.6% 3.2% 3.7%

Net interest-earning assets 178795 $158782 $148071

Net interest margin 4.0% 3.6% 4.2%

Average interest-earning

assets to interest-

bearing liabilities 122.8% 121.2% 124.5%

Interest-earning deposits with banks include reserves kept with the Federal Reserve Bank that are classified on the balance sheet as cash and due from

banks The reserves are not classified as interest-earning demand deposits on the batance sheet because interest is only paid on amounts in escess of

minimum reserve requirements

iii Nat interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on average interest-earning assets and the cost of average interest beanng liabilities

ui Net interest earning assets represents total interest-earning assets less total interest bearing lisbilities

i4i Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets
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Rate/Volume Analysis The following table presents

the dollar amount of changes in interest income and

interest expense for major components of interest-

earning assets and interest bearing liabilities for the

periods indicated The table distinguishes between fi

changes attributable to rate fchange in rate multiplied

by the prior periods volume changes attributable

to volume changes in volume multiplied by the prior

periods rate iii mixed changes changes that are

not attributable to either rate of volume and iv

total increase decrease the sum of the previous

columns

million were residential properties The maority of the

loan charge-offs in 2010 consisted of commercial and

industrial loans which totaled $3.4 million Recoveries for

2010 of $0.4 million were recognized on loans previously

charged off as compared to $0.2 million in 2009

Of the loan charge offs during 2009 approximately $1.6

million were loans secured by real estate of which $0.6

million were commercial real estate and approximately

$0.6 million were residential properties The allowance

for loan losses at December 31 2010 was $8.3 million

compared to $7.9 million at December 31 2009 and

Years Ended December31

2010 Compared to 2009

Increase Decrease Due To

Rate Increase

Volume Rate Volume Decrease

Provision for Loan Losses The provision for loan

losses was $5.7 million and $4.2 million in 2010 and

2009 respectively The increased 2010 provisions

were attributable to $5.3 million in net loan charge offs

during 2010 compared to $2.7 million in 2009 Of the

loan charge offs in 2010 approximately $1.7 million

were loans secured by real estate of which $0.2 million

were commercial real estate and approximately $1.5

tin thousands

2009 Compared to 2008

Increase Decrease Due To

Rate Increase/

Volume Rate Volume Decrease

was 1.44% and 1.34c of total loans respectively

Management believes that the current level of the

allowance is adequate to cover losses in the loan portfolio

given the current economic conditions expected net

charge offs and nonperforming asset levels

Noninterest Income Noninterest income totaled $9.6

million in 2010 an increase of $2.4 million when

compared to $7.1 million in 2009 Service charges

204 301 158 347

Interest earned on

Interest-bearing deposits

with banks

Securities including

FHLB stock

Federal funds sold

Loans held for sale

Loans net of unearned

income

Total interest

income

Interest paid on

Demand deposits

Savings deposits

Time deposits

Borrowings

Total interest expense

Change in net

interest income

398 39 4199

1177 162 851 164

4355

19
285 112 3958

21
6118

169

36

844

368

10

783

159

4491

358

38

368 989 10 611 84 4655 tO 4729

3762 7344 6039 1775 470

106

1387
50

1335

249

58
2245

159

2711

22

234

31
245

333

56
1092

140
1621

80

4774

186

5032

1652

91
2816

275

4834

47

1080

112

1235

1619
95

878

201

1037

$2427 3109 284 5820 2312 1205 540 567
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Attitude Aptitude Aeeumplistunents

cnmmicsionc and fees totaled $4.1 millinn fnr 2010

and were relatively unchanged when compared to

2009 Net securities gains were $2.8 million in 2010

compared to $2.1 million in 2009 There were no other

than-temporary impairment charges in 2010 compared

to charge ot $0.8 million in 2009 Net gains on sale

of loans were $0.3 million in 2010 and $0.4 million in

2009 Other noninterest income increased $1.0 million

to $2.3 million in 2010 from $1.3 million in 2009 The

increase in other noninterest income can be attributed to

$1.0 million gain on the sale ot facility that previously

housed the Benton Louisiana Banking Center prior

to opening our new Benton facility
in January 2010

This gain is partially offset by donation of $0.7 million

of the purchase price to the governmental entity that

purchased the building That donation is included in

other non-interest expenses

Noninterest Expense Noninterest expense totaled

$26.8 million in 2010 and $24.0 million in 2009

Salaries and benefits increased $1.0 million in 2010 to

$11.8 million compared to $10.8 million in 2009 This

can be partly explained by the total number of employees

increasing from 230 full-time equivalent at December

31 2009 to 246 at December 31 2010 and partly due

to the efforts of the Bank and its Management team

to attract and retain quality employees Occupancy

and equipment expense totaled $3.2 million and $2.9

million in 2010 and 2009 respectively Regulatory

assessment expense totaled $1.5 million in 2010

compared to $2.0 million in 2009 During the second

quarter of 2009 special assessment was imposed on

all financial institutions The 2009 special assessment

for the Company totaled $0.4 million For 2010 the net

cost of other real estate and repossessions increased $0.5

million in 2010 to $0.9 million when compared to $0.4

million in 2009 Other noninterest expense totaled $9.5

million in 2010 increase of $1.6 million or 2D.2 when

compared to $7.9 million in 2009 This increase is largely

due to an increase of $0.7 million in marketing and public

relations which is the result of donation of $0.7 million of

the purchase price to government entity that purchased

building from the Bank $0.5 million increase in professional

tees relating tc the acquisition of the Bonk of Greensburg

in Greensburg Louisiana and an increase of $0.2 million in

data processing expenses

The following is summary of the significant components of

other noninterest expense

Total noninterest expense includes expenses paid to related

parties Related parties include the Companys executive

officers directors and certain business organizations and

individuals with which such persons are associated During

the years ended 2010 and 200q the Cnmpanv paid

approximately $2.3 million and $2.2 million respectively for

goods and services from related parties See Note 14 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information

Income Taxes The provision for income taxes for the

years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 was

$5.2 million $3.7 million and $2.5 million respectively

The increase in the providion for income taxes is result of

higher income for 2010 when compared to 2009 and 2008

The Companys statutory tax rate was 34.2% which was

relatively unchanged from 34.0% and 34.3c in 2009 and

2008 respectively

1791

594

1426

1143

435

620

177

218

778

1496

858

2331

$11$67

Years Ended December 31

2009

in thousands

1254

537

809

1067

398

529

192

291

221

2049

399

2618

$10364

$1496

572

1131

1063

416

571

185

311

258

827

249

2606

$9685

2010 2008

Other noninterest expense

Legal and professional fees

Operating supplies

Marketing and public relations

Data processing

Travel and lodging

Taxes sales and capital

Telephone

Amortization of core deposit intangibles

Donations

Regulatory assessment expense

Net cost of other real estate and repossessions

Other

Total other expense
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Results of Operations for the Years

Ended December 31 2009 and 2008

Net Income Net income for the year ended

December 31 2009 was $7.6 million an increase of

$2.1 million or 37.8% from $5.5 million for the year

ended December 31 2008 Net income available to

common shareholders for the year ended December

31 2009 was $7.0 million an increase of $1.5 million

trom the $5.5 million tor fhe year ended December

31 2008 The largest increase in nef income resulted

from an increase in securities interest income due to

an increase in volume of securities owned The second

largest increase resulted from $3.8 million decline

in the amount of other than temporary impairment

charges recorded on the securities portfolio The

2009 other than-temporary impairment charge was

$0.8 million compared to $4.6 million other than

temporary impairment charge in 2008 In addition net

gains on sales of securities totaled $2.1 million for the

period ended December 31 2009 compared to net

losses of $1000 realized during the same period in

2008 Net interest income increased by $0.6 million

and the provision for loan losses increased $2.5

million Noninterest expense increased $0.8 million

primarily from increased regulatory assessments but

was offset by reduced legal and marketing expenses

Earnings per common share for the year ended

December 31 2009 was $1.26 per common share

ar increase ot 27.0% or $0.27 per common share

from $0.99 per common share for the year ended

December 31 2008

Net Interest Income Net interest income in 2009

was $32.3 million an increase of $0.6 million or 1.8%

when compared to $31.8 million in 2008 Although

the net interest margin declined from 2008 to 2009

increased volumes in interest-earning assets offset the

decline in margins therefore increasing net interest

income Loans are our largest interest-earning asset

and 53.7% of our total loans are floating rate loans

which are primarily tied to the prime lending rate

After the prime rate dropped 400 basis points in 2008

Management began adding floors to floating rate loans

Loans which have floors greater than the rate due

under the variable rate provision are considered fixed

rate loans until such time that the floors equals the

rate due under the variable rate provision The loan

floors were the first step to managing the net interest

income Although the yield on securities also declined

from 2008 to 2009 interest income was enhanced

by increased volumes of securities Managements

next focus was on the cost of funds The cost of our

interest bearing liabilities was positively impacted by

the reduction all cost of funds paid on interest bearing

liabilities As of December 31 2009 time deposits

represented 54.9c of our total deposits which is

decrease from 56.5% of total deposits at December

31 2008

Comparing 2009 to 2008 the average yield on

interest-earning assets decreased by 110 basis points

and the average rate paid on interest bearing liabilities

decreased by 60 basis points The net yield on interest-

earning assets was 3.6% for the year ended December

31 2009 compared to 4.2% for 2008

The leverage for the year ending December 31 2009

and 2008 was 82.5% and 80.3% respectively

Provision for Loan Losses The provision for loan

losses was $4.2 million and $1.6 million in 2009 and

2008 respectively The increased 2009 provisions

were attributable to $2.7 million in net loan charge

offs during 2009 compared to $1.3 million in net

loan charge-offs during 2008 Of the loan charge

offs in 2009 approximately $1.6 million were loans

secured by real estate of which $0.4 million were

construction and land development $0.6 million were

commercial real estate and approximately $0.6 million

were residential properties In 2009 recoveries of $0.2

million were recognized on loans previously charged

off as compared to $0.3 million in 2008 Of the loan

charge offs during 2008 approximately $0.7 million

were loans secured by real estate of which $0.3 million

were commercial real estate and approximately $0.4

million were residential properties The allowance

for loan losses at December 31 2009 was $7.9

million compared to $6.5 million at December 31

2008 and was 1.34% and 1.07% of total loans

respectively Management believes that the current

level of the allowance is adequate to cover losses in the

loan portfolio given the current economic conditions

expected net charge-offs and nonperforming asset

levels
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Noninterest Income Noni nterest income totaled $7.1

million in 2009 an increase of $6.1 million when

compared to $1.1 million in 2008 Service charges

commissions and fees totaled $4.1 million and $4.0

million for the years ended December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively Net securities gain were $2.1

million in 2009 compared to $1000 in net securities

losses in 2008 Other-than-temporary impairment

charges totaling $0.8 million were taken on securities

in 2009 compared to charge of $4.6 million in 2008

Net gains on sale of loans were $422000 in 2009

and $210000 in 2008 Other noninterest income

decreased $148000 to $1.3 million in 2009 from $1.5

million in 2008

Noninterest Expense Noninterest expense totaled

$24.0 million in 2009 and $23.2 million in 2008

Salaries and benefits remained relatively flat at $10.8

million in 2009 compared to $10.7 million in 2008

At December 31 2009 253 employees represented

230 full-time equivalent staff members as compared

to 225 full-time equivalent staff members in 2008

Occupancy and equipment expense totaled $2.9

million in 2009 and 2008 respectively Regulatory

assessment expense totaled $2.0 million in 2009

compared to $0.8 million in 2008 During the second

quarter of 2009 special assessment was imposed on

all financial institutions The 2009 special assessment

for the Company totaled $444000 The net cost

of other real estate and repossessions increased

$150000 iii 2009 to $399000 when uoinpoied to

$249000 in 2008 Other noninterest expense totaled

$7.9 million in 2009 decrease of $0.7 million or

8.1% when compared to $8.6 million in 2008

Income Taxes The provision for income taxes for

the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

was $3.7 million and $2.5 million respectively The

increased provision for income taxes in 2009 resulted

from higher income recognized during 2009 when

compared to 2008 The Companys effective tax

rate amounted to 32.9% and 30.9% during 2009

and 2008 respectively The difference between the

etfective tax rate and the statutory tax rate primarily

relates to variances in items that are non taxable or

non deductible and various tax credits

Asset/Liability Management and

Market Risk

Asset/Liability Management The Com pa nys

asset/liability management ALM process consists

of quantifying analyzing and controlling interest rate

risk IRR to maintain reasonably stable net interest

income levels under various interest rate environments

The principal obtective of ALM is to maximize net

interest income while operating within acceptable

limits established for interest rate risk and maintain

adequate levels of liquidity

The majority of the Company assets and liabilities

are monetary in nature Consequently one of its

most significant forms of market risk is interest rate

risk Assets consisting primarily of loans secured by

real estate have longer maturities than our liabilities

consisting primarily of deposits As result principal

part of the business strategy is to manage interest rate

risk and reduce the exposure of net interest income

to changes in market interest rates Accordingly the

Companys Board of Directors has established an

Asset/Liability Committee which is responsible for

evaluating the interest rate risk inherent in the dssets

and liabilities for determining the level of risk that

is appropriate given the business strategy operating

environment capital liquidity and performance

objectives and for managing this risk consistent with

the guidelines approved by the Board of Directors

Senior Management monitors the level of interest

rate risk on regular basis and the Asset/Liability

Committee which consists of executive Management

and other bank personnel operating under policy

adopted by the Board of Directors meets as needed

to review our asset/liability policies and interest rate

risk position

The interest spread and liability funding discussed

below are directly related to changes in asset and

liability mixes volumes maturities and repricing

opportunities for interest-earning assets and interest-

bearing liabilities Interest sensitive assets and liabilities

are those which are subtect to being repriced in the

near term including both floating or adtustable rate

instruments and instruments approaching maturity

The interest sensitivity gap is the difference between

total interest sensitive assets and total interest sensitive

liabilities Interest rates on our various asset and liability
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categories do not respond uniformly to changing

market conditions Interest rate risk is the degree to

which interest rate tluctuations in the marketplace can

affect net interest income

To maximize margin the Company attempt to be

somewhat more asset sensitive during periods of

rising rates and more liability-sensitive during periods

of falling rates The need for interest sensitivity gap

management is most critical in times of rapid changes

in overall interest rates Generally the Company

seeks to limit exposure to interest rate fluctuations

by maintaining relatively
balanced mix of rate

sensitive assets and liabilities on one-year time

horizon The mix is relatively difficult to manage

Because of the significant impact on net interest

margin from mismatches in repricing opportunities the

asset-liability mix is monitored periodically depending

upon Managements assessment of current business

rnnditinns and th intprpct ratp niitlnnk Expnsiire tn

interest rate fluctuations is maintained within prudent

levels by the use of varying investment strategies

The Company monitors interest rate risk using an

interest sensitivity analysis set forth on the following

table This analysis prepared monthly reflects the

maturity and repricing characteristics of assets and

liabilities over various time periods The gap indicates

whether more assets or liabilities are subject to repricing

nver given time period The interest
sensitivity

analysis at December 31 2D1D shown below retlects

liability-sensitive position with negative cumulative

gap on one year basis
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Interest Sensitivity at December 31 2010

Three Months Over Three Months Total Over

Or Less thru 12 Months One Year One Year Total

in thousands

Earning Assets

Loans including loans held for sale 122909 136741 259650 $315990 575640
Securities including FHLB stock 5446 6210 11656 471920 483576

Federal funds sold 9129 9129 9129
Other earning assets 13 13 13

Total earning assets 137497 142951 280448 787910 $1068358

Source of Funds

Interest-bearing accounts

Demand deposits 146142 146142 45997 192139

Savings deposits 11664 11664 34999 46663

lime deposits 112652 177125 289777 347907 637684
Short-term borrowings 12589 12589 12589

Long-term borrowings

Noninterest-bearing net 179281 179281

Total source of funds 283047 177125 460172 608186 $1068358
Period gap 145550 34174 179724 179724

Cumulative gap $145550 $179724 $179724

Cumulative gap as

percent of earning assets -13.62% -16.82% -16.82%

Net Interest Income at Risk Net interest income

Nil at risk measures the risk of decline in earnings

due tn changes in interest rates The table at right
Change in Estimated Increase

presents an analysis of our interest rate risk as
Interest Oecrease in NIl

measured by the estimated changes in net interest
Rates December 31 2010

income resulting from an instantaneous and sustained
Was/s points

parallel shift in the yield curve at December 31 2010
-200 -1.72%

Shifts are measured in 100 basis point increments --
-100 -1.83k

200 through 200 basis points from base case Base Stable 0.0%

case encompasses key assumptions for asset/liability 100 -0.48%

mix loan and deposit growth pricing prepayment 200 2.86%

speeds deposit decay rates securities
portfolio cash

flows and reinvestment strategy and the market value

of certain assets under the various interest rate

scenarios The base case scenario assumes that the

current interest rate environment is held constant

throughout the forecast period the instantaneous

shocks are performed against that yield curve

88



The increasing rate scenarios shows higher levels of

net interest income while the decreasing scenarios

show higher levels of
volatility and subsequently

lower levels of NIl These scenarios are instantaneous

shocks that assume balance sheet Management will

mirrr base rase Shnuld the yield curve begin to rise

or fall Management has several strategies available

to maximize earnings opportunities or offset the

negative impact to earnings For example in falling

rate environment deposit pricing strategies could

be adjusted to further sway customer behavior to

non contractual or short term less than 12 months

contractual deposit products which would reset

downward with the changes in the yield curve and

prevailing market rates Another opportunity at the

start of such cycle would be reinvesting the securities

portfolio cash flows into longer term non-callable

bonds that would lock in higher yields

Even if interest rates change in the designated

amounts there can be no assurance that assets and

liabilities would perform as anticipated Additionally

change in the U.S Treasury rates in the designated

amounts accompanied by change in the shape of

the U.S Treasury yield curve would cause significantly

different changes to NIl than indicated above Strategic

management of our balance sheet and earnings would

be adjusted to accommodate these movements As with

any method of measuring IRR cedain shortcomings are

inherent in the methods of analysis presented above

For example although certain assets and liabilities may

have similar maturities or periods to repricing they

may react in different degrees to changes in market

interest rates Also the interest rates on certain types

of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of

changes in market interest rates while interest rates

on other types may lag behind changes in market

rates Also the ability of many borrowers to service

their debt may decrease in the event of an interest rate

increase We consider all of these factors in monitoring

its exposure to interest rate risk

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity and Capital Resources Liquidity refers

to the ability or flexibility to manage future cash flows

to meet the needs of depositors and borrowers and

tund operations Maintaining appropriate levels of

liquidity allows us to have sufficient funds available

to meet customer demand for loans withdrawal of

deposit balances and maturities of deposits and other

liabilities Liquid assets include cash and due from

banks interest earning demand deposits with banks

federal funds sold and available for sale investment

securities Including securities pledged to collateralize

public tund deposits these assets represent 32.4%

and 31.8% of the total
liquidity

base at December

31 2010 and 2009 respectively In addition we

maintained borrowing availability with the Federal

Home Loan Bank of Dallas approximating $52.2

million and $92.2 million at December 31 2D1D and

December 31 20D9 respectively We also maintain

federal funds lines of credit totaling $48.4 million at

three other correspondent banks of which $48.4

was available at December 31 2010 Management

believes there is sufficient liquidity to satisfy current

operating needs

Regulatory Capital Risk based capital regulations

adopted by the FDIC require banks to achieve and

maintain specified ratios of capital to risk-weighted

assets Similar capital regulations apply to bank holding

companies The risk-based capital rules are designed

to measure Tier capital consisting of common

Common
Stockholders Equity

in rniflion.c

$77.0
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equity retained earnings and limited amount ot

qualifying perpetual preferred stock and trust preferred

securities net of goodwill and other intangible assets

and accumulated other comprehensive income and

total capital in relation to the credit risk of both on- and

off-balance sheet items Under the guidelines one of

its risk weights is applied to the different on balance

sheet items Off-balance sheet items such as loan

commitments are also subject to risk weighting All

bank holding companies and banks must maintain

minimum total capital to total risk weighted assets ratio

of 8.00% at least half of which must be in the form

of core or Tier capital These guidelines also specify

that bank holding companies that are experiencing

internal growth or making acquisitions will be expected

to maintain capital positions substantially above the

minimum supervisory levels

At December 31 2010 we satisfied the minimum

regulatory capital requirements and were well

capitalized ithin the meaning of federal regulatory

requirements

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We had $145.0 million $140.0 million and $105.0

milliun in letters of credit issued by the FHLB of Dallas

at December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

which was used as collateral for public fund deposits

The Company is party to financial instruments with

off balance sheet risk in the normal course of business

to meet the financing needs of its customers and to

reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates

These financial instruments include commitments to

extend credit and standby and commercial letters of

credit Those instruments involve to varying degrees

elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of

the amount recognized in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets The contract or notional amounts of those

instruments reflect the extent of the involvement in

particular classes of financial instruments

The exposure to credit loss in the event of

nonperformance by the other party to the financial

instrument for commitments to extend credit

and standby and commercial letters of credit is

represented by the contractual notional amount of

those instruments The same credit policies are used

in making commitments and conditional obligations as

it does for on-balance sheet instruments

Inless otherwise nnted rnllateral nr nther security

is not required to support financial instruments with

credit risk

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend

to customer as long as there is no violation of any

condition established in the contract Commitments

generally have fixed expiration dates or other

termination clauses and may require payment of

fee Since commitments may expire without being

drawn upon the total commitment amounts do not

necessarily represent future cash requirements Each

customers creditworthiness is evaluated on case-

by-case basis The amount of collateral obtained if

deemed necessary upon extension of credit is based

on Managements credit evaluation of the counterpart

Collateral requirements vary but may include accounts

receivable inventory property plant and equipment

residential real estate and commercial properties

Stand by and commercial letters of credit are conditional

commitments to guarantee the performance of

customer to third party These guarantees are

primarily issued to support public and private

borrowing arrangements including commercial paper

bond financing and similar transactions The majority

of these guarantees are short-term one year or less

however some guarantees extend for up to three

years The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit

is essentially the same as that involved in extending

loan facilities to customers Collateral requirements

are the same as nn-halance sheet instruments and

commitments to extend credit

There were no losses incurred on any commitments in

2010 or 2009

The Company had unfunded loan committments of

$95.2 million and standby letters of credit of $5.7

million as of December 31 2010
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes significant fixed

and determinable contractual obligations and other

funding needs by payment date at December

31 2010 The payment amounts represent those

amounts due to the recipient and do not include any

unamortized premiums or discounts or other similar

carrying amount adjustments

At of December 31 2010 our contractual obligations

were as follows

Operating leases

Software contracts

Time deposits

Short term borrowings

Long-term borrowings

Total

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial statements and related

tinancial data presented herein have been prepared

in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles which generally require the measurement

of financial position and operating results in terms

of historical dollars without considering changes in

relative purchasing power over time due to inflation

Unlike most industrial companies the majority of

the Companys assets and liabilities are monetary in

nature As result interest rates generally have more

significant impact on the Companys performance

than does the effect of inflation Although fluctuations

in interest rates are neither completely predictable

or controllable the Company regularly monitors its

interest rate position and oversees its financial risk

Management by establishing policies and operating

limits see Asset/Liability Management and Market

Risk section Interest rates do not necessarily move

in the same direction or in the same magnitude as

the prices of goods and services since such prices

are affected by inflation to larger extent than interest

rates Although not as critical to the banking industry

as to other industries inflationary factors may have

some impact on the Companys growth earnings total

assets and capital levels Management does not expect

inflation to be significant factor in 2011

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative

Disclosures about Market Risk

For discussion on this matter see the Asset/Liability

Management and Market Risk section of this analysis

Payments Due by Period

in thousands

One Year One Through Over Three

or Less Three Years Years Total

28 31 64

1037 678 112 1827

289777 303772 44135 637684

12589 12589

$303431 $304481 $44252 $652164
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Castaing

1-lussey
Samuel olan CPA

Lou PuCe CPA

Lolan LLC
Certified Public Accountants Robin l-teou CPA

Charles Castamg CPA sect Shalee Landty CPA

Donna Lasseigne CPA
Roger Plussey CPA sed

Report Of Independent Registered Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors

First Goaranty Bancshares Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets ol First Guaranty Bancshares lnc as ol

December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements ol income changes in stockholders

equity and cash flows for each ol the years in the three year period ended December 31 2010 These financial

statements are the responsibility of ihe Companys management Our responsibility is to expiess an opinion

on these linancial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assutance about whether the financial statements ate Iree of matenal misstatement 1hc Company is not

ree1uired to have nor weie we engaged to peilorm an audit of its intemal control over linancial reporting

Out audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit

procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances hut not br thc purpose ol expressing an opinion on

the ellectiveness ol the Companys internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such

opinion An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant

estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall Itnancial statement presentation We believe

that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion
the linancial statements teferred to above

present lairly in all matenal
respects

the

consolidated linancial
position

of First Guaranty Bancshares Inc as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and

the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each ol the
years in the three yeai petiod

ended Dcccmber 31 2010 in conformity with accounting principles gcnerally accepted iii the United States

of America

tc1a44Zyj 4iy-

Castaing Hussey Lolan LLC

New lbena Louisiana

March 31 2011
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FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHARES INC AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31

2010 2009

in thousands except share data

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and due from banks 35695 33425

Interest-earning demand deposits with banks 13 14

Federal funds sold 9129 13279

Cash and cash equivalents 44837 46718

Investment securities

Available for sale at fair value 322128 249480

Held to maturity at cost estimated fair value of

$155326 and $12462 respectively 159.833 12349

Investment securities 481961 261829

Federal Home Loan Bank stock at cost 1615 2547

Loans net of unearned income 575640 589902

Less allowance for loan losses 8317 7919

Net loans 567323 581983

Premises and equipment net 16023 16704

Goodwill 1999 1999

Intangible assets net 1729 1893

Other real estate net 577 658

Accrued interest receivable 7664 5207

Other assets 9064 10709

Total Assets $1132792 $930847

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Oeposits

Noninterest-bearing demand 130897 $131818

Interest-bearing demand 192139 188252

Savings 46663 40272

Time 637684 439.404

Total deposits 1007383 799746

Short-term borrowings 12589 11929

Accrued interest payable 3539 2.519

Long-term borrowings 20.000

Other liabilities 11343 1718

Total Liabilities 1034854 835.912

Stockholders Equity

Preferred stock

Series $1000 par value authorized 5000 shares

issued and outstanding 2069.9 shares 19859 19630

Series $1000 par value authorized 5000 shares

issued and outstanding 103 shares 1116 1140

Common stock

$1 par value authorized 100600000 shares

issued and outstanding 5559644 shares 5560 5560

Surplus 26459 26459

Retained earnings 45203 40069

Accumulated other comprehensive loss income 259 2077

Total Stockholders Equity 97938 94935

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity $1132792 $930847

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHARES INC AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

in thousands except share data

Interest Income

Loans including fees $36288 $35677 $40406

Loans held for sale 45

Deposits with other banks 41 388 224

Securities including FHLB stock 15043 11085 6594

Federal funds sold 13 34 392

Total Interest Income 51390 47191 47661

Interest Expense

Demand deposits 846 1179 2798

Savings deposits 42 98 193

Time deposits 12218 13310 12432

Borrowings 117 257 458

Total Interest Expense 13223 14844 15881

Net Interest Income 38167 32347 31780

Provision for loan losses 5654 4155 1634

Net Interest Income after Provision for Loan Losses 32513 28192 30146

Noninterest Income

Service charges commissions and fees 4133 4146 3990

Net gains losses on sale of securities 2824 2056

Loss on securities impairment 829 4611
Net gains on sale of loans 283 422 210

Gain on sale of fixed assets 962 10
Other 1363 1351 1489

Total Noninterest Income 9565 7136 1077

Noninterest Expense

Salaries and employee benefits 11769 10752 10653

Occupancy and equipment expense 3191 2891 2903

Dther 11867 10364 9685

Total Noninterest Expense 26827 24007 23241

Income Before Income Taxes 15251 11321 7982

Provision for income taxes 5226 3726 2470

Net Income 10025 7595 5512

Preferred Stock Dividends 1333 594

Income Available to Common Shareholders 8692 7OU1 5512

Per Common Share

Earnings $1.56 $1.26 $0.99

Cash dividends paid $0.64 $0.64 $0.64

Average Common Shares Outstanding 5559644 5559644 5559644

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHARES INC AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Series Series

Preferred Preferred Common

Stock Stock Stock

$1000 Par $1000 Par $1 Par

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive

Income/LossSurplus Earnings Total

in thousands

Balance December 31 2007 5560 26459 34671 335 66355

Net income 5512 5512

Other comprehensive income

net of tax 2823 2823
Total comprehensive income 2689

Cash dividends on common

stock $0.64 per share 3557 3557
Balance December 31 2008 5560 26459 36626 3158 65487

Preferred stock issued 19551 1148 20699

Net income 7595 7595

Other comprehensive income

net of tax 5235 5235

Total comprehensive income 12830

Cash dividends on common

stock $0.64 per share 3.558 3.558

Preferred stock dividend

amortization and accretion 79 594 523
Balance December 31 2009 19630 1140 5560 26459 40069 2077 94935

Net income 10025 10025

Other comprehensive income

net of tax 2336 2336
Total comprehensive income 7689

Cash dividends on common

stock $0.64 per share 3558 3558
Preferred stock dividend

amortization and accretion 229 24 1333 1128
Balance December 31 2010 $19859 $1116 $5560 $26459 $45203 $259 $97938

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc 2010 Annual Report
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FIRST GUARANTY BANCSHARES INC AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

in thousands

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net income 10025 7595 5512

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Provision for loan losses 5654 4155 1634

Depreciation and amortization 1465 1413 1451

Amortization of premium/discount on investments 71 768 807
Gain Loss on call/sale of securities 3162 2066
Gain on sale of assets 1244 385 211
Other than temporary impairment charge on securities 829 4611

ORE writedowns and loss on disposition 693 270 113

FHLB stock dividends 32
Net decrease in loans held for sale 3959

Non-cash donation 705

Change in other assets and liabilities net 2043 8514 3326

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 16242 2526 19557

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Proceeds from maturities and calls of HTM securities 12724 22187 11740

Proceeds from maturities calls and sales of AFS securities 800684 1281594 756642

Funds invested in AFS securities 864419 1419358 773772

Funds invested in HTM securities 159831
Proceeds from sale of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 2972 1900

Funds invested in Federal Home Loan Bank stock 2032 1599 1857
Proceeds from maturities of time deposits with banks 35094 2923

Funds invested in time deposits with banks 13613 22216
Net decrease increase in loans 5718 12620 33196
Purchase of premises and equipment 1327 1631 1017
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment 1100 24

Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned 2677 768 443

Cash paid in excess of cash received in acquisition 72
Net Cash Used In Provided By Investing Activities 201734 83914 58482

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Net increase in deposits 207637 19382 57194

Net increase decrease in federal funds purchased and

short-term borrowings 660 2162 634

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 20000 10000

Repayment of long-term borrowings 20000 8355 4738
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 20699

Dividends paid 4686 3799 3557
Net Cash Provided By Used In Financing Activities 183611 50089 58265

Net Decrease Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents 1881 31299 19340

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period 46718 78017 58677

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period 44837 46718 78017

Noncash Activities

Non-cash donation 705

Loans transferred to foreclosed assets 3288 1129 751

Cash Paid During The Year

Interest on deposits and borrowed funds 12203 15357 15804

Income taxes 5600 4300 1200

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

Note

Business and Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies

Business

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc the Company
is Louisiana corporation On July 27 2G07 the

Company became the parent of First Guaranty Bank

The Company owns all of the outstanding shares of

common stock of First Guaranty Bank First Guaranty

Bank the Bank is Louisiana state chartered

commercial hank that provides diversified range of

financial services to consumers and businesses in

the communities in which it operates These services

include consumer and commercial lending mortgage

loan origination the issuance of credit cards and retail

banking services The Bank has 16 banking offices

one drive-up banking facility and 26 automated teller

machines ATM5 in northern and southern Louisiana

Summary of significant accounting

policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company

conform to generally accepted accounting principles

and to predominant accounting practices within the

banking industry The more significant accounting and

reporting policies are as follows

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the

accounts of First Guaranty Bancshares Inc the

Company and its wholly owned subsidiary

First Guaranty Bank the Bank All significant

intercompany balances and transactions have been

eliminated in consolidation

Use p1 estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity

with generally accepted accounting principles requires

Management to make estimates and assumptions that

affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities

and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities

at the dates of the financial statements and the

reported amounts of revenue and expense during the

reporting periods Actual results could differ from those

estimates

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible

to significant change in the near term economic

environment and market conditions relate to the

determination of the allowance for loan losses and the

valuation of real estate acquired in connection with

foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans In connection

with the determination of the allowance for loan

losses and real estate owned the Company obtains

independent appraisals for significant properties

Available for sale investment securities are stated at

estimated fair value with the unrealized gains and

losses determined on specific identification basis

Such unrealized gains and losses net of tax are

reported as separate component of stockholders

equity and included in other comprehensive income

loss The Company utilizes an independent third

party as its principal pricing source for determining

fair value For investment securities traded in an active

market fair values are measured on recurring basis

obtained from an independent pricing service and

based on quoted market prices if available If quoted

market prices are not available fair values are based

on quoted market prices of comparable securities

broker quotes or comprehensive interest rate tables

and pricing matrices For investment securities traded

in market that is not active fair value is determined

using unobservable inputs or valut drivirs and is

generally determined using expected cash flows and

appropriate risk adjusted discount rates Expected

cash flows are based primarily on the contractual cash

flows of the instrument

Any security that has experienced decline in value

which Management believes is deemed other than

temporary is reduced to its estimated fair value by

charge to operations In estimating other-than

temporary impairment losses Management considers

the length of time and the extent to which the fair

value has been less than cost the financial condition

and near-term prospects of the issuer and the intent

and ability of the Company to retain its investment in

the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow for any

anticipated recovery in fair value Realized gains and

losses on security transactions are computed using

the specific identification method Amortization of

premiums and discounts is included in interest and
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Attilude Aptiiude Accumplishments

dividend income Discounts and premiums related

to debt securities are amortized using the effective

interest rate method The Company did not have any

derivative financial instruments as of December 31

2010 or 2009

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows cash and cash

equivalents are defined as cash due from banks

interest bearing demand deposits with banks and

federal funds sold with maturities of three months or

less

Securities

The Company reviews its financial position liquidity

and future plans in evaluating the criteria for classifying

investment securities At December 31 2010 the

securities portfolio contained two classifications of

securities held to maturity and available for sale At

December 31 2010 $322.1 million were classified as

available for sale and $159.8 million were classified as

held to maturity

Debt securities that Management has the ability

and intent to hold to maturity are classified as

held to maturity and carried at cost adjusted for

amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts

using methods approximating the interest method

Securities available for sale are stated at fair value

The unrealized difference if any between amortized

cost and fair value of these securities is excluded from

income and is reported net of deferred taxes as

curripurietit
uf stuckhulders equity Realized gains

and losses on securities are computed based on the

specific identification method and are reported as

separate component of other income

Management evaluates securities for other-than

temporary impairment at least quarterly and more

frequently when economic or market conditions

warrant such evaluation Consideration is given to

the length of time and the extent to which the fair value

has been less than cost the financial condition and

near term prospects of the issuer the recovery of

contractual principal and interest and f4 the intent

and ability
of the Company to retain its investment in

the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow for any

anticipated recovery in fair value

The Company has required investment in Federal

Home Loan Rank stock that is carried at cost that

approximates fair value This stock must be maintained

by the Company

Loans heldfor sale

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in

the secondary market are carried at the lower of

cost or estimated fair value in the aggregate Net

unrealized losses if any are recognized through

valuation allowance by charges to income Loans held

for sale have primarily been fixed rate single family

residential mortgage loans under contract to be sold

in the secondary market In most cases loans in this

category are sold within 30 days Buyers generally

have recourse to return purchased loan under limited

circumstances Recourse conditions may include

early payment default breach of representations or

warranties and documentation deficiencies

Mortgage Loans held for sale are generally sold with the

mortgage servicing rights
released Gains or losses on

sales of murtgege loans are recognized based on the

differences between the selling price and the carrying

value of the related mortgage loans sold

Loans

Loans are stated at the principal amounts outstanding

net of unearned income and deferred loan fees

In addition to loans issued in the normal course of

business overdrafts on customer deposit accounts

are considered to be loans and reclassified as such

At December 31 2D1D and 2D0 $02 millinn

and $0.1 million respectively in overdrafts have

been reclassified to loans Interest income on all

classifications of loans is calculated using the simple

interest method on daily balances of the principal

amount outstanding

Accrual of interest is discontinued on loan when

Management believes after considering economic

and business conditions and collection efforts the

borrowers financial condition is such that reasonable

doubt exists as to the lull and timely collection of

principal and interest This evaluation is made for all

loans that are 90 days or more contractually past due

When loan is placed in non accrual status all interest

previously accrued but not collected is reversed against

current period interest income Income on such loans

is then recognized only to the extent that cash is
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received and where the future collection of interest and

principal is probable Loans are returned to accrual

status when in the judgment of Management all

principal and interest amounts contractually due are

reasonably assured of repayment within reasonable

time frame and when the borrower has demonstrated

payment performance of cash or cash equivalents for

minimum of six months

All loans except mortgage loans are considered past

due if they are past due 30 days Mortgage loans are

considered past due when two consecutive payments

have been missed Loans that are past due 90 120

days and deemed uncollectible are charged off The

loan charge-off is reduction of the allowance for loan

losses

Loon fees and costs

Nonrefundable loan origination and commitment fees

and direct costs associated with originating loans are

deferred and recognized over the lives of the related

loans as an adjustment to the loans yield using the

level yield method

Allowance for loan losses

The allowance for loan losses is established through

provision for loan losses charged to expense Loans

are charged against the allowance for loan losses when

Management believes that the
collectability of the

principal is unlikely The allowance which is based

on evaluation of the collectability of loans and
prior

loan loss experience is an amount that Management

believes will be adequate to reflect the risks inherent

in the existing loan portfolio and exist at the reporting

date The evaluations take into consideration number

of subjective factors including changes in the nature

and volume of the loan portfolio overall portfolio

quality review of specific problem loans current

economic conditions that may affect borrowers

ability to pay adequacy of loan collateral and other

rplpvant fRctnrs In addition regulatory agencies as an

integral part of their examination process periodically

review the estimated losses on loans Such agencies

may require additional recognition of losses based on

their judgments about information available to them at

the time of their examination

Although Management uses available information to

recognize losses on loans because of uncertainties

associated with local economic conditions collateral

values and future cash flows on impaired loans it

is reasonably possible that material change could

occur in the allowance for loan losses in the near term

However the amount of the change that is reasonably

possible cannot be estimated

The evaluation of the adequacy of loan collateral is

often based upon estimates and appraisals Because

of changing economic conditions the valuations

determined from such estimates and appraisals may

also change Accordingly the Company may ultimately

incur losses that vary from Managements current

estimates Adjustments to the allowance for loan losses

will be reported in the period such adjustments become

known or can be reasonably estimated All loan losses

are charged to the allowance for loan losses when the

loss actually occurs or when Management believes that

the collectability of the principal is unlikely Recoveries

are credited to the allowance at the time of recovery

The allowance consists of specific general and

unallocated components The specific component

relates to loans that are classified as doubtful

substandard or special mention For such loans that are

also classified as impaired an allowance is established

when the discounted cash flows or collateral value

or observable market price of the impaired loan is

lower than the carrying value of that loan The general

component covers non-classified loans and is based

un histuiiual lu55 experienue adjusted fur quolitative

factors An unallocated component is maintained to

cover uncertainties that could affect Managements

estimate of probable losses The unallocated

component of the allowance reflects the margin of

imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions

used in the methodologies for estimating specific and

general losses in the portfolio

loan is considered impaired when based on

current information and events it is probable that

the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled

payments of principal or interest when due according

to the contractual terms of the loan agreement

Factors considered by Management in determining

impairment include payment status collateral value

and the probability of collecting scheduled principal

and interest payments when due Loans that experience

insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls

First Guaranty Baneshares Inc 2OiOAnnuczIRepori
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iii
Attitude Aptitude

generally are not classified as impaired Managemenf

determines the significance of payment delays and

payment shortfalls on case by-case basis taking into

consideration all of the circumstances surrounding

the loan and the borrower including the length of the

delay the reasons for the delay the borrowers prior

payment record and the amount of the shortfall in

relation to the principal and interest owed Impairment

is measured on loan-by loan basis for commercial

and construction loans by either the present value of

rxpertert fiitiirp rash flnws disrnunted at th mans

effective interest rate fhe loans obtainable market

price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is

collateral dependent As an administrative matter

this process is only applied to impaired loans or

relationships in excess of $250000

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans

are collectively evaluated for impairment Accordingly

individual consumer and residential loans are not

separately identified for impairment disclosures

unless such loans are the subject of restructuring

agreement

Goodwill and Intangible assets

Intangible assets are comprised of goodwill and

core deposit intangibles Goodwill and intangible

assets deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer

amortized but are subject to annual impairment tests

The Companys goodwill is tested for impairment on an

annual basis or more often if events or circumstances

iiidit.ate that there nay be irripairrrieirt Adverse

changes in the economic environment declining

operations or other factors could result in decline

in the implied fair value of goodwill If the implied fair

value is less than the carrying amount loss would

be recognized in other non-interesf expense to reduce

the carrying amount to implied fair value of goodwill

goodwill impairment test includes two steps Step

one used to identify potential impairment compares

the estimated fair value of reporting unit with its

carrying amount including goodwill If the estimafed

fair value of reporting unit exceeds its carrying

amount goodwill of the reporting unit is considered

not impaired If the carrying amount of reporting unit

exceeds its estimated fair value the second step of

the goodwill impairment tesf is performed to measure

the amount of impairment loss if any Step two of

the goodwill impairment fest compares the implied

estimated fair value of reporting unit goodwill with

the carrying amount of that goodwill If the carrying

amount of goodwill for that reporting unit exceeds the

implied fair value of that units goodwill an impairment

loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess

The Company did not record goodwill impairment

charges in 2010 2009 or 2008

Identifiable intangible assets are acquired assets that

lack physical substance but can be distinguished trom

goodwill because of contractual or legal rights or because

the assets are capable 01 being sold or exchanged

either on their own on in combination with related

contract asset or liability The Companys intangible

assets primarily relate to core deposits These core

deposit intangibles are amortized on straight line

basis over terms ranging from seven to 15 years

Management periodically evaluates whether events

or circumstances have occurred that would result in

impairment of value

Premises and equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation Depreciation is computed

for financial reporting purposes using the straight

line method over the estimated useful lives of the

respective assets as follows

Expenditures for renewals and betterments are

capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful

lives Repairs maintenance and minor improvements

are charged to operating expense as incurred Gains

or losses on disposition if any are recorded in the

Statements of Income

Other real estate

Gther real estate includes properties acquired

through foreclosure or acceptance of deeds in lieu

of foreclosure These properties are recorded at the

lower of the recorded investment in the property or its

fair value less the estimated cost of disposition Any

valuation adjustments required prior to foreclosure are

charged to the allowance for loan losses Subsequent

to foreclosure losses on the periodic revaluation of

the property are charged to current period earnings

as other real estate expense Costs of operating and

maintaining the properties are charged to other real

Buildings and improvements

Equipment fixtures and automobiles

10 40 years

10 years
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estate expense as incurred Any subsequent gains

or losses on dispositions are credited or charged to

income in the period of disposition

Off-ba lance sheet fin alicia instruni en ts

In the ordinary course of business the Company has

entered into commitments to extend credit including

commitments under credit card arrangements

commitments to fund commercial real estate

uuiistructroii and land develupnient luans secured by

real estate and performance standby letters of credit

Such financial instruments are recorded when they

are funded

Income taxes

The Company and all subsidiaries file consolidated

federal income tax return on calendar year basis In

lieu of Louisiana state income tax the Bank is subiect

to the Louisiana bank shares tax which is included in

noninterest expense in the Companys consolidated

financial statements With few exceptions the

Company is no longer subject to U.S federal state or

local income tax examinations for years before 2006

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for

the future tax consequences attributable to differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts of

existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax

basis Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured

using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable

income in the years in which the deferred tax assets

or liabilities are expected to be settled or realized

Valuation allowances are established when necessary

to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected

to be utilized

Comprehensive incanie

Accounting principles generally require that recognized

revenue expenses gains and losses be included in

net income Although certain changes in assets and

liabilities such as unrealized gains and losses un

available for sale securities are reported as separate

component of the equity section of the balance sheet

such items along with net income are components

of comprehensive income The components of

other comprehensive income and related tax effects

are presented in the Statements of Changes in

Stockholders Equity and Note 16 of the Consolidated

Notes to the Financial Statements

Earnings per common share

Earnings per share represents income available to

common shareholders divided by the weighted average

number of common shares outstanding during the

period No convertible shares or other agreements to

issue common stock are outstanding

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales

when cuntrul uver the assets has been surrendered

Control over transferred assets is deemed to be

surrendered when Ci the assets have been isolated

from the Company the transferee obtains the

right free of conditions that constrain it from taking

advantage of that right to pledge or exchange the

transferred assets and Cd the Company does not

maintain effective control over the transferred assets

through an agreement to repurchase them before their

maturity

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS
In November 2009 the SEC issued proposed

roadmap regarding the potential use by U.S issuers

of financial statements prepared in accordance with

IFRS IFRS is comprehensive series of accounting

standards published by the International Accounting

Standards Board IASB Under the proposed

roadmap the Company may be required to prep0re

financial statements in accordance with IFRS as

early as 2014 The SEC will make determination in

2011 regarding the mandatory adoption of IFRS The

Company is currently assessing the impact that this

potential change would have on its operating results

and financial condition and will continue to monitor

the development of the potential implementation of

IFRS

In January 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards

Board FASB issued Accounting Standards Update

ASU 2010-06 Fair Value Measurements and

Disclosures Topic 820 Improving Disclosures about

Fair Value Measurements ASU 2010 06 amends

Topic 820 by requiring more robust disclosures

about the different classes of assets and liabilities

measured at fair value the valuation techniques

and inputs used iH the activity in Level fair

First Guaranty Bancaharca Inc 2010 Annual Report
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Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

valu measurpmpnts and iv th transfers betwen

Levels and Among other things ASU 2010

06 requires separate disclosures about purchases

sales issuances and settlements in the roll forward of

activity in Level fair value measurements as opposed

to presenting such activity on net basis The new

disclosures required by ASU 2010 06 are effective

for interim and annual reporting periods beginning

after December 15 2009 except for the disclosures

about the roll forward of activity in Level fair value

measurements which are effective for interim and

annual periods beginning after December 15 2010

The provisions of ASU 2010-06 did not have material

impact on the Companys financial position results of

operations or liquidity but required expansion of the

Companys disclosures about fair value measurements

ASU Accounting Standards Update No 2010 18

Receivables Topic 310 Effect of Loan Modification

When the Loan Is Part of Pool That Is Accounted for

as Single Asset This ASU codifies the consensus

reached in EITF Issue No 09 Effect of Loan

Modification When the Loan Is Part ot Pool That Is

Accounted for as Single Asset The amendments

to the FASB Accounting Standards CodificationTM

Codification provide that modifications of loans that

are accounted for within pool under Subtopic 310

30 do riot result in the removal of those loans from

the pool even if the modification of those loans would

otherwise be considered troubled debt restructuring

An entity will continue to be required to consider

whether the pool of assets in which the loan is

included is impaired if expected cash flows for the pool

change ASU 2010 18 does not affect the accounting

for loans under the scope of Subtopic 10-30 that are

not accounted for within pools Loans accounted for

individually under Subtopic 310-30 continue to be

subtect to the troubled debt restructuring accounting

provisions within Subtopic 310 40

ASU 2010 18 is effective prospectively for modifications

of loans arcounted for within pools under Subtopic

310 30 occurring in the first intedm or annual period

ending on or after July 15 2010 Early application

is permitted Upon initial adoption of ASU 2010 18

an entity may make one-time election to terminate

accounting for loans as pool under Subtopic 310

30 This election may be applied on pool by pool

hasis and dnes nnt preclude an entity frnm applying

pool accounting to subsequent acquisitions of loans

with credit deterioration The adoption of this update

did not have an impact on the Consolidated Financial

Statements

ASU Accounting Standards Update ASU No

2010 11 Derivatives and Hedging Topic 815 Scope

Exception Related to Embedded Credit Derivatives The

FASB believes this ASU clarifies the type of embedded

credit derivative that is exempt from embedded

derivative bifurcation requirements Specifically only

one form of embedded credit derivative qualifies

for the exemption one that is related only to the

subordination of one financial instrument to another

As result entities that have contracts containing an

embedded credit derivative feature in form other

than such subordination may need to separately

account for the embedded credit derivative feature

The amendments in the ASU are effective for each

reporting entity at the beginning of its first fiscal

quarter beginning after June 15 2010 Early adoption

is permitted at the beginning of each entitys first

fiscal quarter beginning after March 2010 The

adoption of this update did not have an impact on the

Consolidated Financial Statements

ASU No 2010-20 and ASU No 2011 01 In 2010

the Company adopted the provisions of Accounting

Standards Update ASU No 2010 20 Receivables

Topic 310 Disclosures about the Credit Quality of

Financing Receivahls and the Allnwance fnr Credi

Losses which require the Company to provide new

disclosures in its financial statements to improve

the transparency of financial reporting by requiring

enhanced disclosures about the Companys allowance

for credit losses as well as the credit quality of the

Companys loan portfolio

The additional disclosures required are incorporated

in Notes and in these Consolidated Financial

Statements

In January 2011 the Hnancial Accounting Standards

Board FASB issued ASU No 2011-01 Receivables

Topic 310 Deferral of the Effective Date of Disclosures

about Troubled Debt Restructurings in Update No

2010-20 that temporarily delays the effective date

of the disclosures about troubled debt restructurings
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TDR5 that are included in ASU No 2010-20 The

TDR disclosure guidance will he coordinated with

the FASBs proposed guidance for determining what

constitutes TDR and is currently anticipated to he

effective for interim and annual periods ending after

July 15 2011

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year

nd financial statements in order to conform to the

classification adopted for reporting in 2010

Note

Cash and Due from Banks

Certain reserves are required to be maintained at the

Federal Reserve Bank The requirement as of December

31 2010 and 2009 was $14.1 million and $13 million

respectively

At December 31 2010 the Company had accounts at

correspondent banks excluding the Federal Reserve

Bank but none of which exceeded the FDIC insured

limits At December31 2009 the Company had accounts

that exceeded the FDIC insured limits of $250000

by $9.0 million This balance was held at JPMorgan

Chase the correspondent bank which is used to clear

cash letters

Note

Securities

summary comparison of securities by type at December

31 2010 and 2009 is shown below

Available for sale

U.S Government

agencies

Mortgage-backed

obligations

Asset-backed securities

Corporate debt securities

Mutual funds or other

equity securities

Municipal bonds

Tutal available for

sale securities

Held to maturity

U.S Government

agencies

Mortgage-backed

obligations

Total held to

maturity securities

138925 4804

1250

9388

$322521

$4507 $155326 12349 113

$139663

1576

96976

1257

10000

$249480

December 31 2010

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

December31 2009

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

in thousands

$172958 242 $3982 $169218 $140843 382 $1562

1331 142398

1472

92414

104

5648 1086

20 132
14

1138

9374

1380

10000

62 185

$5066 $5459 $322128 $246109 $6204 $2833

$159833 $4507 $155326 10721 52 10773

1628 61 1689

$159833 12462

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc 2010 AnnuaL Report
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Attitude Aptitude Accurupirsitnients

The scheduled maturities uf securibes at Decerriber 31 2010 by currtroctual rrraturity are struwrr beluw Expected

maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations

with or without call or prepayment penalties

December 31 2010

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

In thousands

Available for sale

Due in one year or less 11434 11656
Due after one year through five years 65880 69424
Due after five years through 10 years 158181 156417

Over 10 years 87026 84631
Total available for sale securities $322521 $322128

Held to maturity

Dueinoneyearorless

Due after one year through five years 7968 7968
Due after five years through 10 years 106876 104065

Over 10 years 44989 43293
Total held to maturity securities $159833 $155326

At December 31 2010 and 2009 approximately

$271.5 million and $154.5 million respectively in

securities were pledged to secure public fund deposits

and for other purposes required or permitted by

law Gross realized gains were $3.0 million $2.1

million and $4000 for the years ended December 31

2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Gross realized

losses were $9000 $61000 and $5000 for the

years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

The tax benefit provision applicable to these realized

net gains/Posses amounted to $1.0 million and $0.7

million for 2010 and 2009 respectively There was

no tax related provision/benefit for 2008 Proceeds

from sales of securities classified as available for sale

amounted to $31.8 million $22.1 million and $0.2

million for the years ended December 31 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively
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The following is summary of the fair value of securities with gross unrealized losses and an aging of those gross

unrealized losses at December 31 2010

Available for sale

U.S Treasury and U.S

Government agencies

Corporate debt securities

Municipal securities

Mutual funds or other

equity securities
__________

Total available for sale securities

Held to maturity

U.S Treasury and U.S

Government agencies
_________

Total held to maturity securities

At December 31 2010 227 debt securities and two

equity securities have gross unrealized losses of $10.0

milliun or 3.1% of amurtized Lust The gruss unreolized

losses in the portfolio resulted from increases in market

interest rates illiquidity
and declines in net income

and other financial indicators caused by the national

economy in the market and not from deterioration

in the creditworthiness of the issuer The Company

believes that it will collect all amounts contractually

due and has the intent and the ability to hold these

securities until the fair value is at least equal to the

carrying value The Company had 57 U.S Government

agency securities 156 corporate debt securities and

one municipal that had gross unrealized losses for

less than 12 months The Company had 13 corporate

debt securities and two equity securities which have

been in continuous unrealized loss position for 12

months or longer All securities with unrealized losses

greater than 12 months were classified as available

for sale Securities with unrealized losses less than 12

months included $176.5 million classified as available

Gross

Unrealized

Fair Value Losses

for sale and $159.8 million in held to maturity agency

securities

During the fourth quarter of 2009 three agency

securities with par value of $10.0 million were

transferred from available for sale to held to maturity

These three securities had fair market value totaling

$9.8 million and an average maturity of aproximately

14 years The unrealized loss of $0.2 million was

recorded as component of other comprehensive loss

and will be amortized over the life of the securities or

until the security is called

lrrespertiv of the classification accounting and

reporting treatment as AFS or HTM securities if any

decline in the market value of security is deemed

to be other-than temporary then the securitys

carrying value shall be written down to fair value

and the amount of the write down reflected in

earnings Management evaluates securities for other

than temporary impairment at least quarterly and

more frequently when economic or market conditions

Less Than 12 Months

Fair Value

Gross

Unrealized

Losses

12 Months or More Total

Gross

Unrealized

Fair Value Losses

in thousands

$133974 $3982 $133974 $3982

41544 1019 2862 312 44406 1331

985 14 985 14

369 132 369 132

$176503 $5015 $3231 $444 $179734 $5459

$130373 $4507 $130373 $4507

$130373 $4507 $130373 $4507
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warrant such evaluation Consideration is given to

the length of time and the extent to which the fair value

has been less than cost the financial condition and

near term prospects of the issuer hi the recovery of

contractual principal and interest and iv the intent

and ability of the Company to retain its investment in

the issuer for period of time sufficient to allow for

any anticipated recovery in fair value In analyzing an

issuers financial condition Management considers

whether the securities are issued by the federal

government or its agencies whether downgrades by

bond rating agencies have occurred and industry

reports

The amount of investment securities issued by

government agencies mortgage-backed and asset

backed securities with unrealized losses and the

amount of unrealized losses on those investment

securities are primarily the result of market interest

rates and illiquidity in the market The Company has

the ability and intent to hold these securities until

recovery which may be until maturity

The corporate debt securities consist primarily of

corporate bonds issued by financial institutions

insurance and real estate companies Also included

in corporate debt securities are trust preferred capital

securities many issued by national and global financial

services firms The market values of corporate bonds

have declined over the last several months due to

larger credit spreads on financial sector debt as well

as the real estate markets The Company believes

that the each of the issuers will be able to fulfill the

obligations of these securities The Company has the

ability
and intent to hold these securities until they

recover which could be at their maturity dates

In the second quarter of 2010 the Company sold the

$12.1 million that remained in the held to maturity

category This represented approximately 4.0% of

the total investment portfolio and 1.0% of assets

Several of the securities sold included mortgage

backed securities and agency bullet securities which

were no longer part of Managements investment

portfolio strategy During the third quarter of 2010 the

Company experienced significant deposit growth but

decreased loan demand Deposits grew approximately

$123.0 million or 14.0% from June 30 2010 to

December 31 2010 Net loans declined $38.0 million

or 6.0% during the same period Investment securities

increased $142.0 million or 42.0% from June 30

2010 to December 31 2010 Market conditions

continued to be historically volatile and interest rates

declined to levels not seen in decades

Given the changes in the Companys balance sheet

observed during the third quarter and following

the completion of five year strategic plan certain

securities purchased pursuant to this plan were

classified held to maturity The Cumpany

determined the unprecedented market conditions and

volatility coupled with revised five year strategic plan

that waiting period of one quarter was appropriate

based on the materiality conditions and the type of

securities in the held to maturity portfolio sold during

the second quarter of 2010

The held to maturity portfolio is comprised of

government sponsored enterprise securities such as

FHLB FNMA FHLMC and FFCB The securities

have maturities of 15 years or less and the securities

are used to collateralize public funds The Company

has maintained public funds in excess of $175.0

million since December 2007 Management believes

that public funds will continue to be significant part

of the Companys deposit base and will need to be

collateralized by securities in the investment portfolio

Other than the corporate debt securities the Company

attributes the unrealized losses mainly to increases in

market interest rates over the yield available at the time

the underlying securities were purchased and does not

expect to incur loss unless the securities are sold

prior
to maturity

Overall market declines particularly in the banking

and financial institutions as well as the real estate

market are result of significant stress throughout

the regional and national economy Securities with

unrealized losses in which the Company has not

already taken an OTTI charge are currently performing

according to their contractual terms Management

has the intent and ability to hold these securities for

the foreseeable future The fair value is expected to

recover as the securities approach their maturity or

repricing date or if market yields for such investments

decline As result of uncertainties in the market place

affecting companies in the financial services industry

it is at least reasonably possible that change in the

estimate will occur in the near term
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Securities that are other-than-temporarily impaired are

evaluated at least quarterly The evaluation includes

performance indications of the underlying assets

in the security loan to collateral value third party

guarantees current levels of subordination geographic

concentrations industry analysts reports sector credit

ratings volatility of the securities fair value liquidity

leverage and capital ratios the Companys ability to

continue as going concern If the company is in

bankruptcy the status and potential outcome is also

considered

The Company believes that the securities with

unrealized losses reflect impairment that is temporary

and that there are currently no securities with other-

than-temporary impairment

During 2010 the Company did not record an

impairment write down on its securities

During 2DD9 the Company recorded an impairment

writedown totaling $0.8 million The impairment

writedown consisted of one corporate debt security

totaling $0.2 million issued by Colonial Bank which

had an unrealized loss of $0.2 million three asset

backed securities totaling $0.4 million issued by

ALESCO which had unrealized losses of $0.4 million

and two asset backed securities totaling $0.2 million

issued by TRAFEZA which had unrealized losses of

$0.2 million

During 2008 the Company recorded an impairment

writedown totaling $4.6 million The impairment

writedown consisted of three preferred stocks of

Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac totaling $3.0 million

on cost basis which had unrealized losses of $2.0

million and $1.0 million respectively debt securities

totaling $0.7 million and $0.2 million issued by

Lehman Brothers and Washington Mutual which

had unrealized losses of $0.6 million and $0.2

million respectively The Company also recorded

an impairment writedown on $0.5 million and $0.7

million in asset backed securities issued by TRAPEZA

and ALESCO CDO5 which had unrealized losses of

$0.3 million and $0.4 million respectively

At December 31 2010 the Companys exposure to

four investment security issuers exceeded 10% of

stockholders equity as follows

Amortized

Cost

in thousands

Fair

Value

Federal

Federal

Federal

Federal

Total

Home Loan Bank HLB
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Freddie Mac

National Mortgage Association Fannie Mae
Farm Credit Bank FFCB

$154621

30472

24428

113024

$322545

$158881

30991

24999

115921

$330792
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Note

Loans

The following table summarizes the components of the Companys loan portfolio as of December 31 2010 and 2009

December31

2010 2009

As%of As%of

Balance Category Balance Category

in thousands

Real estate

Construction and land development 65570 11.4% 78686 13.3%

Farmland 13337 2.3% 11352 1.9%

1-4 family residential 73158 12.7% 77470 13.1%

Multifamily 14544 2.5% 8927 1.5%

Non-farm non-residential 292809 50.8% 300673 51.0%

Total real estate 459418 79.7% 477108 80.8%

Agricultural 17361 3.0% 14017 2.4%

Commercial and industrial 76590 13.3% 82348 13.9%

Consumer and other 22970 4.0% 17226 2.9%

Total loans before unearned income 576339 100.0% 590699 100.0%

Less unearned income 699 797
Total loans net of unearned income $575640 $589902

The following table summarizes fixed and floating rate loans by maturity and repricing frequencies as of December

31 2010

December 31 2010

Fixed Floating Total

in thousands

One year or less 67944 $167899 $235343
One to five years 127401 132345 259746
Five to 15 years 2456 30953 33409
Over 15 years 9735 9388 19123

Subtotal 207536 340085 547621
Nonaccrual loans 28718

Total loans before unearned income $576339

Unearned income 699
Total loans net of unearned income $575640
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The following table presents the age analysis of past due loans at December 31 201D

December 31 2010

Recorded

30-89 Greater investment

days than 90 Total Total 90 days

past due days past due Current loans accruing

in thousands

Real estate

Construction and land development 1574 3383 4957 60613 65570

Farm land 41 41 13296 13337

1-4 family 4742 3189 7931 65227 73158 1663

Multifamily 5781 1357 7138 7406 14544

Non-farm non-residential 7960 21944 29904 262905 292809

Total real estate 20098 29873 49971 409447 459418 1663

Agricultural 333 446 779 16582 17361

Commercial and industrial 1203 76 1279 75311 76590

Consumer and other 287 42 329 22641 22970 10

Total loans before unearned income $21921 $30437 $52358 $523981 $576339 1673

Less unearned income 699

Total loans net of unearned income $575640

Management monitors the credit quality of its loans on an ongoing basis Measurement of delinquency and past due

status are based on the contractual terms of each loan

For all loan classes past due loans are reviewed on monthly basis to
identify

loans for nonaccrual status Generally

when collection in full of the principal and interest is enpardized the loan is placed on nonaccrual The accrual of

interest income on commercial and most consumer loans generally is discontinued when loan becomes 9D to 120

days past due as to principal or interest When interest accruals are discontinued unpaid interest recognized in income

is reversed The Companys method of income recognition for loans that are classified as nonaccrual is to recognize

interest income on cash basis or apply the cash receipt to principal when the ultimate collectibility
of principal is in

doubt Nonaccrual loans will not normally be returned to accrual status unless all past due principal and interest has

been paid
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The following is summary of non-accrual loans by class

Real estate

December 31 2010

in thousands

Construction and land development

Farmland

1-4 family

Mulitfamily

Non-farm non-real estate

Total real estate

Agricultural

Commercial and industrial

Consumer and other

Total

3383

1480

1357

21944

28164

446

76

32

$28718

The Company assigns credit quality indicators of

pass special mention and substandard to its loans

For the Companys loans with corporate credit

exposure the Company internally assigns grade

based on the creditworthiness of the borrower

For loans with consumer credit exposure the

Company internally assigns grade based upon an

individual loans delinquency status

Loans included in the Pass category are performing

loans with satisfactory debt coverage ratios collateral

payment history and documentation

Special mention loans have potential weaknesses

that deserve Managements close attention If left

uncorrected these potential weaknesses may result

in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the

loans or in the Companys credit position at some

future date Borrowers may be experiencing adverse

operating trends declining revenues or margins or

an ill proportioned balance sheet e.g increasing

inventory without an increase in sales high leverage

tight liquidity Adverse economic or market conditions

such as interest rate increases or the entry of new

competitor may also support special mention rating

Nonfinancial reasons for rating credit exposure

special mention include management problems

pending litigation an ineffective loan agreement or

other material structural weakness and any other

significant deviation from prudent lending practices

substandard loan with corporate credit exposure

is inadequately protected by the current sound worth

and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral

pledged if any Loans so classified have well-

defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize

the liquidation of the debt by the borrower They

are characterized by the distinct possibility that the

Company will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are

not corrected They require more intensive supervision

by Management Substandard loans are generally

characterized by current or expected unprofitable

operations inadequate debt service coverage

inadequate liquidity or marginal capitalization

Repayment may depend on collateral or other credit

risk mitigants For some substandard loans the

likelihood of full collection of interest and principal

may be in doubt and thus placed on nonaccrual For

loans with consumer credit exposure loans that are

90 days or more past due or that have been placed on

nonaccrual are considered substandard
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The following table identifies the Credit Exposure of the Loan Portfolio by specific credit ratings

December 31 2010

Special

Pass Mention Substandard Total

in thousands

Real estate

Construction and land development 55228 249 $10093 65570

Farmland 13296 41 13337

1-4 family 60870 4172 8116 73158

Multifamily 8763 5781 14544

Non-farm non-residential 258740 141 33928 296809

Total real estate 396897 4562 57959 459418

Agricultural 17361 17361

Commercial and industrial 73686 13 2891 76590
Consumer and other 22845 32 93 22970

Total loans before unearned income $510789 $4607 $60943 $576339

Less unearned income 699
Total loans net of unearned income $575640
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Note

Allowance for Loan Losses

summary of changes in the allowance for loan losses by portollo type for the year ended December 31 2010 is as follows

Real estate loans

Allowance for credit losses

Beginning balance

Charge-offs

Recoveries

Provision

Ending balance

1176

195

977

Farmland 1-4 Family

in thoussnds

56 2466

534

11

948

_______
1891

Non-farm

Multi-family non-residential

128 2727

235
30

359 901

487 3.423

Non-real estate loans

Agricultural
_____________ _____________ _____________

Allowance for credit losses

Beginning balance 82

Charge-offs

Recoveries

Provision
_________ _________

Ending balance 80

Allowance at the end of the
year

Individually evaluated for impairment

Collectively evaluated for impairment 80

Loans at end of year

before earned income 17361

Loans individually evaluated

for impairment

Loans collectively evaluated

for impairment 17361

Negative provisions are caused by changes in the composition and credit quality of the loan portfolio The result is

re allocation of the loan loss reserve from one category to another

Construction

and Land

Development

December 31 2010

10
46

Allowance at the end of the year

Individually evaluated for impairment 323 726 179 1901

Collectively evaluated for impairment 654 46 1165 308 1522

Loans at end of year

before earned income $65570 $13337 $73158 $14544 $292809

Loans individually evaluated

for impairment 6222 4450 7138 35931

Loans collectively evaluated

for impairment 59348 13337 68708 7406 256878

December 31 2010

Commercial

and industrial

1031

3395

164

2710

510

408

102

$76590

Unallocated Total

7919

5613

357

506 5654

$513 8317

Consumer

and other

in thoussnds

246

444

151

437

390

390

$22970

513

3537

4780

$576339

2735 56476

73855 22970 519863

112



Changes in the allowance for loan losses are as follows

Balance beginning of year

Provision charged to expense

Loans charged off

Recoveries

Balance end of year

The allowance for loan losses is reviewed by

Management on monthly basis and additions thereto

are recorded in order to maintain the allowance at

an adequate level In assessing the adequacy of the

allowance Management considers variety of internal

and external factors that might impact the performance

of individual loans These factors include but are not

limited to economic conditions and their impact

upon borrowers
ability

to repay loans respective

industry trends borrower estimates and independent

appraisals Periodic changes in these factors impact

Managements assessment of each loan and its overall

impact on the adequacy of the allowance for loan

losses

The monitoring of credit risk also extends to unfunded

credit commitments such as unused commercial

credit lines and letters of credit and Management

establishes reserves as needed for its estimate of

probable losses on such commitments

As of December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 the

Company had loans totaling $28.7 million $14.2

million and $9.1 million respectively on which the

accrual of interest had been discontinued As of

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 the Company

had loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing

interest totaling $1.7 million $0.8 million and $0.2

million respectively

The average amount of non accrual loans in 2010

was $21.45 million compared to $10.6 million in

2009 Had these loans performed in accordance with

their original terms the Companys interest income

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

in thousands

$7919 $6482 $6193

5654 4155 1634

5613 2879 1613
357 161 268

$8317 $7919 $6482

would have been increased by approximately $1.65

million and $0.4 million for the years ended December

31 2010 and 2009 respectively Impaired loans at

December 31 2010 and 2009 including non-accrual

loans amounted to $56.5 million and $33.9 million

respectively The portion of the allowance for loan

losses allocated to all impaired loans amounted to

$3.5 million and $2.7 million at December 31 2010

and 2009 respectively As of December 31 2010 the

Company has no outstanding commitments to advance

additional funds in connection with impaired loans
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The following is suirirriary of iriforrriatiuri pertaining to unpaired iuanis as of Decenriber 31

2010 2009

in thousands

Impaired loans without valuation allowance 8713 5853

Impaired loans with valuation allowance 47763 28080

Total impaired loans $56476 $33933

Valuation allowance related to impaired loans 3537 2967

Total nonaccrual loans $28718 $14183

Total loans past due 90 days and still accruing 1673 785

2010 2009 2008

in thousands

Average investment in impaired loans $37094 8979 $9027

Interest income recognized on impaired loans 2402 184 $1049

Interest income recognized on cash basis on

impaired loans 1304 565 283
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The following is summary of impaired loans by class

December 31 2010

Average Interest

Recorded Unpaid Principal Related Recorded Income

Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized

in thousands

With no related allowance

Real estate

Construction and land development 4105 5380 5532 389

Farmland

1-4 family 53 684 2576 204

Multifamily

Non-farm non-residential 4555 4555 3331 203

Total real estate 8713 10619 11439 796

Agricultural

Commercial and industrial 425 37

Consumer and other

With an allowance recorded

Real estate

Construction and land development 2117 2117 323 2557 182

Farmland

1-4 family 4397 4397 726 1490 103

Multifamily 7138 7138 179 5896 318

Nuri-forrit nun-residential 31376 31376 1901 13655 852

Total real estate 45028 45028 3129 23598 1455

Agricultural

Commercial and industrial 2735 2735 408 1632 114

Consumer and other

Total $56476 $58382 $3537 $37094 $2402
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Note

Premises and Equipment

The major categories comprising premises and equipment at December 31 2010 and 2009 are as follows

December $1

2010 2009

in thousands

Land 4539 4514

Bank premises 15804 16608

Furniture and equipment 15074 14264

Construction in progress 52

Acquired value 35469 35386

Less acculated depreciation 19446 18682

Net book value $16023 $16704

Depreciation expense amounted to approximately $1.2 million $1.0 million and $1.0 million for 2010 2009 and 2008

respectively

Note

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer amortized but are subject to annual

impairment tests Other intangible assets continue to be amortized over their useful lives Goodwill for the year ended

December 31 2010 was $2.0 million and was acquired in the Homestead Bank acquisition in 2007 No impairment

charges have been recognized since the acquisition Mortgage servicing rights totaled $0.2 million at December 31

2010 and $0.1 million at December 31 2009 Other intangible assets recorded include core deposit intangibles which

are subject to amodization The core deposits reflect the value of deposit relationships including the beneficial rates

which arose from the purchase of other financial institutions and the purchase of various banking center locations from

one single financial institution

The following table summarizes the Companys purchased accounting intangible assets subject to amortization

December31

2010 2009

Gross Carrying Accumulated Net carrying Gross carrying Accumulated Net carrying

Ameunt Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

in thousands

Core deposit intangibles $7997 $6457 $1540 $7997 $6240 $1757

Mortgage servicing rights 235 46 189 157 21 136

Total $8232 $6503 $1729 $8154 $6261 $1893
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Amortization expense relating to purchase accounting intangibles totaled $0.2 million $0.3 million and $0.3 million for

the year ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Estimated future amortization expense is as follows

For the Years Ended Estimated

December 31 Amortization Expense

in thousands

2011 $218

2012 $216

2013 $185

2014 $185

2015 $185

These estimates do not assume the addition of any new intangible assets that may be acquired in the future nor any

writedowns resulting from impairment

Note

Other Real Estate

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 other real estate net ORE totaled $0.6 million and $0.7 million ORE consisted

of $0.2 million of family residential properties $0.3 million of construction land development and other loans and

$0.1 million non-farm non-residential properties at December 31 2010 At December 31 2009 ORE consisted of $0.3

million of 1-4 family residential properties and $0.4 million of non-farm non-residential properties

Note

Deposits

The aggregate amount of jumbo time deposits each with minimum denomination of $1uu00u was approximately

$420.1 million and $271.2 million at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

At December 31 2010 the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows

December 31 2010

in thousands

Due in one year or less $289777
Due after

pne year through three years 303772

Due after three years 44135

Total $637684

The table above includes brokered deposits totaling $12.9 million in reciprocal time deposits acquired from the

Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service CDARS At December 31 2009 the Company had $10.1 million in

brokered deposits under the CDARS program
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Note 10

Borrowings

Short term borrowings are summarized as follows

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

Total short-term borrowings

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase

which are classified as secured borrowings generally

matore daily Interest rates on repurchase agreements

are set by Management and are generally based on

the 91-day Treasury bill rate Repurchase agreement

deposits are fully collateralized and monitored daily

The Companys available lines of credit with

correspondent banks including the Federal Home

Loan Bank totaled $100.6 million at December 31

2010 and $139.5 million at December 31 2009

At December 31 2010 the Company had $98.7

million in blanket lien availability primarily secured

by commercial real estate loans and $98.4 million

in custody status availability primarily secured by

commercial real estate loans and 1-4 family mortgage

loans Total gross availability
at the FHLB was $197.2

rriillion at December 31 2010 but was reduced by its

letters of credit totaling $145.0 million Net availability

with the FHLB at December 31 2010 was $52.2

million The Company also had lines available with

other correspondent banks totaling $48.4 million at

December 31 2010

With the exception of the FHLB no other lines were

outstanding with any other correspondent bank at

December 31 2010

The following schedule provides certain information

about the Companys short-term borrowings during the

periods indicated

$12589

30465

13086
0.21%

0.21%

December 31

2009

in thousands

$11929

26372

18233

0.8 1%

0.23%

9767

41321

11379

2.16%

D.19%

Decethber 31

2010 2009

in thousands

$12589

$12589

$11929

$11929

2010

Dutstanding at year end

Maximum month-end outstanding

Average daily outstanding

Weighted average rate during the year

Average rate at year end

2008
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In November 2009 the Company originated $10.0

million amortizingone yearadvance ata rate of 0.861%

In December 2009 the Company originated $10.0

million interest only bullet advance with one year

maturity at rate of 0.480% The Companys long term

debt totaled $20.0 million at December 31 2009 The

Company had no long-term debt at December 31

2010

At December 31 2010 letters of credit issued by

the FHLB totaling $145.0 million were outstanding

and carried as off balance sheet items all of which

expire in 2011 At December 31 2009 letters of

credit issued by the FHLB totaling $140.0 million were

outstanding and carried as off-balance sheet items all

of which expire in 2010 The letters of credit are solely

used tor pledging towards public fund deposits See

Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for

additional information

The FHLB has blanket lien on substantially all

of the Banks loan portfolio that is used to secure

borrowings from the FHLB

Note 11

Issuance of Preferred Stock

On August 28 2009 the Company entered into

Letter Agreement which includes Securities

Purchase Agreement and Side Letter Agreement

together the Purchase Agreement with the

United States Department of the Treasury Treasury

Department pursuant to which the Company has

issued and sold to the Treasury Department 2069.9

shares of the Companys Fixed Rate Cumulative

Perpetual Preferred Stock Series par value

$1000 per share for total purchase price ot $20.7

million In addition to the issuance of the Series

Stock as part of the transaction the Company

issued to the Treasury Department warrant to

purchase 114.44444 shares of the Companys Fixed

Rate Cumulative Preferred Stock Series and

immediately following the issuance of the Series

stock the Treasury Department exercised its rights

and acquired 103 of the Series shares through

cashless exercise The newly issued Series Stock

generally non voting stock pays cumulative dividends

of 5% for five years and rate of 9% dividends per

annum thereafter The newly issued Series Stock

generally non voting pays cumulative dividends at

rate of 9% per annum Both the Series Stock and

the Series Stock were issued in private placement

Under the Treasury Department terms related to this

issuance of the preferred stock Capital Purchase

Program CPP participating companies must

adopt certain standards for executive compensation

including pruhibiting guldeii parachute payriieiits

as defined in the EESA to senior Executive Officers

requiring recovery of any compensation paid to

senior Executive Officers based on criteria that is later

proven to be materially inaccurate and prohibiting

incentive compensation that encourages unnecessary

and excessive risks that threaten the value of the

financial institution The terms the CPP also

limit certain uses of capital by the issuer including

repurchases of company stock and increases in

dividends

Note 12

Minimum Capital Requirements

The Company and the Bank are subject to various

regulatory capital requirements administered by the

federal and state banking agencies Failure to meet

minimum capital requirements can initiate certain

mandatory and possibly additional discretionary

artinns hy regiilatnrs that it iindrtakn inuld havn

direct material effect on the Companys financial

statements Under capital adequacy guidelines and

the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action

the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital

guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their

assets liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items

as calculated under regulatory accounting practiccs

The capital amounts and classification are also

sublect to qualitative judgments by the regulators

about components risk weightings and other factors

Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable

to bank holding companies

Ouantitative measures established by regulation to

ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the

Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios of total

and Tier capital to risk-weighted assets and of Tier

capital to average assets Management believes as of
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December 31 2010 and 2009 that the Company and the Bank met oil uapitol adequacy requirements to Which they

were subject

As of December 31 2010 the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation categorized

the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective acfion To be categorized as well

capitalized an institution must maintain minimum total risk-based Tier risk-based and.Tier leverage ratios as sef

forth in the following table There are no conditions or events since the nofification that Management believes have

changed the Banks category The Companys and fhe Banks actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31

2010 and 2009 are presented in the following table

Minimum

To Be Well

Capitalized Under

Minimum Capital Prompt Corrective

Actual Requirements Action Provisions

Amount Ratio

December 31 2010

Total risk-based capital

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc $102828

First Guaranty Bank 95644

Tier capital

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

First Guaranty Bank

Tier leverage capital

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc 94511

First Guaranty Bank 87347

December 31 2009

Total risk-based capital

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

First Guaranty Bank

Tier capital

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc 88595

First Guaranty Bank 83469

Tier leverage capital

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc 88595

First Guaranty Bank 83469

Amount Ratio

in thousands

Amount Ratio

13.03%

12 13%

$63117

63096

8.00%

8.00%

N/A

78870

N/A

10.00%

94511

87347

11.98%

11.07%

31588

31548

4.00%

4.00%

N/A

47322

N/A

6.00%

8.69%

8.06%

43528

43356

4.00%

4.00%

N/A

54195

N/A

5.00%

$96514

91388

12.97%

12.22%

$59536

59834

8.00%

8.00%

N/A

74793

N/A

10.00%

11.90%

11.16%

29768

29917

4.00%

4.00%

N/A

44876

N/A

6.00%

9.58%

9.03%

36979

36985

4.00%

4.00%

N/A

46231

N/A

5.00%
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Note 13

Dividend Restrictions

The Federal Reserve Bank FRB has stated that

generally bank holding company should not maintain

rate of distributions to shareholders unless its

available net income has been sufficient to fully fund

the distributions and the prospective rate of earnings

retention appears consistent with the bank holding

companys capital needs asset quality and overall

financial condition As Louisiana corporation the

Company is restricted under the Louisiana corporate

law from paying dividends under certain conditions

The Company is currently required to obtain prior

written approval from the FRB betore declaring or

paying any corporate dividend

First Guaranty Bank may not pay dividends or distribute

capital assets it
it is in default on any assessment due

to the FDIC First Guaranty Bank is also subiect to

regulations that impose minimum regulatory capital

and minimum state law earnings requirements that

affect the amount of cash available for distribution In

addition under the Louisiana Banking Law dividends

may not be paid if it would reduce the unimpaired

surplus below 5G of outstanding capital stock in any

year

The Bank is restricted under applicable laws in the

payment of dividends to an amount equal to current

ye0r earnings plus undistributed earnings for the

immediately preceding year unless prior permission

is received from the Commissioner of Financial

Institutions for the State of Louisiana Dividends

payable by the Bank in 2011 without permission will

be limited to 2011 earnings plus the undistributed

earnings of $5.1 million from 2010

Accordingly at January 2011 $85.6 million of

the Companys equity in the net assets of the Bank

was restricted Funds available for loans or advances

by the Bank to the Company amounted to $9.6

million In addition dividends paid by the Bank to

the Company would be prohibited if the effect thereof

would cause the Banks capital to be reduced below

applicable minimum capital requirements

The Company is prohibited under the terms of

the Treasury CFP program from certain capital

uses including repurchases of Company stock and

increases in dividends until August 28 2012 After

that date and until redemption of the preferred stock

such capital uses must have
prior permission from

the Treasury Department

Note 14

Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business the Company

has loans deposits and other transactions with its

executive officers directors and certain business

organizations and individuals with which such persons

are associated An analysis of the activity of loans

made to such borrowers during the year ended

December 31 2010 follows

2010

December 31

in thousands

2009

Balance beginning ot year

New loans

Repayments

Balance end of year

$23340

8636

12490
19486

$22457

16098

15215

$23340

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc 2010 Annual Report
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Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

Unfunded uuiiiiiiitiiieiits tu the Cuiripaiiys direutuis

and executive officers totaled $13.4 million and $7.7

million at December 31 201D and 2009 respectively

At December 31 2010 the Company had deposits

from directors and executives totaling $12.6 million

There were no participations in loans purchased

from affiliated financial institutions included in the

Companys loan
portfolio

in 2D1D During 2DD9

there were no participations in loans purchased

from affiliated financial institutions There were no

participations sold to affiliated financial institutions in

2010 and $2.4 million in participation sold to affilated

financial institutions at December 31 2DD9

During the years ended 2Db 20D9 and 2008 the

Company paid approximately $0.6 million $D.6 million

and $0.5 million respectively for printing services

and supplies and office furniture and equipment to

Champion Graphic Communications or subsidiary

companies of Champion Industries Inc of which

Mr Marshall Reynolds the Chairman of the

Companys Board ot Directors is President Chief

Executive Officer Chairman of the Board of Directors

and holder of 47.6% of the capital stock as of January

15 2011 approximately $1.4 million $1.4 million

and $1.3 million respectively to participate in the

Champion Industries Inc employee medical benefit

plan and approximately $0.2 million $0.2 million and

$0.2 million respectively to Sabre Transportation

Inc for travel expenses of the Chairman and other

directors These expenses include but are not limited

to the utilization of an aircraff fuel air crew ramp

fees and other expenses attendant to the Companys

use The Harrah and Reynolds Corporation of which

Mr Reynolds is President and Chief Executive Officer

and sole shareholder has controlling interest in Sabre

Transportation Inc

During the years ended 2010 2009 and 2008

the Company paid approximately $73000 $66000

and $30000 respectively to subsidiaries ot Hood

Autuiiiutive Gruup ufwhicti Mr Huud is the President

Expenses include the purchases of new Company

vehicles and services on Company owned vehicles

During the year ended 2009 and 2008 the Company

engaged the services of Cashe Lewis Coudrain and

Sandage attorneys at law of which Mr Aiton Lewis

director of the Company was partner to represent

the Company with certain
legal matters Mr Lewis had

25% ownership interest in the law firm In October

2009 Mr Lewis joined the Company as the Chief

Executive Officer As of that date Mr Lewis was no

longer partner in the law firm Cashe Lewis Coudrain

and Sandage The fees paid to Cashe Lewis Coudrain

and Sandage for legal services totaled $0.1 million for

the calendar period ended September 30 2009 The

fees paid for these legal services totaled $0.2 million

for the year ended 2008 The Company has continued

tu be iepreseiited by Castie Cuudrairr arid Saridage

in certain legal matters and for the remainder of 2009

the Company paid $23000 In 2010 the Company

paid $0.2 million for the services of Cashe Coudrain

and Sandage

Note 15

Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has an employee savings plan to which

employees who meet certain service requirements

may defer one to 20% of their base salaries six

percent of which may be matched up to 100% at its

sole discretion Contributions to the savings plan were

$129000 $64000 and $64000 in 2010 2009 and

2008 respectively

An Employee Stock Ownership Plan ESOP benefits

all eligible employees Full-time employees who have

been credited with at least 1000 hours of service

during 12 consecutive month period and who have

attained age 21 are eligible to participate in the ESOP

The plan document has been approved by the Internal

Revenue Service Contributions to the ESOP are at the

sole discretion of the Company

No contributions were made to the ESOP for the

year 2010 Voluntary contributions of $100000

to the ESOP were made in 2009 and 2008 for the

purchase of shares from third parties at market value

As of December 31 2010 the ESOP held 23562

shares In October of 2010 the ESOP plan was frozen

and the Company does not plan to make future

contributions to this plan
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Note 16

Other Expenses

The following is summary of the significant components of other noninterest expense

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

in thousands

Other noninterest expense

Legal and professional fees 1791 1254 $1496

Operating supplies 594 537 572

Marketing and public relations 1426 809 1131

Data processing 1143 1067 1063

Travel and lodging 435 398 416

Taxes sales and capital 620 529 571

Telephone 177 192 185

Amortization of core deposit intangibles 218 291 311

Donations 778 221 258

Regulatory assessment expense 1496 2049 827

Net cost of other real estate and repossessions 858 399 249

Other 2331 2618 2606

Total other expense 11867 $10364 $9685

Note 17

Advertising Expenses

The Company does not capitalize advertising

costs They are expensed as incurred and are included

in Other Noninterest Expense on the Consolidated

Statements of Income Advertising expense was $0.4

million $0.4 million and $0.6 million tor 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively

First Guaranty Baneshares Inc 2010 Annual Report
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Note iS

Income Taxes

The following is summary of the provision for income taxes included in the Statements of Income

Years Ended Decmber 31

2010 2009 2008

in thousands

Current $4604 $3705 $5423

Deferred 622 67 2848
Tax credits 46 105

Total $5226 $3726 $2470

The difference between income taxes computed by

applying the statutory federal income tax rate and the

provision for income taxes in the financial statements

is reconciled as follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

in thousands

Statutory tax rate 34.2% 34.0% 34.3%

Federal income taxes at statutory rate $5224 $3854 $2739

Tax credits 46 105
Other 82 164

Total $5226 $3726 $2470
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Deferred taxes are recorded based upon differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and

liabilities and available tax credit carryforwards Temporary differences between the financial statement and tax values

of assets and liabilities give rise to deferred tax assets liabilities The significant components of deferred tax assets

and liabilities at December 31 2010 and 2DD9 are as follows

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009

in thousands

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for loan losses 2828 $2692

Other real estate owned 135 36

Impairment writedown on securities 168 1236

Unrealized loss on available for sale securities 133

Other 249 145

Gross deferred tax assets 3513 $4109

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation and amortization 1.139 1238
Unrealized gains on available for sale securities 1070
Other 218 226

Gross deferred tax liabilities 1357 2534
Net deferred tax assets 2156 1575

As of December 31 2010 and 2DD9 there were no net operating loss carryforward for income tax purposes

ASC 74D Income Taxes clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes recognition

threshold and measurement attribute for thc Consolidated Financial Statements recognition and measurement of

tax position taken or expected to be taken in tax return The Company does not believe it has any unrecognized tax

benefits included in its consolidated financial statements The Company has not had any settlements in thc current

period with taxing authorities nor has it recognized tax benefits as result of lapse of the applicable statue of

Ii itat ions

The Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits if applicable in

noninterest expense During the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 the Company did not recognize

any interest or penalties in its Consolidated Financial Statements nor has it recorded an accrued liability for interest

or penalty payments

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc 2OlOAnnualRaeort
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.1 Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

Note 19

Comprehensive Income

The following is summary of the components of other comprehensive income as presented in the Statements of Changes in

Stockholders Equity

December31

2010 2009 2008

in thousands

Unrealized gain loss on available for sale securities net $1085 9382 $8889
Unrealized loss on held to maturity securities net 224
Reclassification for OTTI losses 829 4611

Reclassification adjustments for net losses realized net income 2453 2056
Other comprehensive income loss 3538 7931 4277

Income tax provision benefit related to other comprehensive income 1202 2696 1454

Other comprehensive income loss net of income taxes $2336 5235 $2823
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Note 20
Off-balance Sheet Items

The Company is party to financial instruments with

off balance sheet risk in the normal course of business

to meet the financing needs of its customers and to

reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates

These financial instruments include commitments to

extend credit and standby and commercial lefters of

credit Those instruments involve to varying degrees

elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of

the amount recognized in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets The contract or notional amounts of those

instruments reflect the extent of the involvement in

particular classes of financial instruments

The exposure to credit loss in the event of

nonperformance by the other party to the financial

instrument for commitments to extend credit

and standby and commercial letters of credit is

represented by the contractual notional amount of

those instruments The same credit policies are used

in making commitments and conditional obligations as

it
does for on-balance sheet instruments

Unless otherwise noted collateral or other security

is not required to support financial instruments with

credit risk

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend

to customer as long as there is no violation of any

condition established in the contract Commitments

generally have fixed expiration dates or other

Financial instruments whose contract

amounts represent credit risk

Commitments to extend credit

Standby letters of credit

termination clauses and may require payment of

fee Since commitments may expire without being

drawn upon the total commitment amounts do not

necessarily represent future cash requirements Each

customers creditworthiness is evaluated on case

by-case basis The amount of collateral obtained if

deemed necessary upon extension of credit is based

on Managements credit evaluation of the counterpart

Collateral requirements vary hut may include accounts

receivable inventory property plant and equipment

residential real estate and commercial properties

Standby and commercial letters of credit are conditional

commitments to guarantee the performance of

customer to third party These guarantees are

primarily issued to support public and private

borrowing arrangements including commercial paper

bond financing and similar transactions The majority

of these guarantees are short-term one year or less

however some guarantees extend tor up to three

years The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit

is essentially the same as that involved in extending

loan facilities to customers Collateral requirements

are the same as on-balance sheet instruments and

commitments to extend credit

There were no losses incurred on any commitments in

2010 or 2009

summary of the notional amounts of the financial

instruments with off-balance sheet risk at December

31 2010 and 2009 follows

December 31

2010 2009

in thousands

$95204 $51132

5681 7091

First Guaranty Bancsharea Inc 2010 Annual Report
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Note 21

Fair Value Measurements

The fair value of financial instrument is the current

amount that would be received to sell an asset or

paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants fair value measurement

assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or

transfer the
liability occurs in the principal market tor

the asset or liability or in the absence of principal

market the most advantageous market for the asset

or liability Valuation techniques use certain inputs

to arrive at fair value Inputs to valuation techniques

are the assumptions that market participants would

use in pricing the asset or liability They may be

observable or unobservable The Company uses

fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the

highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to

unobservable inputs The fair value hierarchy is as

tollows

Level Inputs Unadjusted quoted market prices

in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the reporting entity has the ability to access at the

measurement date

Level Inputs Inputs other than quoted prices

included in Level that are observable for the asset

or liability either directly or indirectly These might

include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in

actvc markets quoted prices for identical or similar

assets or liabilities in markets that are not active

inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for

the asset or liability such as interest rates volatilities

prepayment speeds or credit risks or inputs that are

derived principally from or corroborated by market

data by correlation or other means

Level Inputs Unobservable inputs for determining

the fair values of assets or liabilities that reflect an

entitys own assumptions about the assumptions that

market participants would use in pricing the assets or

liabilities

description of the valuation methodologies used for

instruments measured at fair value follows as well

as the classification of such instruments within the

valuation hierarchy

Securities available for sale

Securities are classified within Level where quoted

market prices are available in an active market Inputs

include securities that have quoted prices in active

markets for identical assets If quoted market prices

are unavailable fair value is estimated using quoted

prices of securities with similar characteristics at

which point the securities would be classified within

Level of the hierarchy Securities classified Level

in the Companys portfolio as of December 31 2010

include municipal bonds from two local municipalities

Impaired loans

Loans are measured for impairment using the methods

permitted by ASC Topic 310 Fair value of impaired

loans is measured by either the loans obtainable

market price if available Level the fair value of

the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent Level

or the present value of expected future cash flows

discounted at the loans effective interest rate Level

Fair value of the collateral is determined by appraisals

or independent valuation

Other real estate owned

Properties are recorded at the balance of the loan or

at estimated fair value less estimated selling costs

whichever is less at the date acquired Fair values of

OREO at December 31 2010 are determined by sales

agreement or appraisal and costs to sell are based on

estimation per the terms and conditions of the sales

agreement or amounts commonly used in real estate

transactions Inputs include appraisal values on the

properties or recent sales activity
for similar assets

in the propertys market and thus OREO measured

at fair value would be classified within Level of the

hierarchy
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The following table summarizes financial assets measured at fair value on recurring basis as of December 31 2010

segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value

December 31

2010 2009

in thousands

Securities available for sale measured at fair value $322128 $249480

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets 14374 16943

Level

Significant Other Observable Inputs 299366 223537

Level

Significant Unobservable Inputs 8388 9000

Level

The following table reconciles assets measured at fair value on recurring basis using unobservable inputs Level

Municipal Bonds

in thousands

Balance beginning of year $9000

Total gains or losses realized/unrealized

Included in earnings

Included in other comprehensive income

Purchases sales issuances and settlements net 612
Transfers in and/or out of Level

Balance as of end of year 8388

The amount of total gains or losses for the period included

in earnings attributable to the change in unrealized gains

or losses relating to assest still held as of December 31 2010

Gains and losses realized and unrealized included in earnings or changes in net assets for 2010 on recurring basis

are reported in noninterest or other comprehensive income as follows

Other

Noninterest Comprehensive

Income Income

in thousands

Total gains included in earnings

or changes in net assets $3162

Changes in unrealized gains losses relating to assets

still held at December 31 2010 $2336
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The following table measures financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on non recurring basis as

of December 31 2010 segregated by the level of valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure

fair value

Impaired loans measured at fair value

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets

Level

Significant Other Observable Inputs

Level

Significant Unobservable Inputs

Level

Other real estate owned measured at fair value

Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets

Level

Significant Other Observable Inputs

Level

Significant Unobservable Inputs

Level

Note 22

Financial Instruments

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature

and are dependent upon number of significant

assumptions associated with each instrument or

group of similar instruments including estimates

of discount rates risks associated with specific

financial instruments estimates of future cash flows

and relevant available market information Fair value

information is intended to represent an estimate of

an amount at which financial instrument could be

exchanged in current transaction between willing

buyer and seller engaging in an exchange transaction

However since there are no established trading

markets for significant portion of the Companys

financial instruments the Company may not be able to

immediately settle financial instruments as such the

fair values are not necessarily indicative of the amounts

that could be realized through immediate settlement

In addition the majority of the financial instruments

such as loans and deposits are held to maturity

December31

2010 2009

$47763

In thousands

$28080

30364 11166

17399 16914

577 658

and are realized or paid according to the contractual

agreement with the customer

Quoted market prices are used to estimate fair values

when available However due to the nature of the

financial instruments in many instances quoted market

prices are not available Accordingly estimated fair

values have been estimated based on other valuation

techniques such as discounting estimated future

cash flows using rate commensurate with the risks

involved or other acceptable methods Fair values are

estimated without regard to any premium or discount

that may result from concentrations of ownership of

financial instruments possible income tax ramifications

or estimated transaction costs The fair value estimates

are subjective in nature and involve matters of significant

judgment and therefore cannot be determined with

precision Fair values are also estimated at specific

point in time and are based on interest rates and other

assumptions at that date

577 658
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As events change the assumptions underlying these

estimates the fair values of financial instruments will

change

Disclosure of fair values is not required for certain

items such as lease financing investments accounted

for under the equity method of accounting obligations

of pension and other post retirement benefits

premises and equipment other real estate prepaid

expenses the value of long-term relationships with

depositors core deposit intangibles and other

customer relationships other intangible assets and

income tax assets and liabilities Fair value estimates

are presented for existing on- and off-balance sheet

financial instruments without attempting to estimate

the value of anticipated future business and the value

of assets and liabilities that are not considered financial

instruments In addition the tax ramifications related to

the realization of the unrealized gains and losses have

not been considered in the estimates Accordingly

the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not

purport to represent and should not be considered

representative of the underlying market or franchise

value of the Company

Because the standard permits many alternative

calculation techniques and because numerous

assumptions have been used to estimate the fair

values reasonable comparison of the fair value

information with other financial institutions fair value

information cannot necessarily be made

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the

fair values of each class of financial instruments that

are not disclosed above are as follows

Cash and duefrom banks interest-bearing deposits

with banks federal funds sold and federal funds

purchased These items are generally short term

in nature and accordingly the carrying amounts

reported in the Statements of Condition are reasonable

approximations of their fair values

Investment Securities Fair values are principally

based on quoted market prices If quoted market

prices are not available fair values are based on

quoted market prices of comparable instruments or

the use of discounted cash flow analyses

Loans Held for Sale Fair values of mortgage loans

held for sale are based on commitments on hand from

investors or prevailing market prices

Loans net Market values are computed present

values using net present value formulas The present

value is the sum of the present value of all projected

cash flows on an item at specified discount rate The

discount rate is set as an appropriate rate index plus

or minus an appropriate spread

Accrued interest receivable The carrying amount of

accrued interest receivable approximates its fair value

Deposits Market valueb are actually cumputed present

values using net present value formulas The present

value is the sum of the present value of all protected

cash flows on an item at specified discount rate The

discount rate is set as an appropriate rate index plus

or minus an appropriate spread

Accrued interest payable The carrying amount of

accrued interest payable approximates its fair value

Borrowings The carrying amount of federal

funds piirrhasvd and nther shnrt term hnrrnwings

approximate their fair values The fair value of the

Companys long term borrowings is computed using

net present value formulas The present value is the

sum of the present value of all projected cash flows on

item at specified discount rate The discount rate

is set as an appropriate rate index plus or minus an

appropriate spread

Other unrecognized financial instruni en ts The fair

value of commitments to extend credit is estimated

using the fees charged to enter into similar legally

binding agreements taking into account the remaining

terms of the agreements and customers credit ratings

For fixed rate loan commitments fair value also

considers the difference between current levels of

interest rates and the committed rates The fair values

of letters of credit are based on fees charged for similar

agreements or on estimated cost to terminate them or

otherwise settle the obligations with the counterparties

at the reporting date At December31 2D10 and 2DD9

the fair value of guarantees under commercial and

standby letters of credit was immaterial

First Guaranty Baneshares Inc 2010 AnnuaL Report
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Attitude Aptitude Accumpiishuseuts

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Securities available for sale

Securities held to maturity

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

Loans net

Accrued interest receivable

Estimated

Fair

Value

Note 23

Concentrations of Credit and Other Risks

Personal commercial and residential loans are granted

to customers most of who reside in northern and

southern areas of Louisiana Although the Company has

diversified loan portfolio significant portions of the loans

are collateralized by real estate located in Tangipahoa

Parish and surrounding parishes in southeast Louisiana

Declines in the Louisiana economy could result in

lower real estate values which could under certain

circuin tances result in losses to the Company

The distribution of uommitments to extend credit

approximates the distribution of loans outstanding

Commercial and standby letters of credit were granted

primarily to commercial borrowers Generally credit

is not extended in excess of $8.0 million to any single

borrower or group of related borrowers

Approximately 35.4c of the Companys deposits are

derived from local governmental agencies These

governmental depositing authorities are generally long-

term customers number of the depositing authorities

are under contractual obligation to maintain their

operating funds exclusively with the Company In most

cases the Company is required to pledge securities

or letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan

Bank to the depositing authorities to collateralize their

deposits Under certain circumstances the withdrawal

of all of or significant portion of the deposits of

one or more of the depositing authorities may result

in temporary reduction in liquidity depending

primarily on the maturities and/or classifications of

th seruritiec pledged Against such dpnsits and

the ability to replace such deposits with either new

deposits or other borrowings

Public fund deposits totaled $356.2 million or 35.4c

of total deposits at December 31 2010 Six public

entities comprised $277.6 million or 77.9% of the total

public funds as of December 31 2010

The estimated fair values and carrying values of the financial instruments at December 31 2D1D and 2000 are

presented in the following table

December 31

2010

Estimated

2009

Carrying Fair Carrying

Value Value Value

in thousands

Liabilities

Deposits

Borrowings

Accrued interest payable

44837 44837 46718 46718

322128 322128 249480 249480

159833 155326 12349 12462

1615 1615 2547 2547

567323 570566 581983 584248

7664 7664 5807 5807

$1007383 $1016679 $799746 $802183

12589

3539

12591

3539

31929

2519

31918

2519

There is no material difference between the contract amount and the estimated fair value of off-balance sheet items that

are primarily comprised of short term unfunded loan commitments that are generally priced at market
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Note 24

Litigation

The Company is subject to various legal proceedings in

the normal course of its business It is Managements

belief that the ultimate resolution of such claims will

not have material adverse effect on the Companys

financial position or results of operations

Note 25
Commitments and Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business various outstanding

commitments and contingent liabilities arise that are

not reflected in the accompanying financial statements

Included among these contingent liabilities are certain

provisions in agreements entered into with outside

third parties to sell loans that may require the

Company to repurchase if it becomes delinquent

within specified period of time

Note 26

Subsequent Events

On October 22 2010 the Company entered into

an Agreement and Plan of Merger fthe Merger

Agreement with Greensburg Bancshares Inc

Greensburg Bancshares and its wholly-owned

subsididiy Bank uf Greerisburg Greensburg

The Merger Agreement provides for the acquisition

of Greensburg Bancshares in merger the

Merger At the effective time of the Merger each

share of common stock of Greensburg Bancshares

at the election of the holder thereof will be converted

into the
right to receive either 13.26 shares of

common stock of First Guaranty Bancshares $247

in cash or combination of cash and common

stock of First Guaranty Bancshares the Merger

Consideration The final structure of the Merger will

depend upon the election by Greensburg Bancshares

of the form of the Merger Consideration The total

consideration is valued at approximately $5.3 million

At December 31 2010 Greensburg Bancshares had

total assets of approximately $89.3 million including

loans of $67.5 million Total deposits were $79.8

million

The Merger is subject to the approval by the

stockholders of Greensburg Bancshares by such

vote as is required under its articles of incorporation

and Louisiana Business Corporation Law and other

customary closing conditions The Merger Agreement

contains customary representations warranties and

covenants of First Guaranty Bancshares First Guaranty

Bank Merger Subsidiary Greensburg Bancshares and

Greensburg

It is expected that the Merger will be completed during

the second quarter of 2011 following receipt of all

regulatory and shareholder approvals

Note 27

Condensed Parent Company Information

The following condensed financial information reflects

the accounts and transactions of First Guaranty

Boiiustiores Inc parent uumpaiiy only fui th dates

indicated
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Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

Condensed Balance Sheets

December 31

2010 2009

in thousands

Assets

Cash 7523 5547

Investment in bank subsidiary 90701 29363

Other assets 257 409

Total Assets $98481 $95319

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Other liabilities 543 384

Stockholders Equity 97938 94935

Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity $98481 $95319

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

Condensed Statements of Income

Years ended Deoember 31

2010 2009 2008

in thousands

Operating Income

Dividends received from bank subsidiary 6893 5109 $7200

Other income 143

Total operating income 6897 5113 7343

Operating Expense

Interest expense 114 152

Salaries and Benefits 88 78 106

Other expenses 766 423 597

Total operating expense 854 615 855

Income before income tax benefit and increase in equity

in undistributed earnings of subsidiary 6043 4498 6488

Income tax benefit 296 214 289

Income before increase in equity in undistributed

earnings of subsidiary 6339 4712 6777

Increase decrease in equity in undistributed earnings

of subsidiary 3686 2883 1265
Net Income 10025 7595 5512

Less preferred stock dividends 1333 594

Net income available to common shareholders 8692 7001 5512
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First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

in thousands

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Net income $10025 7595 5512

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Provision for deferred income taxes 16

Increase Decrease in equity in undistributed

earnings of subsidiary 3686 2883 1265

Net change in other liabilities 159 83 65

Net change in other assets 164 275 132

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 6662 4904 6694

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Payments for investments in and advances to subsidiary 16350
_________

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities 16350
_________

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Repayment of long-term debt 3093
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 20699

Dividends paid 4686 3799 3557
Net Cash Provided by Used In Financing Activities 4686 16900 6650

Net Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents 1976 5454 44

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period 5547 93 49

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period 7523 5547 93
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Attitude Aputude Accomplishments

Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer

Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets torth the high and low bid quotations for First Guaranty Bancshares Inc.s common stock tor

the periods indicated These quotations represent trades ot which we are aware and do not include retail markups

markdowns or commissions and do not necessarily reflect actual transactions As of December 31 2010 there were

5559644 shares of First Guaranty Bancshares Inc common stock issued and outstanding with total of 1361

shareholders of record

2010

High Low Dividend

2009

High Low Dividend

Quarter Ended

March $17.00 $17.00 $0.16 $25.00 $17.00 $0.16

June 18.62 17.00 0.16 17.00 17.00 0.16

September 18.62 17.50 0.16 17.00 15.00 0.16

December 18.62 18.62 0.16 17.00 12.00 0.16
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Stock Performance Graph

The line graph belnw cnmpares the cumulative total return tor the Companys common stock with the cumulative total

return ot both the NASDAQ Stock Market Index for U.S companies and the NASDAQ Index for bank stocks tor the

period December 31 2DD6 through December 31 2010 The total return assumes the reinvestment of all dividends

and is based on $1DD investment on December 31 1998 It also reflects the stock price on December 31st of each

year shown although this price reflects only small number of transactions involving small number of directors of the

Company or affiliates or associates and cannot be taken as an accurate indicator of the market value of the Companys

common stock

Cumulative Total Return of First Guaranty Bancshares Inc Compared

to NASDAQ Bank Index and NASDAQ Composite Index

20D

150

1D0

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

NASDAQ Bank Index

NASDAG Composite Index

Total Returns for the Year

50

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

NASDAG Bank Index

NASDAQ Composite Index

We have no equity based benefit plans

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

$168.00 $179.00 $189.00 $133.OD $151.00

$186.00 $145.00 $110.00 90.00 $100.00

$110.00 $121.00 72.00 $103.00 $121.00
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.4. Attitude Aptitude Accomplishments

Corporate Information

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will convene at

200 p.m Central Daylight Time CDT on

Thursday May 19 2011 in the Auditorium

First Guaranty Square 400 East Thomas Street

Hammond Louisiana

Corporate Headquarters

First Guaranty Square

400 East Thomas Street

Hammond Louisiana 70401-3320

Telephone 985 345-7685

Stock Transfer Agent

First Guaranty Bank

Corporate Trust

Post Office Box 2009

Hammond Louisiana 70404-2009

Certified Public Accountants

Castaing Hussey Lolan LLC

New Iberia Louisiana

Financial and General Information

Persons seeking financial or other information about the Company are invited to contact

Eric Dosch

Chief Financial Officer Treasurer and Secretary

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

Post Office Box 2009

Hammond Louisiana 70404-2009

Telephone 985 375-0308

Notice to Stockholders

copy of the First Guaranty Bancshares Inc Annual Report filed on Form 10-K with

the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission can be accessed thruugh the Companys

website at www.fgb.net or is available without charge by writing

Eric Dosch

Chief Financial Officer Treasurer and Secretary

First Guaranty Bancshares Inc

Post Office Box 2009

Hammond Louisiana 70404-2009

Telephone 985 375-0308
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